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Growing market—

A complement to Rituxan®

Our pivotal Phase 3 clinical trial is designed to evaluate
Favld's ability to extend TTP in patients with follicular
B-cell NHL following treatment with Rituxan, the current
standard of care. Annual sales of Rituxan in the U.S. have

grown from $162 million in 1998 to more than $2 billion

in 2006.

Phase 3—OQur pivotal trial

We initiated our placebo-controlled, double-blind, pivotal Phase 3
clinical trial of Favld in patients with follicular B-cell NHL in July 2004
and completed patient enrollment 18 months later with 349 patients
randomized into the trial. Analysis of our primary endpoint in the trial,
TTP, is event-driven and currently projected to occur around the end of
2007. We have received Fast Track designation from the U.S. Food &
Drug Administration (FDA) for Favld. In addition to our Phase 3 clinical
trial, Favld has been evaluated in several multi-center, open-label
Phase 2 clinical trials involving more than 130 patients. Long-term
follow-up data from our 89-patient Phase 2 clinical trial of Favld following
Rituxan therapy in patients with follicular B-cell NHL suggest that the
administration of Favld following Rituxan may extend TTP compared

to historical data of Rituxan alone. We believe Favld may be effective
in treating other types of B-cell NHL as well and have four additional
Phase 2 clinical trials of Favld ongoing. We have also received an
allowance from the FDA for an Investigational New Drug application
for our second product candidate, FAV-201, for the treatment of

cutaneous T-cell lymphoma.

Commercialization—
r launch

and ready by the fourth quartsr of 200¢/

Favrilte, Inc. 2006 Annual Report




/ W ioph ical
Cancer treatment— e are a biopharmaceutical company focused on the
development and commercialization of patient-specific
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- FAVRILLE

We make it personal

immunotherapies for the treatment of cancer and other

* diseases of the immune system. We have developed a

i proprietary techneology to manufacture active immuno-

\ therapy products that are designed to stimulate a patient's
immune system to mount a specific and sustained response

! to disease. Qur lead product candidate, Favld, is currently

l under investigation in a pivotal Phase 3 clinical trial in
patients with follicular B-cell non-Hedgkin's lymphoma

i (NHL}. The American Cancer Society cites NHL as the

l sixth leading cause of death among cancers in the U.S. and

|| the National Cancer Institute estimates that approximately

| 332,000 patients suffer from this disease. Follicular B-cell

: NHL is the most common form of the indolent disease.

| We believe that our proprietary technology will enable

| us to manufacture Favld in a timely and cost-effective
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manner, allowing us to offer treatment options not

currently available to physicians and patients. /

Our lead product—Favld®

Favld is an active immunotherapy that is based upon
unigque genetic information extracted from a patient’s
tumor. We are developing Favld for use following treat-
ment with existing stdndardsof care to-e
disease proyssion “TP) in patients with B
We currently have gkclusive worldwide commercidy
rights tg Favid.
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candidate, Favld® We find ourselves on the brink of pivotal Phase 3 clinical trial data for Favld just as other cancer immuno-

therapies are nearing key decision points, piquing momentum and excitement among patients, physicians and investors.

Favld is a patient-specific, active immunotherapy for B-cell non-Hodgkin's lymphoma {(NHL} that is based upon unique
genetic information extracted from a patient’s tumor, We completed patient enroliment in our placebo-controlled,
double-blind, pivotal Phase 3 clinical trial of Favld following treatment with Rituxan®, the current standard of care, in

January 2006 with 349 patients randomized into the trial.

Analysis of our primary endpoint, time to disease progression (TTP), is based upan the number of patients whose disease
progresses in the trial and is currently projected to occur around the end of 2007. We will closely monitor the rate of

progression in the trial in the coming months and update this projection as necessary.
In the meantime, here is a review of some recent milestones that we believe help position Favld far success:

¢ In November 2006, we announced the results of an interim analysis of a secendary endpoint, response rate
improvement, in our pivotal Phase 3 clinical trial of Favld. While our independent Data Monitoring Committee
concluded that the interim analysis did not demonstrate a statistically significant difference between treatment
and control groups for the secondary endpoint, we were encouraged by the high rate of complete remissions in
the blinded data, which we believe indicates that we have enrolled an appropriate population for an assessment

of cur primary endpoint, TTF.

* We reported long-term follow-up data from our Phase 2 clinical trial of Favid following Rituxan therapy at the
American Society of Hematology Annual Meeting in December 2006, The data showed that patients who had
a clinical response to Rituxan and then received Favid had not reached median TTP 37 months from the end of
patient enrollment. Furthermore, 12 of the 16 patients who attained a complete remission in the trial remained
progression-free over the same period. We are especially encouraged about the durability of response in

Favid-treated patients from this Phase 2 trial.

+ In February 2007, we entered into an agreement with Berlex Inc., a U.S. affiliate of Bayer Schering Pharma AG. This
agreement helps pave the way for commercialization, including reimbursement, of Favld in combination with Leukine®
(sargramostim, GM-CSF), a growth factor designed to enhance a patient’s immune response. We believe the use

of these two products together is important in order to maximize the benefit to lymphoma patients.

| would like to take this opportunity to thank our employees, investors, clinical investigators, study coordinators and, most
of all, the patients in our trials for their continued support. As we draw nearer to our Phase 3 analysis, we remain cenfident
in the design, execution and outcome of our trial—an outcome that will define the future of our Company and, we believe,

the future treatment of B-cell non-Hodgkin's lymphoma.

P oy

John P. Longenecker, Ph.D.
President & Chief Executive Officer

Sincerely,
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Cautionary Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

This annual report on Form 10-K contains forward-looking statements that involve many risks and uncertainties. These
statemnents relate to future events and our future performance and are based on current expectations, estimates, forecasts and
projections about the industry in which we operate and the beliefs and assumptions of our management. In some cases, you
can identify forward-looking statements by terms such as “would,” “could,” “may,” “will,” “should,” “expect,” “intend,”
“plan,” “anticipate,” “believe,” “estimate,” “predict,” “potential,” “targets,” “seck,” or “continue,” the negative of these terms
or other variations of such terms. In addition, any statements that refer to projections of our future financial performance, our
anticipated growth and trends in our business and other characterizations of future events or circumstances, are forward-
looking statements. These statements are only predictions based upon assumptions that are believed to be reasonable at the
time, and are subject to risk and uncertainties. Therefore, actual events or results may differ materially and adversely frora
those expressed in any forward-looking statement. In evaluating these statements, you should specifically consider the ricks
described in Item 1A of Part I and elsewhere in this Form 10-K. These factors may cause our actual results to differ
materially from any forward-looking statements. Except as required by law, we undertake no obligatton to publicly update or
revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise.

PARTI
Item 1. Business
Overview

We are a biopharmaceutical company focused on the development and commercialization of targeted immunotherapies for
the treatment of cancer and other diseases of the immune system. We have developed a proprietary technology that enables
us to manufacture active immunotherapy products that are designed to stimulate a patient’s immune system to mount a
specific and sustained response to disease. Our lead product candidate, FavId®, is an active immunotherapy for the treatment
of B-cell non-Hodgkin’s lymphoma, or NHL. We initiated a randomized, placebo-controlled, double-blind pivotal Phase 3
clinical trial of Favld in patients with follicular B-cell NHL in July 2004 and completed patient enrollment in January 2006
with 349 patients randomized into the trial. In January 2006 we announced that we received Fast Track designation from the
U.S. Food and Drug Administration, or FDA, for Favld.

Favld is being developed for use following treatment with existing standards of care to extend time to disease progression, or
TTP, in patients with B-cell NHL. Our Phase 3 clinical trial is designed to evaluate FavId’s ability to extend TTP in patients
with follicular B-cell NHL following treatment with Rituxan®, which is the current standard of care for indolent B-cell NHL.
Follicular B-cell NHL is the most common form of the indolent disease. We presented the results of an interim analysis cfa
secondary endpoint, response rate improvement, in our Phase 3 clinical trial of Favld at the American Socicty of
Hematology, or ASH, Annual Meeting in Orlando, Florida, in December 2006. While our independent Data Monitoring
Committee concluded that the interim analysis did not demonstrate a statistically significant difference between treatment
and control groups for the secondary endpoint, we were encouraged by the high rate of complete remissions in the blinded
data, which we believe indicates that we have enrolled an appropriate population for an assessment of our primary endpoint,
TTP. Analysis of TTP is event-driven and is currently projected to occur during the fourth quarter of 2007,

In addition to our pivotal Phase 3 clinical trial, Favld has been evaluated in several multi-center, open-label Phase 2 clinizal
trials involving more than 130 patients. Long-term follow-up data from our 89-patient Phase 2 clinical trial of Favld
following Rituxan therapy in patients with follicular B-cell NHL suggest that the administration of FavId following Rituxan
may extend TTP compared to historical data of Rituxan alone. In particular, the data showed that patients who had a clinical
response to Rituxan and then received Favld had not reached median TTP 37 months from the end of patient enrollment.
Furthermore, 1 lof the 13 patients in the trial who converted to complete remission following the initiation of Favld remained
in complete remission as of January 2007.

We believe that our proprietary technology will enable us to manufacture FavId in a timely and cost-effective manner and
will therefore allow us to offer a treatment option not currently available to physicians and patients.

We believe Favld may be effective in treating other types of B-cell NHL. Four additional Phase 2 clinical trials of Favld are
ongoing. One of these clinical trials is being conducted under a separate physician-sponsored Investigational New Drug, or
IND, application in the United States. Moreover, we believe our active immunotherapy expertise and proprietary
manufacturing technology may enable us to develop additional product candidates for other oncology indications, such as T-




cell lymphoma. In June 2006, we received an allowance from the FDA for an IND for our second product candidate, FAV-
201, for the treatment of cutaneous T-cell lymphoma. We have retained exclusive worldwide commercialization rights to all
of our product candidates.

We were incorporated in Delaware in January 2000.
The Immune System

The immune system is the body’s major defense against foreign pathogens, such as viruses and bacteria. The principal cells
that make up the immune system are termed white blood cells. A subset of white blood cells known as lymphocytes is
essential in generating an effective immune response to disease-causing agents. Lymphocytes consist primarily of B-cells and
T-cells, which normally recognize and respond to antigens found within proteins derived from foreign pathogens. The B-cell
receptor that recognizes an antigen is called an antibody. Once B-cells recognize antigens, they initiate a sequence of events
that results in the immune system’s production of large amounts of antibodies specific to that antigen. These antibodies then
circulate throughout the body and bind to their target antigen, thereby flagging pathogens for destruction. This type of
immune response is known as the antibody-based, or humoral, immune response,

T-cells are responsible for carrying out what is known as the cell-mediated immune response. T-cell receptors recognize
antigens presented on the surface of other cells. When a T-cell recognizes its target, it responds in one of two ways. Either it
destroys the target directly, or it produces a variety of proteins that cause the growth and activation of itself and other T-cells
and B-cells, which can then destroy the target.

Although any one B-cell or T-cell can recognize and respond to only a single antigen, the human immune system has evolved
such that the collective B-cell and T-cell populations can respond to virtually every possible foreign pathogen that a person
may encounter in his or her lifetime. Furthermore, the humoral and cell-mediated immune responses have an additional
feature of “memory,” which enables B-cells and T-cells to recall an interaction with a foreign antigen and to respond to this
antigen in a more rapid and aggressive fashion in the future.

The immune system is generally very effective in destroying pathogens-viruses, bacteria, or other foreign microorganisms
that it recognizes as foreign. For this reason, a properly functioning immune system is highly regulated to ensure that its
destructive power is not directed against normal tissue. If this regulation breaks down, an immune response may be generated
against normal tissue, which can lead to autoimmune diseases, such as multiple sclerosis, rheumatoid arthritis and tupus. In
the case of cancer, this strict regulation of the immune system may prevent an effective immune response from being
mounted because of the body’s inability to distinguish the cancer as foreign. Researchers believe that teaching the immune
system to recognize the proteins associated with cancer cells as foreign will enable the immune system to identify and
eliminate cancers, such as lymphoma.

Immunotherapy

Immunotherapy is designed to use a person’s immune system to fight diseases, including cancer. Immunotherapy enables the
immune system to target and destroy diseased cells and has far fewer side effects than other therapies, such as surgery,
chemotherapy and radiation therapy. There are two types of immunotherapy used to treat cancer: passive immunotherapy and
active immunotherapy.

Passive immunotherapy utilizes large doses of infused antibodies that bind to antigens primarily expressed by a tumor cell
and by few or no normal cells. These antibodies circulate throughout the bloodstream, binding to antigens on targeted cells,
thereby flagging them for destruction. One of the most widely used passive immunotherapies for the treatment of B-cell NHL
is Rituxan, either alone or in combination with chemotherapy. Despite their widespread use in fighting cancer, passive
immunotherapies such as Rituxan suffer from significant limitations, including a limited duration of efficacy and the
development of resistance. Additional passive immunotherapies have attempted to overcome the shortcomings of Rituxan by
linking antibodies to radioactive molecules that can directly destroy the cell to which the antibody is bound. However,
improvements in time to disease progression, if any, have been modest.

Active immunotherapy teaches the patient’s own immune system to recognize and fight cancer. Active immunotherapy is
designed to program the immune system to generate a sustained and robust humoral (B-cell) and cell-mediated (T-cell)
immune response. Idiotype immunotherapy, including our preduct candidate, Favld, for the treatment of B-ceil NHL, is an
example of active immunotherapy. In the case of B-cell NHL, the antibody protein made by a person’s B-cell NHL is used as




a target for immune attack. The unique antigens in this antibody protein are referred to as the idiotype. The immune system
can differentiate between lymphoma cells and normal B-cells based on their idiotype. As a result, following successful
idiotype immunotherapy, a patient’s immune response is specific to their B-cell [ymphoma.

Development of Active Idiotype Immunotherapy

Active idiotype immunotherapy has been studied in patients with B-cell NHL since the late 1980’s and has shown substantial
promise in clinical trials. Trials conducted at the Stanford University Medical Center and the NCI evaluated the use of active
idiotype immunotherapy in treating patients with indolent B-cell NHL. The results suggest that active idiotype
immunotherapy significantly increases the duration of response in patients previously placed into remission with
chemotherapy. Remission is defined as at least a 50% reduction in tumor burden. The immunotherapy administered in both
the Stanford and NCI trials was sitnilar to FavId in that it involved the combination of an idiotype protein derived from a
patient’s tumor with a foreign protein, keyhole limpet hemocyanin, or KLH. KLH is a protein derived from shellfish that

elicits a strong immune response.

In the Stanford trial, 21 of 41 patients treated with idiotype immunotherapy mounted an immune response to their idiotype
protein. The median TTP in these patients was calculated to be 7.9 years, compared to a median TTP of 1.3 years for the
patients who failed to mount an immune response. For purposes of this trial, TTP was defined as the interval between the
date of last dose of chemotherapy and the recurrence of disease. The median TTP for the responding patients was calculated
based on available data using a statistical method known as Kaplan-Meier analysis, which allows for the estimation of a
median time when not all of the patients have reached the event being measured at the time of analysis. The results from this
trial were published in the medical journal Blood in May 1997.

In an attempt to increase the idiotype-specific immune response, the NCI trial supplemented the idiotype immunotherapy
with granulocyte macrophage colony stimulating factor, or GM-CSF, a white blood cell growth factor designed to enhance
the immune response. Lymphoma-specific immune responses were reported for 19 of the 20 patients in the trial, and the most
recent update from this trial in December 2003 indicates that with a median follow-up time of 9.2 years, 45% of patients
remain in continuous complete remission with an overall survival rate of 90%. The trial also showed that the immunotherzapy
converted eight of 11 patients tested to a molecular remission, which means no evidence of tumeor could be seen even at the
more sensitive level of DNA detection. The preliminary results from the NCI trial were published in the medical journal
Nature Medicine in QOctober 1999, and the most recent update from this trial was published in the medical journal Blood in

November 2003.

Barriers to Commercialization

Although the Stanford and NCI clinical trials demonstrated favorable results, substantial manufacturing difficulties have
limited further development of an active idiotype immunotherapeutic approach to the treatment of B-cell NHL. The
manufacturing process used to produce the idiotype immunotherapies studied at Stanford and the NCI has lengthy and
inconsistent production timelines and is labor-intensive, with a reported manufacturing failure rate as high as 15%. As a
result, we believe this process would make active idiotype immunotherapies produced using this process difficult to

commercialize.
Our Solution for the Commercial Production of Active Idiotype Immunotherapy

We have developed a proprietary technology that we believe enables us to overcome historical limitations to the
manufacturing and commercialization of active idiotype immunotherapies. Qur technology utilizes an insect-cell virus that
carries genetic information that is identical to a patient’s lymphoma. By introducing this virus into an insect cell ling, we can
produce sufficient quantities of idiotype protein for our immunotherapy. We believe our manufacturing process has the

following benefits:

® Rapid Production Cycle. Our unique and proprietary manufacturing process allows for the manufacture of Favld
for delivery to patients in eight weeks. We believe our production cycle time is a number of months shorter than
previously reported cycle times for manufacturing idiotype immunotherapies for B-cell NHL. Our production
timeline allows us to administer FavId at what we believe is the optimal time following treatment with Rituxan.




* Reliable Manufacturing. Our underlying production method for each patient will not change regardless of the
number of units of Favld produced. This small-scale unit operation is easily replicated to produce multiple patient
therapies simultaneously without the risks associated with traditional scale-up for commercial production.

» Automation. This small-scale unit operation is amenable to automation. The time required to identify the genetic
information used to construct the insect-cell expression vector has been reduced by technological advances,
including automation, some of which are the result of the human genome project. We believe that many other steps
in the production of Favld can be automated.

Our production process requires standardized small volumes, is readily reproducible, and requires limited production time.
As a result, we believe our cost of production can allow for a commercially viable product with gross margins similar to
those seen for other biopharmaceuticals and enable physicians to use Favld in concert with all existing standards of care for
indolent B-cell NHL, including Rituxan.

Our Development Programs

The chart below summarizes the status of ongoing, recently completed and currently planned clinical and preclinical
development programs. We have retained exclusive worldwide commercialization rights to all of our product candidates.

Product Indication Patient Population Status
Favld
Following Rituxan Follicular B-cell Treatment-naive or Phase 3 trial enrollment complete: analysis of

Following Rituxan

Single agent

Following
autologous stem
cell transplant

With maintenance
Rituxan

Single agent

Following prior
therapy

FAV201
Single agent

Autoimmune
Disease

NHL

Follicular B-cell
NHL

Indolent B-cell NHL

Indolent B-cell NHL

Indolent B-cell NHL

Non-follicular B-cell
NHL

Follicular B-cell
NHL
T-cell lymphoma

Not applicable

relapsed/refractory
patients(1)
Treatment-naive or
relapsed/refractory
patients
Relapsed/refractory
patients

Patients eligible for
autologous stem cell
transplant
Treatment-paive
patients
Treatment-naive or
relapsed/refractory
patients

Patients who progressed
in our Phase 3 trial
without receiving FavId

Previously treated
patients
Not applicable

primary endpoint, TTP, anticipated in the fourth
quarter of 2007

Phase 2 trial enroliment complete: patients in
long-term follow-up

Phase 2 trial enrollment complete: patients in
long-term follow-up

Phase 2 trial enrollment complete(2)

Phase 2 trial enrolling patients

Phase 2 trial enrolling patients

Phase 2 trial enrolling patients

Received allowance from FDA for IND

Preclinical development

(1) Patients are considered relapsed if their lymphoma has retuned after a response to prior therapy. Patients are
considered refractory if they have not responded to prior treatments.

(2) This trial is physician-sponsored, which means that a physician, rather than Favrille, is responsible for managing the
conduct of the trial and the resulting data. We provided Favld at our own expense for use in this physician-sponsored

trial.




Favld for B-Cell NHL

Overview

Our lead product candidate, Favld, is an active immunotherapy that is based upon unique genetic information extracted from
a patient’s tumor. We initiated a pivotal Phase 3 clinical trial evaluating FavId in treatment-naive or relapsed or refractory
follicular B-cell NHL patients following treatment with Rituxan in July 2004 and completed patient enrollment in January
2006. Follicular lymphoma accounts for the majority of all indolent B-cell NHL cases. In addition to our pivotal Phase 3
clinical trial, Favid has been evaluated in several multi-center, open-label Phase 2 clinical trials of Favld involving more than
130 indolent B-cell NHL patients. We also have Phase 2 clinical trials of FavId ongoing in other B-cell NHL indications. One
of these clinical trials is being conducted under a separate physician-sponsored IND in the United States. We currently retain
exclusive worldwide commercialization rights to Favld.

Market Opportunity

The American Cancer Society cites NHL as the sixth most commeon form of cancer and the sixth leading cause of death
among cancers in the United States. The American Cancer Society predicts that there will be about 63,190 new cases of NHL
in the U.S. in 2007, and the NCI has estimated that approximately 332,000 patients suffer from this disease. B-cell NHL is a
cancer of B-cell lymphocytes, the body’s white blood cells principally responsible for fighting disease. Approximately 85%
of NHL patients in the United States have B-cell NHL. We believe that approximately half of these patients have the indolent
form of the disease. Although indolent B-cell NHL is slow-growing, it is incurable with existing therapies and inevitably
fatal. The median survival time for patients diagnosed with advanced stages of indolent B-cell NHL is estimated to be

between seven and ten years.

Current Treatments

Overview. B-cell NHL is composed of a diverse group of malignancies with varying patterns of behavior and responses to
treatment. Both the prognosis for patients with this disease, and the treatment that they are likely to receive, depend on the
histologic type and stage. B-cell NHL is commonly divided into two groups: indolent NHL and aggressive NHL. Indolen: B-
cell NHL has a relatively good prognosis, with a median survival as long as 10 years. Early-stage indolent B-cell NHL can be
effectively treated and often cured with radiation therapy alone. Patients with advanced stage indolent B-cell NHL are not
considered curable but generally respond to treatment with a remission. These remissions are generally temporary, however,
and patients require additional treatments when they relapse. Aggressive B-cell NHL has a shorter natural history. Only 50%
of these patients can be cured with chemotherapy alone or with combinations of chemotherapy and Rituxan. If patients
relapse after treatment, the vast majority of relapses occur in the first two years following therapy.

Chemotherapy. Prior to Rituxan’s availability, chemotherapy was traditionally used as the primary therapy for most
patients with B-cell NHL. Chemotherapy is typically administered in repeated cycles over three to eight months and can
substantially reduce the amount of lymphoma and often achieve remission. Patients receiving chemotherapy generally
experience a number of side effects, including fatigue, nausea, hair loss and increased risk of infection. These side effects
may result in the need for supportive care, including additional therapies and hospitalization. Patients also experience lat
side effects such as sterility, myelodysplastic syndromes, second cancers, and heart dysfunction. The toxicity and
inconvenience of chemotherapy can impose a heavy strain on a patient’s overall quality of life.

Passive Inmunotherapy. Several passive immunotherapy products have been approved for the treatment of B-cell NHL,
including Rituxan, Zevalin and Bexxar. Rituxan, a monoclonal antibody, is the leading passive immunotherapy approvel for
the treatment of B-cell NHL and is being used for both indolent and aggressive B-cell NHL. Standard treatment with Rituxan
alone involves four weekly intravenous infusions over a 22-day period. Rituxan is considered to be significantly less toxic to
the bone marrow than chemotherapy. Unfortunately, as with patients with indolent B-cell NHL who receive chemotherapy,
patients treated with Rituxan eventually relapse. Several clinical trials have suggested that additional doses of Rituxan asi a
maintenance therapy can improve the time before patients with follicular B-cell NHL relapse. In addition, combinations of
Rituxan and chemotherapeutic or immunostimulatory drugs at various doses and schedules may provide patients with an.
increase in TTP over that expected with Rituxan alone. Rituxan can induce remission in approximately 50% of patients ‘with
indolent B-cell NHL and, when used in combination with chemotherapy, in approximately 80% of patients with follicular B-
cell NHL. In these responding patients, the remission lasts approximately one to three years. When administered with
chemotherapy to patients with aggressive B-cell NHL, Rituxan can increase the cure rate and the TTP.




Rituxan used either alone or in combination with another therapy is the current standard of care for the treatment of B-cell
NHL patients, Rituxan is also approved for treatment of rheumatoid arthritis. Sales of Rituxan for all indications have grown
from $162 million in 1998 to approximately $2.1 billion in 2006. Our clinical registration strategy involves the
administration of Favld to the group of patients who would receive Rituxan, that is combine active and passive
immunotherapies. Since Rituxan is the current standard of care, we believe this approach of Favld used in combination with
Rituxan treatment will altow the largest number of patients with B-cell NHL to benefit,

Clinical Development

Pivotal Phase 3 Clinical Trial - Favld Following Rituxan. We initiated a Phase 3 clinical trial of Favld following Rituxan
induction therapy in patients with follicular B-cell NHL in July 2004 and completed enrollment in January 2006 with 349
patients randomized into the trial. The randomized, double-blind, placebo-controlled trial is being conducted at 67 oncology
centers and more than 100 sites across the U.S. Approximately 80 percent of the patients enrolled are treatment-naive, with
the remainder either relapsed from or refractory to prior therapies. The primary endpoint of the trial is TTP, which in this
protocol is defined as the time that elapses between randomization and disease progression.

We obtain tumor cells via biopsy from each patient to establish the genetic profile of the tumor for our use in manufacturing
the patient’s Favld. In addition, a CT scan is conducted in order to measure tumor burden before Rituxan treatment. Each
patient then receives the standard four doses of Rituxan alone at one-week intervals while the patient’s Favld is being
manufactured. Five weeks after the last dose of Rituxan is administered, the patient is re-evaluated and a CT scan is
conducted to assess the patient’s response to Rituxan. A patient whose disease remains stable or improves following
treatment with Rituxan is randomized to receive either Favld with GM-CSF or placebo with GM-CSF, During the induction
phase, randomized patients receive monthly injections of Favld or placebo for six months. If a patient’s lymphoma remains
under control after the induction phase, the patient receives maintenance injections of Favld or placebo given every other
month for a year and then every third month until the time of disease progression. Throughout the trial, patients receive CT
scans every three months to determine whether their lymphoma is under control. During the trial, patients do not receive any
cancer therapy other than that administered in the trial. However, once a patient’s disease progresses, the patient’s
participation in the trial terminates.

We presented the results of an interim analysis of a secondary endpoint, response rate improvement, in our Phase 3 clinical
trial of Favld at the American Society of Hematology, or ASH, Annual Meeting in Orlando in December 2006. While our
independent Data Monitoring Committee concluded that the interim analysis did not demonstrate a statistically significant
difference between treatment and control groups for the secondary endpoint, we were encouraged by the high rate of
complete remissions in the blinded data, which we believe indicates that we have enrolled an appropriate population for an
assessment of our primary endpoint, TTP. Analysis of TTP is event driven and is currently projected to occur during the
fourth quarter of 2007. ¢

We have a Special Protocol Assessment, or SPA, from the FDA for our Phase 3 clinical trial. In the SPA process, the FDA
reviewed the design, size and planned analysis of our Phase 3 clinical trial and provided comments regarding the irial’s
adequacy to form a basis for approval of a Biologics Licensing Application, or BLA, if the trial is successful in meeting its
predetermined objectives. The FDA’s written agreement is binding, except in limited circumstances, such as when a
substantial scientific issue essential to determining the safety or effectiveness of a product candidate is identified after the
Phase 3 clinical trial is commenced.

In January 2006 we announced that we received Fast Track designation from the FDA for Favld. Fast Track designation is
granted for a new drug that is intended to treat a serious or life-threatening condition and demonstrates the potential to
address an unmet medical need and as a result is eligible for priority review by the FDA. This action by the FDA has the
potential to save Favrille valuable time in the regulatory approval process and serves as an acknowledgement of the potential
for Favld in the treatment of foliicular B-cell NHL.

Phase 2 Clinical Trial — Favld Following Rituxan. We initiated a Phase 2 clinical trial of Favld in patients with follicular
B-cell NHL who were candidates for Rituxan therapy in June 2002, Initially, this trial was limited to relapsed or refractory
patients who had previously undergone treatment with Rituxan, chemotherapy or both. In April 2003, we expanded the entry
criteria for this trial to include patients with nio prior treatment for their lymphoma. The open-label Phase 2 trial was
conducted at 20 sites. Enrollment in this trial was completed in December 2003. A total of 103 patients were enrolled in the
trial, of which 89 had stable disease or a better response to Rituxan and received Favld, including 54 who were relapsed from
or refractory to prior treatments and 35 who were treatment-naive.




We obtained tumor cells via biopsy from each patient to establish the genetic profile of the tumor for our use in
manufacturing the patient’s Favid. In addition, a CT scan was conducted in order to measure tumor burden before Rituxan
treatment. Each patient then received four doses of Rituxan alone at one-week intervals while the patient’s Favld was being
manufactured. Approximately eight weeks after the last dose of Rituxan, the patient was re-evaluated and a CT scan was
conducted to assess the patient’s response to Rituxan. Patients whose disease remained stable or improved following Rituxan
treatment received monthly injections of Favld and GM-CSF for six months, If a patient remains progression free after this
induction period, the patient continues to receive maintenance injections of Favld given every other month for a year and
then every third month until the time of disease progression. Throughout the trial, patients receive CT scans every three
months to determine whether their lymphoma is under control. During the trial, patients do not receive any cancer therapy
other than that administered in the trial. However, once a patient’s disease progresses, the patient’s participation in the trial
terminates.

Long-term follow-up data from this Phase 2 trial were reported at the ASH Annual Meeting in Atlanta, Georgia, in December
2006, In an oral presentation, co-primary investigator Jane N. Winter, M.D., Feinberg School of Medicine at Northweste:n
University, reported that the administration of Favld following Rituxan induction therapy appears to extend TTP comparzd to
historical data in patients with follicular B-cell NHL. In particular, the data showed that patients who had a clinical response
to Rituxan and then received Favld had not reached median TTP 37 months from the end of patient enrollment. Furthermrore,
11 of the 13 patients in the trial who converted to complete remission following the initiation of Favld remained in complete
remission as of January 2007,

The overall clinical response rate in the Phase 2 trial increased from 47% at month 3 following Rituxan alone to 63%
following the initiation of FavId.

The positive interim results found in this Phase 2 clinical trial do not guarantee final results, and our positive assessment of
Favld in this clinical trial could differ from our assessment of Favld following completion of this trial or the pending Phese 3
clinical trial. We believe an analysis of the characteristics of those patients in our trial whose disease relapsed compared 0
those whose disease had not allowed us to optimize the design of our pivotal Phase 3 clinical trial.

Phase 2 Clinical Trial - Favld as a Single Therapeutic Agent in Relapsed or Refractory NHL Patients. In

September 2002, we completed enrollment of a Phase 2 clinical tria) evaluating Favld as a single therapeutic agent n
indolent B-cell NHL patients who were either relapsed from, or refractory to, prior treatments. The trial was conducted at
multiple sites and was designed to determine whether use of Favld alone could stimulate an immune response and whether
this response would result in a clinical benefit. We obtained tumor cells via biopsy from each patient to establish the genstic
profile of the tumor for our use in manufacturing the patient’s Favld. In addition, a CT scan was conducted in order to
measure tumor burden before Favld treatment. Each patient received monthly injections of Favld and GM-CSF for six
months. If a patient’s lymphoma remains under control after the induction period, the patient receives maintenance injections
of FavId given every other month for a year and then every third month until TTP.

Throughout the trial, patients receive CT scans every three months to determine whether their lymphoma is under control.
During the trial, patients do not receive any cancer therapy other than that administered in the trial. However, once a patient’s
disease progresses, the patient’s participation in the trial terminates.

Results from the single agent trial, published in the July 2006 issue of the Journal of Clinical Oncology, showed that Favld as
a single agent is active and well tolerated in previously treated and relapsed patients with indolent B-cell NHL. The most
common adverse events reported were mild to moderate injection site reactions. The median TTP for the 31 evaluable
patients was 13.5 months. In January 2007, one patient remained progression free for 56 months.

These results are encouraging compared to results from similar patients treated with other lymphoma biologic therapies. In a
clinical trial conducted by Witzig and reported in the May 2002 issue of the Journal of Clinical Oncology, patients with
follicular NHL treated with Rituxan alone had a median TTP of 10.2 months and a median duration of response of

12.1 months. In addition, patients with follicular NHL treated with Zevalin had a median TTP of 12.6 months with a median
duration of response of 18.5 months. Similarly, in a trial conducted by McLaughlin and reported in the August 1998 issue of
the Journal of Clinical Oncology, patients treated with Rituxan alone had a TTP of 9.0 months. Median duration of response
in that trial was 11.2 months.




Single

Agent Witzig McLaughlin Witzig
Favid Rituxan Rituxan Zevalin
31 58 166 55
13.5 10.2 9.0 12.6

This clinical trial demonstrated that Favld as a single agent is well tolerated and has activity in pretreated patients with
relapsed indolent B-cell NHL. Patients with two or fewer prior therapies and with tumor burdens of less than 50 square
centimeters at initiation of the trial appeared more likely to respond to administration of Favid than more heavily pretreated
patients or patients with larger tumors.

Phase 2 Clinical Trial — Favld Following Autologous Stem Cell Transplantation. Patient enrollment for a physician-
sponsored Phase 2 clinical trial evaluating Favld following high-dose chemotherapy and autologous stem cell transplantation
in patients with NHL began in November 2000. Autologous stem cell transplantation involves removing vital blood cells
from a patient before administering large doses of chemotherapy. After chemotherapy, the blood cells are returned to the
patient to speed recovery from the chemotherapy treatment. This trial, now closed to patient enrollment, is currently being
conducted at two sites.

This trial is designed to evaluate the ability of Favld to induce humoral and cell-mediated immune responses, and to induce
or maintain complete clinical or molecular remission, following autologous stem cell transplantation, In addition, the trial is
evaluating the correlation of specific T-cell populations with immune responsiveness to Favld, as well as the safety of Favid
following autologous stem cell transplantation. After we obtain tumor ceils via biopsy from each patient to establish the
genetic profile of the tumor for our use in manufacturing the patient’s Favld, patients undergo autologous stem cell
transplantation using standard regimens. At three months following transplantation, patients receive the first of five monthly
injections of Favld. Patients are assessed at fixed intervals for safety, development of immune responses to their tumor
idiotype, and for evidence of molecular remissions.

Interim data from this trial were presented at the annual meetings of the American Society for Blood and Marrow
Transplantation (ASBMT) and the Center for International Blood and Marrow Transplant Research (CIBMTR) in Keystone,
Colo., in February 2007. A total of 15 patients were treated in the trial, of which nine remained in complete remission up to
61 months post-transplant. The median number of prior regimens for all patients was three, ranging from one to 10. The data
showed that the majority of patients in the trial developed a rapid and tumor-specific immune response, often measured
following a single dose of FavId.

Phase 2 Clinical Trial - Favld Combined with a Maintenance Rituxan Schedule. Patient enrollment for a multi-center,
physician-sponsored Phase 2 clinical trial evaluating Favld in combination with maintenance Rituxan for the treatment of
indolent B-cell NHL began in May 2004. We assumed sponsorship of the IND in August 2004. The trial is open to treatment-
naive patients with indolent B-cell NHL and is designed to enroll a total of 56 patients.

This trial is intended to demonstrate an improvement over the results of certain prior trials using maintenance Rituxan for the
treatment of indolent B-cell NHL. In these prior trials patients received four weekly doses of Rituxan every six months for
two years. The trials demonstrated a median TTP of 34 months for patients with indelent B-cell NHL treated with
maintenance Rituxan. Despite this long TTP, patients still experienced a high relapse rate and do not appear to be cured of
their disease. We believe that by incorporating Favld into a schedule of maintenance Rituxan, patients may experience an
increased TTP beyond what would be expected from maintenance Rituxan alone.

This trial is designed to evaluate the safety of this regimen, and to assess its efficacy, based on the endpoints of response rate
and event-free survival. Event-free survival is defined as the time period from the start of Rituxan to the time of disease
progression or death. We obtain tumor cells via biopsy from each patient to establish the genetic profile of the tumer for our
use in manufacturing the patient’s Favld. In addition, a CT scan is conducted in order to measure tumor burden before the
start of Rituxan treatment. Patients receive the same dose and schedule of maintenance Rituxan as was administered in the
prior trials of maintenance Rituxan. Favld is incorporated into this treatment regimen starting on the third month and is
administered monthly for the first 12 months, every other month for the second 12 months, and every three months thereafter.
Favld is not administered during those months when patients receive Rituxan. With each Favld administration, GM-CSF is
administered on four consecutive days beginning on the day of such Favld administration. Throughout the trial, patients
receive CT scans every three months to determine whether their lymphoma is under control. During the trial, patients do not
receive any cancer therapy other than that administered in the trial. However, once a patient’s disease progresses, the
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patient’s participation in the trial terminates.

Phase 2 Clinical Trial - FavId in Non-follicular B-cell NHL. Patient enrollment for a Phase 2 clinical trial evaluating
Favld in patients with non-follicular B-cell NHL was initiated in Europe in June 2005. The trial is open to patients with
various non-follicular lymphomas who are either treatment-naive for their lymphoma, relapsed or refractory following prior
chemotherapy for their lymphoma, or relapsed following a prior response to Rituxan. The trial is expected to enroll 15
patients, but enrollment may be expanded if activity is seen in any specific patient subset.

This trial is designed to evaluate the efficacy of FavId in patients with non-follicular indolent NHL, based on overall response
rate, duration of response, time to progression and event-free survival. We will obtain tumor cells via biopsy from each
patient to establish the genetic profile of the tumor for our use in manufacturing the patient’s Favld. In addition, a CT scan
will be conducted in order to measure tumor burden before Favld treatment. Favld will be administered monthly for the first
six months, every other month for the next 12 months, and every three months thereafter until disease progression. With each
Favld administration, GM-CSF will be administered on four consecutive days beginning on the day of such Favid
administration. Patients in the trial who need immediate therapy may receive Rituxan prior to administration of Favld and
GM-CSF, while patients with more indolent disease that is not in need of immediate treatment may receive Favld and GM-
CSF administered as a single agent. Throughout the trial, patients will receive CT scans every three months to determine
whether their lymphoma is under control. During the trial, patients will not receive any cancer therapy other than that
administered in the trial. However, once a patient’s disease progresses, the patient’s participation in the trial will terminate.

Phase 2 Clinical Trial - Favld Following Prior Therapy. We continue to enroll patients in our Phase 2 clinical trial of
Favld in patients who have received prior therapy for their follicular B-cell NHL. This trial was designed primarily to provide
Favld to those patients in our pivotal Phase 3 clinical trial who did not receive Favid. This would include patients who
progressed after receiving Rituxan, and those patients who were randomized to placebo and later progressed. This trial is
being conducted at sites participating in our Phase 3 clinical trial.

Prior to receiving Favld, these patients will be evaluated by their treating physician. If the physician feels that the patient is a
candidate for receiving Favld alone, then we will provide the Favld previously manufactured for them in the pivotal trial for
use as a single agent. In those patients who may require a more immediate reduction in the amount of their lymphoma, the
treating physician will have the option of administering salvage treatment such as chemotherapy prior to the administration of
Favld. We expect that many of these patients will be candidates for retreatment with Rituxan prior to starting Favld. In these
patients we will be able to compare the TTP which occurs following their receipt of Rituxan on the pivotal trial with their
TTP following the receipt of both Rituxan and Favld on this Phase 2 trial. We believe that this comparison will provide
further insight into any contribution by Favld to extending TTP following treatment with Rituxan.

Safety. In November 2006, our independent Data Monitoring Board met and reviewed safety data from our pivotal Phase 3
¢linical trial of Favld and recommended that we continue the trial as planned.

FAV-201 for T-cell Lymphoma

Our product candidate FAV-201 is a patient-specific T-cell receptor-based immunotherapy. In June 2006, we received an
allowance from the FDA for an IND for FAV-201. We intend to initiate a Phase 1/2 clinical trial evaluating the safety and
biologic activity of FAV-201 in patients with cutaneous T-cell lymphoma. The trial will build upon preclinical data that
suggest activity of an immunotherapy based on a T-cell receptor. Patients will be observed for evidence of specific cell-
mediated and humoral immune responses to FAV-201, and any clinical responses will also be documented. The multi-center
trial is expected to enroll approximately 30 patients.

Autoimmune Disease Candidate

Autoimmune disease occurs when the body’s immune system mistakenly attacks and destroys body tissue that it believas to
be foreign. In certain instances, autoimmune disease can result from an outgrowth of a limited number of disease-causing
lymphocytes that recognize self antigens. Preclinical studies have shown that immunotherapies may prevent or treat
autoimmune diseases. We have initiated preclinical studies to evaluate whether immunotherapies manufactured in a fashion
similar to FAV-201 will be effective in preventing or treating autoimmune disease, with an initial focus on multiple sclzrosis.

il




Strategy

Our goal is to become a leading biopharmaceutical company focused on the development and commercialization of targeted
immunotherapies for the treatment of cancer and other diseases of the immune system. Key elements of our strategy for
achieving this goal are to:

e Complete Clinical Development and Obtain Regulatory Approval for Favid We have completed enrollment in a
pivotal Phase 3 clinical trial evaluating FavId for the treatment of follicular B-cell NHL. The trial is under an SPA
from the FDA. We also received Fast Track designation for Favld from the FDA, which may result in an expedited
review by the FDA. Analysis of the primary endpoint, TTP, is event-driven and is currently projected to occur
during the fourth quarter of 2007.

* Utilize Our Proprietary Technology to Develop Additional Product Candidates. We believe that active
immunotherapy may have applications in a number of additional diseases beyond B-cell NHL, such as T-cell
lymphoma and autoimmune diseases, including multiple sclerosis. For example, we are currently studying a second
product candidate, FAV-201, for the treatment of T-cell lymphoma and received an allowance from the FDA for an
IND for FAV-201 in June 2006. In addition, we have initiated a preclinical development program to identify active
immunotherapies for the treatment of multiple sclerosis.

¢ Retain Commercialization Rights to Our Oncology Products. We intend to focus our internal development efforts
on Favid and other encology product candidates. We hold exclusive worldwide commercialization rights to Favld
without any obligation to pay royalties to any third party on sales. We currently plan to retain United States
commercialization rights to these product candidates at least until we analyze data from the Phase 3 clinical trials
(although we may consider partnering Favld sooner if we determine that circumstances warrant doing so). At that
point, we expect to assess whether to market and sell Favld and future products in the United States directly through
an internal sales force or together with a co-promotion partner. We intend to seck a commercialization and
development partner outside of the United States. We intend to seek one or more collaborators to develop and
commercialize our product candidates and programs for chronic autoimmune diseases, such as multiple sclerosis, in
exchange for license fees, milestone payments and royalties.

» Expand our Product Portfolio Through In-Licensing and Acquisitions. We intend to capitalize upon our expertise

in immunology, oncology, immunotherapy, clinical development and regulatory affairs to in-license or acquire
complementary product candidates in various stages of development.
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Our process begins upon receipt of a patient’s lymphoma biopsy, which the treating physician sends to our manufacturing
facility. The process can be divided into the three phases described below.

Y

Ty

N

Gene Identification and Cloning

First, we perform a genetic profile of a sample of the patient’s tumor to identify and isolate the unique antibody genes that
correspond to the patient’s tumor idiotype. We then insert these antibody genes into our proprietary insect cell-specific
expression vectors. Our insect-cell expression vectors are DNA fragments that have all the genetic instructions needed for
directing the production of full-length, recombinant, monoclonal antibodies.

Cell Culture

The next step in the process involves the use of an insect cell-specific expression vector to produce the recombinant idiotype
that forms the basis for Favld. We insert the expression vector into a continually growing insect cell line, which converts this
genetic information into an insect cell virus, referred to as a baculovirus. We then add the baculovirus culture to a second
insect cell line that subsequently secretes high levels of idiotype protein. Within a few days, milligram quantities of this
idiotype protein are harvested. The cell culture medium used to grow the insect cells is completely devoid of any animal
products, which we believe enhances the safety of the final product.

Protein Purification and Formulation
Finally, we perform a multi-step process to purify the idiotype protein. Each step in this purification process results in

idiotype protein that is progressively more purified. In order to enhance the immune response, purified idiotype protein is
chemically linked to KLH. When the idiotype and KLH complex is injected subcutancously, the patient’s immune system
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1eacts to both the foreign KLH and the patient’s unique idiotype protein, We believe that, once activated, the patient’s
immune system will be able to recognize the idiotype protein on the cancer cell and more effectively fight the tumor.

Manufacturing Facility

We currently manufacture Favld for our clinical trials in our state-of-the-art, multi-product cGMP manufacturing facility
which consists of approximately 26,000 square feet of space in an 80,000 square-foot leased facility. In September 2004, we
received a manufacturing license from the California Department of Health Sciences. In November 2005, we signed an
amended lease agreement to expand capacity within our existing manufacturing facility to support commercial-scale
manufacturing of FavId®, This 80,000-square foot facility will be devoted to manufacturing and research and development,
and is intended to give us the capacity to produce Favld to meet commercial needs while continuing to support additional
clinical trials. We anticipate that the expanded capacity of our manufacturing facility will be sufficient to supply FavId for up
to 4,000 patients per year. In September 2006, we leased an adjacent 48,000-square foot facility to house our corporate
headquarters and warehousing operations. We anticipate that the commercial-scale manufacturing facility will be validated
and ready for an FDA pre-approval inspection by the fourth quarter of 2007.

Key Suppliers

We currently depend on single source suppliers for critical raw materials used in the manufacture of Favld. We purchase
KLH from biosyn Arzneimittel GmbH, or biosyn, which is currently the only supplier of KLH that has submitted a filing,
known as a drug master file, with the FDA. In November 2004, we entered into an eight-year supply and license agreement
with biosyn under which biosyn has agreed to supply us with KLH. We have purchased the required initial minimum supply
of KLH and we have committed to minimum annual KLH purchase requirements during commercialization of Favld. In
October 2006, we made a payment of $50,000 to biosyn for the achievement of a milestone. An additional apgregate of up to
$250,000 will be due upon the achievement of certain milestones, the timing of which is not known at this time. Either party
may terminate the supply agreement upon a breach by the other party that is not cured within 60 days or other events relating
to insolvency or bankruptcy. There may be no other supplier of KLH of suitable quality for our purposes. In addition, we
depend on a single source supplier for the cell growth media we use to produce Favld. We purchase this material from
Expression Systems LLC, which in turn obtains several of the components used in the cell growth media from sole suppliers.
Expression Systems LLC has submitted a drug master file with the FDA. We currently rely on purchase orders to obtain this
material and do not have a supply agreement with Expression Systems. We intend to qualify a second source for the cell
growth media or manufacture the cell growth media in house from commercially available raw materials but may not be able
to do so. The GM-CSF that we administer with Favld is commercially available only from Berlex Laboratories, Inc. In
February 2007, we entered into a clinical sopply and study agreement with Berlex for clinical trials performed in the United
States. The agreement provides for cooperation between Berlex and Favrille on future clinical development and regulatory
strategy relating to use of the two products in combination. GM-CSF is an FDA-approved and commercially available drug
that may be purchased by physicians. Our current strategy for initial commercialization of Favld involves the administration
of Favld following treatment with Rituxan, Rituxan is a passive immunotherapy for patients with NHL, which is also FDA-
approved and is commercially available solely from Genentech and Biogen Idec. We currently rely on physicians to order
and administer Rituxan to patients prior to the administration of Favld in cur registration trial.

Sales and Marketing

We intend to market and sell Favlid and future products in the United States either directly through an internal sales force or
together with a co-promotion partner. Because the community and institutional referral networks of cancer treatment
physicians in the United States are relatively small and well-established, we believe that a small, focused sales and marketing
organization will enable us to effectively penetrate our target markets. Qutside of the United States, we plan to establish
strategic collaborations for the distribution and marketing of FavId.

We may enter into collaboration agreements with third parties with respect to other product candidates we develop, which
may include co-marketing or co-promotion arrangements. Alternatively, we may grant exclusive marketing rights to one or
more strategic collaborators in exchange for upfront fees, future milestone payments and royalties on sales.

We are currently in the process of acquiring the resources and experience necessary to matket Favld or our other product
candidates ourselves. We currently have no arrangements for distribution of our product candidates, Qur future commercial
success will depend on our ability to establish our own sales and marketing infrastructure or to collaborate with third parties
that have greater sales and marketing experience and resources than our own.
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Competition

The development and commercialization of new pharmaceutical products for the treatment of cancer and autoimmune
diseases is quite competitive, and we expect to face competition from numerous sources, including major pharmaceutical
biotechnology companies, as well as specialty pharmaceutical companies and biotechnology companies worldwide. Many of
our competitors have substantially greater financial and technical resources and development, production and marketing
capabilities than we do. In addition, many of these companies have more experience than we do in preclinical testing, human
clinical trials and manufacturing of biologic therapeutics, as well as in obtaining FDA and foreign regulatory approvals. We
will also compete with academic institutions, governmental agencies and private organizations that are conducting research in
the fields of cancer and autoimmune discase. Competition among these entities to recruit and retain highly qualified
scientific, technical and professional personnel and consultants is also intense.

We are aware of a number of companies that are developing active immunotherapies to treat B-cell NHL. Genitope
Corporation is evaluating idiotype immunotherapies in clinical trials. Genitope is conducting a Phase 3 clinical trial of it3
active idiotype immunotherapy product candidate in patients with follicular B-cell NHL who are in first remission following
prior treatment with chemotherapy. Antigenics, Inc. completed a Phase 2 clinical trial evaluating its active immunotherapy
candidate in indolent B-cell NHL patients. The NCI is also conducting a Phase 3 clinical trial of an active idiotype
immunotherapy in collaboration with Biovest Inc., a subsidiary of Accentia Biopharmaceuticals.

Several companies are engaged in the development and commercialization of passive immunotherapy products for the
treatment of B-cell NHL that may compete with Favld. Genentech and Biogen Idec are co-marketing Rituxan for the
treatment of relapsed or refractory, indolent B-cell NHL. Biogen Idec is marketing Zevalin, its passive radioimmunotherapy
product, GlaxoSmithKline plc is marketing Bexxar, its passive radioimmunotherapy product.

The most recent advances in the treatment of B-cell NHL have involved the combination of existing products and changes to
approved schedules and doses, particularly for Rituxan. Numerous clinical trials teported in recent years have indicated that
additional doses of Rituxan and maintenance dosing of Rituxan can improve the time to progression in patients who respond
to therapy. Combination therapies involving chemotherapeutic or immuno-stimulatory drugs in combination with Rituxan at
various doses and schedules may provide patients with an increase in time to progression over that expected with Rituxan
alone. Accordingly, we may face competition as a result of developments in this area. New products are also in late stage
development in B-Cell NHL that could pose a competitive threat for Favld. Products of note are humanized versions of
Rituxan in development by Genentech and GlaxoSmithKline/Genmab, galiximab (anti-CD40) by Biogen Idec, Enzastavrin
by Eli Lilly and Velcade by Millenium.

Patents and Proprietary Rights

Our success will depend in large part on our ability to obtain and maintain patent protection for our products and
technologies, preserve trade secrets and operate without infringing the intellectual property rights of others. We intend to
prosecute and defend our intellectual property rights aggressively. Our policy is to seek patent protection for the inventions
that we consider important to the development of our business. Currently we own U.S. Patent No. 6,911,204 together with
four pending United States patent applications covering methods of treating immune system diseases, including B-cell and T-
cell lymphomas, using our proprietary immunotherapy production methods, as well as methods for combining the idiotype
immunotherapies with other therapies that are used to treat diseases of the immune system. We also have six issued patents
and over twenty patent applications pending outside of the United States. Our intellectual property related to T-cell receptor-
based immunotherapies includes an exclusive royalty-free license from the Sidney Kimme! Cancer Center to intellectual
property developed by Dr. Daniel Gold while he was employed there prior to joining us. We have responsibility for the filing,
prosecution and maintenance of patent rights associated with this license, but the intellectual property is jointly owned with
the Sidney Kimmel Cancer Center which holds a license to use the technology for non-commercial research and educational

purposes.

Although we believe these patent applications, if they issue as patents, will provide a competitive advantage, the patent
positions of pharmaceutical and biotechnology companies are highly uncertain and involve complex legal and factual
questions. We may not be able to develop patentable products or processes, and may not be able to obtain patents from
pending applications. Even if patent claims are allowed, the claims may not issue, or in the event of issuance, may not be
sufficient to protect our technology. In addition, any patents or patent rights we obtain may be circumvented, challenged or
invalidated by our competitors.
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While our product candidates are in clinical trials, and prior to commercialization, we believe our current activities in the
United States fall within the scope of the exemptions against patent infringement provided by 35 U.S.C. Section 271(e)
which covers activities related to developing information for submission to the FDA. As our product candidates progress
toward commercialization, the possibility of an infringement claim against us increases. While we attempt to ensure that our
product candidates and the methods we employ to manufacture them do not infringe other parties’ patents and proprietary
rights, competitors or other parties may assert that we infringe on their patents or proprietary rights. Competitors or third
parties may be issued patents that may cover subject matter that we use in developing, producing, or administering our
products. In particular, we are aware of the following third party patents:

¢ Genentech and City of Hope National Medical Center hold patent rights relating to the expression of recombinant
antibodies;

¢ Genitope holds patent rights relating to immunotherapy using idiotype proteins produced using T lymphoid cells
for the treatment of B-cell lymphoma; and

* Schering Corp. holds patent rights relating to the use of GM-CSF as a vaccine adjuvant for use against infectious
diseases.

Additicnally, because patent prosecution can proceed in secret prior to issuance of a patent, third parties may obtain other
patents with claims of unknown scope prior to the issuance of patents relating to our product candidates which they could
attempt to assert against us. Further, as we develop our products, we may infringe the current patents of third parties or
patents that may issue in the future.

We believe that we have valid defenses to any assertion that our product candidates, or the methods that we employ to
manufacture them, infringe the claims of the patent held jointly by Genentech and City of Hope National Medical Center
relating to the expression of recombinant antibodies. We also believe that the patent may be invalid and/or unenforceable.
The relevant patent was issued to Genentech in 2001 in connection with the settlement of a district court action and an
interference proceeding in the United States Patent and Trademark Office between Genentech and Celltech R&D Ltd. We
believe other biotechnology companies are aware of and are considering the possible impact of this patent and that other
companies have negotiated license agreements for this patent. We note that in May 2005, a third party filed a request for
reexamination of this patent with the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office, requesting that the claims of this patent be
reexamined as to their patentability. During reexamination the issued claims were rejected; proceedings before the U.S.
Patent and Trademark Office continue. We have not attempted to obtain a license to this patent because we believe that
properly construed claims do not cover activities related to the manufacture of Favld and FAV-201. If we decide to attempt
to obtain a license for this patent, we cannot guarantee that we would be able to obtain such a license on commercially
reasonable terms, or at all.

We also believe that we have valid defenses to any assertion that our product candidates infringe the claims of the patent held
by Genitope relating to immunotherapy using idiotype proteins produced using T-lymphoid cells for treatment of B-cell
lymphoma, and the claims of the patent held by Schering Corp. relating to use of GM-CSF as a vaccine adjuvant for use
against infectious diseases. The relevant Genitope patent issued in 1999. We believe that Favid and FAV-201 and the
methods we use to manufacture them do not infringe the claims of the patent. The relevant Schering patent issued in 1997,
We believe that Favld and FAV-201 and the methods we use to manufacture them do not infringe the claims of the patent
and that the claims of the patent are invalid.

Although we believe that our product candidates, production methods and other activities do not currently infringe the
intellectual property rights of these and other third parties, we cannot be certain that a third party will not challenge our
position in the future. If a third party alleges that we are infringing its intellectual property rights, we may need to obtain a
license from that third party, but there can be no assurance that any such license will be available on acceptable terms or at
all. Any infringement claim that results in litigation could result in substantial cost to us and the diversion of management’s
attention away from our core business and could also prevent us from marketing our products. To enforce patents issued to us
or to determine the scope and validity of other parties’ proprietary rights, we may also become involved in litigation or in
interference proceedings declared by the United States Patent and Trademark Office, which could result in substantial costs
to us or an adverse decision as to the priority of our inventions. We may be involved in interference and/or opposition
proceedings in the future. We believe there will continue to be significant litigation in the industry regarding patent and other
intellectual property rights.
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We are party to license agreements which provide us rights to use technologies in our research, development and
commercialization of our product candidates. We obtained a non-exclusive license from Boyce Thompson Institute for Plant
Research to use certain information and materials in the field of prevention and treatment of immune system diseases and
disorders related to NHL. This party has sole responsibility for the prosecution, maintenance and enforcement of the licensed

intellectual property.

We also rely on trade secrets to protect our technology, particularly when we do not believe that patent protection is
appropriate or available. However, trade secrets are difficult to protect. We attempt to protect our trade secrets by requiring
each of our employees, consultants and advisors to execute a non-disclosure and assignment of invention agreement before
beginning his or her employment, consulting or advisory relationship with us. We cannot guarantee that these agreements
will provide meaningful protection, that these agreements will not be breached, that we will have an adequate remedy for any
such breach, or that our trade secrets will not otherwise become known or independently developed by a third party.

Government Regulation

The testing, development, manufacturing, labeling, storage, record keeping, advertising, promotion, export and marketing,
among other things, of our product candidates are subject to extensive regulation by governmental authorities in the United
States and other countries. In the United States, pharmaceutical and biologic products are regulated by the FDA under the
Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act, its implementing regulations and other laws, including, in the case of biologics, the
Public Health Service Act. Our product candidates are regulated by the FDA as biologics. Biologics require the submission of
a Biologics License Application, or BLA, and approval by the FDA prior to being marketed in the United States. None of our
product candidates have been approved by the FDA for marketing in the United States, and we currently have no BLAs
pending. Manufacturers of biologics may also be subject to state regulation. Failure to comply with FDA requirements, ‘soth
before and after product approval, may subject us to administrative or judicial sanctions, including, but not limited to, FDA
refusal to approve pending applications, warning letters, product recalls, product seizures, total or partial suspension of
production or distribution, fines, injunction and criminal prosecution.

The steps reqﬁired before a biologic may be approved for marketing in the United States generally include:

o completion of preclinical laboratory tests and animal tests;

o the submission to the FDA of an investigational new drug, or IND, application for human clinical testing, which
must become effective before human clinical trials may commence;

« performance of adequate and well-controlled human clinical trials to establish the safety and efficacy of the
product candidate for each proposed indication;

» the submission to the FDA of a BLA;

¢ FDA review of the BLA; and

o satisfactory completion of an FDA pre-approval inspection of the manufacturing facility or facilities at which the
product candidate is made to assess compliance with the FDA’s current Good Manufacturing Practices, or cGMP,

regulations.

The testing and approval process typically takes several years and requires the commitment of substantial effort and financial
resources. Despite the time and expense committed, there can be no assurance that any approval will be granted on a timely

basis, or at all.

Preclinical tests include laboratory evaluation and animal studies to assess the pharmacology and toxicology of the product
candidate. The results of the preclinical tests, together with manufacturing information and analytical data, are submitted to
the FDA as part of an IND, which must become effective before human clinical trials may be commenced. The IND will
automatically become effective 30 days after receipt by the FDA, unless the FDA before that time raises concerns or
questions about the conduct of the trials as outlined in the IND, including concerns that human research subjects will be
exposed 1o unreasonable risks. In such a case, the IND sponsor and the FDA must resolve any outstanding concerns before
clinical trials can proceed. There can be no assurance that submission of an IND will result in FDA authorization to
commence clinical trials. A separate submission to an existing IND must also be made for each successive clinical trial
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conducted during product development. Further, each clinical trial must be reviewed and approved by an independent
Institutional Review Board, or IRB.

Clinical trials typically are conducted in three sequential phases, but the phases may overlap. In Phase 1, the initial
introduction of the drug into human subjects, the drug is usually tested for safety (adverse effects), dosage tolerance,
abgorption, metabolism, distribution, excretion and pharmaocodynamics, Phase 2 usually involves studies in a limited patient
population to (i) evaluate preliminarily the efficacy of the drug for specific, targeted indications, (ii) determine dosage
tolerance and optimal dosage and (iii) identify possible adverse effects and safety risks. Phase 3 clinical trials generally
further evaluate clinical efficacy and test further for safety within an expanded patient population. There can be no assurance
that Phase 1, Phase 2 or Phase 3 testing will be completed successfully within any specific time period, if at all, with respect
to any of our product candidates. Furthermore, we, the FDA or the relevant IRB may suspend clinical trials at any time on
various grounds, including a finding that the subjects or patients are being exposed to an unacceptable health risk.

The results of the preclinical studies and clinical trials, together with other detailed information, including information on the
manufacture and composition of the product, are submitted to the FDA in the form of a BLA requesting approval to market
the product. Before approving a BLA, the FDA will inspect the facilities at which the product is manufactured and will not
approve the product unless the facility cGMP compliance is satisfactory. The FDA may deny a BLA if applicable regulatory
criteria are not safisfied, require additional testing or information or require postmarketing testing and surveillance to monitor
the safety or efficacy of a product. Approval entails limitations on the indicated uses for which a product may be marketed.
Also, if we seek to make certain changes to an approved product, such as promoting or labeling a product for a new
indication, making certain manufacturing changes, or changing manufacturers or suppliers of certain ingredients or
components, we will need FDA review and approval before the change can be implemented.

We are utilizing the procedure called “Special Protocol Assessment” for Favld. Under this procedure, a sponsor may seek the
FDA’s agreement on the design and size of a clinical trial intended to form the primary basis of an effectiveness claim. If the
FDA agrees in writing, its agreement may not be changed after the trial begins, except in litited circumstances. If the
outcome of the trial is successful, the sponsor will ordinarily be able to rely on it as the primary basis for approval with
respect to effectiveness. Although we received our SPA, there can be no assurance that any of our trials will have a successful
outcome.

In December 2005, we received the FDA designation of Favld as a “fast track product” for treatment of patients with
follicular B-cell NHL. We also intend to apply for “fast track™ designation for FAV-201 for T-cell lymphoma. Fast track
products are those which are intended for the treatment of a serious or life-threatening condition and which demonstrate the
potential to address unmet medical needs for such condittons. Fast track products are eligible for two means of potentially
expediting product development and FDA review of BLAs. First, a fast track product may be approved on the basis of either
a clinical endpoint or a surrogate endpoint that is reasonably likely to predict clinical benefit. It is sometimes possible to
demonstrate efficacy with respect to such endpoints in a shorter period of time than would be the case for other endpoints.
Approvals of this kind may be subject to requirements for appropriate post-approval studies to validate the surrogate endpoint
or otherwise confirm the effect of the clinical endpoint, and to certain other conditions. Second, if the FDA determines after
review of preliminary clinical data submitted by the sponsor that a fast track product may be effective, it may begin review of
portions of a BLA before the sponsor submits the complete BLA, thereby accelerating the date on which review of a portion
of the BLA can begin. There can be no assurance that any of our product candidates in development will receive designation
as fast track products, and even if they are designated as fast track products, there can be no assurance that our product
candidates will be reviewed or approved more expeditiously than would otherwise have been the case.

We intend to request priority review of our BLA for Favld. A priority designation sets the target date for the FDA to
complete review of a BLA within six months of the date of submission. Priority review of biologics is available for product
candidates which, if approved, would be a significant improvement in the safety or effectiveness of the treatment of a serious
or life-threatening disease. Even if priority review is granted, there can be no assurance that FDA review will be completed
within six months or any other specific period of time, nor that the product candidate will be approved.

BLA holders must continue to comply with a number of FDA requirements both before and after approval. For example,
BLA holders are required to report certain adverse reactions to the FDA and to comply with certain requirements concerning
advertising and promotional labeling for their products. Also, quality control and manufacturing procedures must continue to
conform to cGMP regulations after approval, and the FDA periodically conduncts inspections of manufacturing facilities to
assess compliance with ¢cGMP. Accordingly, manufacturers must continue to expend time, monies and effort in the area of
production and quality control to maintain cGMP compliance. In addition, discovery of problems, such as safety problems,
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may result in changes in labeling or restrictions on a product, manufacturer or BLA holder, including removal of the product
from the market.

We plan to seek orphan drug designation for the use of FAV-201 for T-cell lymphoma. Under the Orphan Drug Act, the:
FDA may grant orphan drug designation to drugs intended to treat a “rare disease or condition,” which generally is a discase
or condition that affects fewer than 200,000 individuals in the United States. Orphan drug designation must be requested
before submitting a BLA. After the FDA grants orphan drug designation, the generic identity of the therapeutic agent and its
potential orphan use are publicly disclosed by the FDA. Orphan drug designation does not convey any advantage in, or
shorten the duration of, the regulatory review and approval process. If a product which has an orphan drug designation
subsequently receives the first FDA approval for the indication for which it has such designation, the product is entitled to
orphan exclusivity, i.e., the FDA may not approve any other applications to market the same drug for the same indication for
a period of seven years, except in limited circumstances. Qur preducts may not be eligible for orphan drug status or be
designated as orphan drugs. Even if designated as orphan drugs, our products may not be approved before other applications
or granted orphan drug exclusivity if approved.

Third-Party Reimbursement

We expect that sales volumes and prices of our products will be dependent in part on the availability of coverage and
reimbursement from third-party payors. In the United States, such payors include governmental programs, including
Medicare and Medicaid, private insurance plans and managed care programs. The Medicare program, a federally-funded and
administered health insurance program, is the nation’s single largest payor, and provides for coverage for certain medical
products and services for certain aged and disabled indivicduals and individuals with end-stage renal disease. Significantly,
other third-party payors often model their coverage and reimbursement policies after Medicare. Medicare and other third-
party payors may deny coverage and reimbursement if they determine that a medical product or procedure is not medically
necessary or used for an unapproved indication, among other things. There can be no assurance that a new product witl be
considered medically necessary or otherwise eligible for coverage and reimbursement. Our ability to earn sufficient retums
on our products may depend in part on the extent to which adequate third-party reimbursement is available for the costs of
such products and related treatments. Significant uncertainty exists as to the coverage and reimbursement status of newly
approved health care products, and there can be no assurance that adequate third-party coverage and reimbursement will be
available.

Fraud and Abuse Laws

If we are able to commercialize Favld or any other product candidates that we may develop, we will be subject to various
federal and state laws pertaining to healthcare fraud and abuse, including anti-kickback laws and physician self-referral laws.
Violations of these laws are punishable by criminal and civil sanctions, including, in some instances, imprisonment and
exclusion from participation in federal and state healthcare programs, including Medicare, Medicaid and Veterans
Administration health programs. Healthcare fraud and abuse regulations are complex, and even minor, inadvertent
irregularities can potentially give rise to claims that a statute or prohibition has been violated. If there is a change in law,
regulation or administrative or judicial interpretations, we may have to change our business practices or our existing business
practices could be challenged as unlawful, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition
and results of operations. In addition, some allegations under these laws have been claimed to violate the False Claims Act,
discussed in more detail below.

In addition, if we are able to commercialize FavId or any other product candidates that we may develop, we could become
subject to false claims litigation under federal statutes, which can lead to civil money penalties, criminal fines and
imprisonment, and exclusion from participation in Medicare, Medicaid and other federal and state healthcare programs,
These false claims statutes include the False Claims Act, which any person to bring suit on behalf of the federal government
alleging the submission of false or fraudulent claims, or causing to present such false or fraudulent claims, under federal
programs or contracts claims or other viclations of the statute and to share in any amounts paid by the entity to the
government in fines or settlement. These suits against biotechnology companies have increased significantly in recent years
and have increased the risk that a healthcare company will have to defend a false claim action, pay fines or be excluded from
the Medicare, Medicaid or other federal and state healthcare programs as a result of an investigation arising out of such
action.
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Employees

As of December 31, 2006, we had 151 employees. Of these, 123 employees were in research and development comprised of
88 in manufacturing, quality control and quality assurance, 32 in research and process development, and three members of
senior management. Of the remaining employees, three were members of senior management and 25 were in marketing,
general and administration. As of the same date, 17 of our employees had a Ph,D.,, M.D. or Pharm.D. degree. None of our
employees is subject to a collective bargaining agreement. We consider our relationship with our employees to be good.

Reports

We make available free of charge through our website, www.favrille.com, our annual report on Form 10-K, quarterty reports
on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K and amendments to those reports filed or to be furnished pursuant to Section
13(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as soon as reasonably practicable after we electronically file such material with,
or furnish it to, the Securities and Exchange Commission. Any information that is included on or linked to our Internet site is
not a part of this report or any registration statement that incorporates this report by reference.

Executive Officers and Directors of the Registrant

The following table sets forth information regarding our executive officers and directors as of March 1, 2007:

Name Age Positions

John P. Longenecker, Ph.D................... 59  President, Chief Executive Officer and Director
Tamara A. Seymour..........cccoeeeneeec, 48  Chief Financial Officer and Vice President, Finance and Administration
Daniel P. Goid, Ph.D. .....ccccocceeenen. 52 Chief Scientific Officer

David L. Guy .....ccoeoeeciiiiiimnenccccenas 44  Chief Commercial Officer

Richard Murawski ........coneeeinicicnccnnns 58  Senior Vice President, Operations

John F. Bender, Pharm.D............c......... 58  Senior Vice President, Clinical Research

Alice M. Wel oo 43 Vice President, Regulatory Affairs and Quality
Michael L. Eagle.........ccoumnnincciccccnnn 59  Chairman of the Board of Directors

Cam L. Gamner ......ccco.coovvnmvevenenicnenne. 58  Director

Antonio J. Grillo-Lopez, M.D. ............. 67  Director

Peter Barton Hutt...........coocovvevvecinnnnnes 72 Director

David Molowa ... e 47  Director

Fred Middleton ............ccovceemmmeeenienninnas 57  Director

Arda Minocherhomjee, Ph.D. ............... 53 Director

Wayne L Roe......cccoevcniiiiiciinrnnnnnnene 56  Director

Ivor Royston, M.D.......ooovvrervnevrcrennnnns 61 Director

John P. Longenecker, Ph.D. has served as a member of our board of directors and as our President and Chief Executive
Officer since February 2002. From March 1999 to February 2002, he served as President of SkyePharma, Inc. and was a
member of the Executive Committee of SkyePharma PLC. In 1992, Dr. Longenecker joined DepoTech Corporation as its
Senior Vice President of Research, Development and Operations and then served as its President and Chief Operating Officer
from February 1998 to March 1999. From 1982 to 1992, he was at Scios, Inc. (now a Johnson & Johnson subsidiary), and
served as its Vice President and Director of Development from 1986 to 1992, Dr. Longenecker received a bachelor’s degree
in Chemistry from Purdue University and a Ph.D. in Biochemistry from The Australian National University in Canberra,
Australia,

Tamara A. Seymour has served as our Chief Financial Officer since May 2001 and also as our Vice President of Finance and
Administration since February 2004. From 1991 to May 2001, she served as consulting chief financial officer for a number of
biotechnology companies. Her client list included CancerVax Corporation (now Micromet Corporation), LXN Corporation,
VitaGen Incorporated and Chromagen. From 1988 through 1991, Ms. Seymour was Director of Finance with Agouron
Pharmaceuticals, Inc. between 1980 and 1988, she worked as an accountant with Deloitte & Touche LLP and Coopers &
Lybrand, Inc. (now PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP). Ms. Seymour is a Certified Public Accountant and received a bachelor’s
degree in Business Administration with an emphasis in Accounting from Valdosta State University and an M.B.A. with an
emphasis in Finance from Georgia State University.
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Daniel P. Gold, Ph.D, co-founded Favrille in January 2000, served as our Executive Vice President of Research and
Development from January 2000 to July 2003 and has served as our Chief Scientific Officer since July 2003. He was an
Associate Professor at the Sidney Kimmel Cancer Center in San Diego from 1992 through 2003. Dr. Gold received a
bachelor’s degree in Biology from the University of California, Los Angeles, and a Ph.D. in Immunology from Tufts Medical
School.

David L. Guy joined Favrille as our Chief Commercial Officer in December 2005. Prior to joining Favrille, Mr. Guy served
as Vice President, Global Strategic Marketing and Business Development, Oncology at Schering AG/Berlex from 2002 to
2005. Previously, he served as Director, Oncology Marketing at Genentech from 2000 to 2001. Prior to Genentech, Mr. Guy
spent six years at Sanofi-Aventis as U.S. Business Unit Head, Oncology (Sanofi) from 1994 to 2000 . Mr. Guy earned his
Bachelor of Science degree in Biology with a specialization in Molecular Genetics from McMaster University in Hamilton,
Ontario.

Richard Murawski has served as our Senior Vice President of Operations since June 2002. From June 1998 to May 2002, he
was the Vice President of Global Biotech Operations of Baxter BioScience Corporation. In 1997 and 1998, he served as a
consultant. Mr, Murawski was the Vice President of Operations of Cytogen from 1994 to 1997 and Director of Operations at
Welgen (Wellcome) from 1990 to 1993. From 1971 to 1990, he served as Plant Manager for Schering-Plough. Mr. Murawski
received a bachelor’s degree in Chemical Engineering from the Newark College of Engineering.

John F. Bender, Pharm.D. served as our Vice President of Clinical Research from May 2001 through March 2005 and has
served as our Senior Vice President of Clinical Research since March 2005. From 1981 to 2001, he was at Pfizer Global
Research and Development (formerly Parke-Davis), a division of Pfizer, Inc., and served as its Director of Clinical Rescarch-
Oncology from 1997 to 2001. At Pfizer, Dr. Bender was involved with the development of over 20 oncology and infectious
disease compounds. He received a bachelor’s degree in Biology from Mount Saint Mary’s College, a bachelor’s degree in
Pharmacy from the University of Maryland and a Pharm.D. from the University of Utah.

Alice M. Wei has served as our Vice President of Regulatory Affairs and Quality since October 2002. From 1993 to
September 2002, she was at IDEC Pharmaceuticals Corporation (now Biogen Idec), most recently as Department
Head/Senior Director of Regulatory Affairs. Ms. Wei was Director of Regulatory Affairs, Quality Assurance and Quality
Control at Anesta Corp. (now Cephalon, Inc.) from 1990 through 1993 and served in various regulatory positions at
Immunetech Pharmaceuticals (now Elan Pharmaceuticals) and ICN Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (now Valeant Pharmaceuticals)
from 1984 to 1990. She received a bachelor’s degree in Microbiology/Chemistry from the University of Texas at Arlingon.

Michael L. Eagle has served as a member of our board of directors since September 2003 and as Chairman since Septenber
2006. He was Vice President-Manufacturing for Eli Lilly and Company from 1993 to April 2001. Mr. Eagle is a founding
member of Barnard Life Sciences and currently serves as a member of the board of a number of privately-held companies.
Mr. Eagle received a bachelor’s degree in Engineering from Kettering University and an M.B.A. from the Krannert School of
Management at Purdue University.

Cam L. Garner has served as a member of our board of directors since December 2000, served as Chairman of our board of
directors from May 2001 through September 2006, and served as our acting Chief Executive Officer from August 2001 to
February 2002. Mr. Gamer co-founded specialty pharmaceutical companies, Verus Pharmaceuticals, Inc., Cadence
Pharmaceuticals, Inc., Zogenix, Inc., DJ Pharma and Xcel Pharmaceuticals, Inc. He serves as Chairman and CEO of Verus,
Chairman of Cadence and Zogenix and served as Chairman of Xcel until it was acquired in 2005 by Valeant Pharmaceuticals
International. He was Chief Executive Officer of Dura Pharmaceuticals, Inc., a pharmaceutical company, from 1989 to 1995
and its Chairman and Chief Executive Officer from 1995 to 2000 until it was sold to Elan in November 2000. Mr. Gamer
also serves on the board of directors of Pharmion Corp., Somaxon Pharmaceuticals, Inc., SkinMedica, Inc. and Aegis
Therapeutics. Mr. Garner earned his M.B.A. from Baldwin-Wallace College and his B.A. in Biology from Virginia
Wesleyan College.

Antonio J. Grillo-Lopez, M.D. has served as a member of our board of directors since January 2001. He was Chief Medical
Officer and Senior Vice President of Medical and Regulatory Affairs at IDEC Pharmaceuticals Corporation (now Biogen
Idec) from 1992 to January 2001. Prior to 1992, Dr. Grillo-Lopez served as Executive Medical Director for International
Clinical Research Development at DuPont Merck Pharmaceutical Co. and as Vice President of Clinical Therapeutics and
Director of Clinical Oncology Research at Parke-Davis (now Pfizer). From 1980 to 1990, he was at the University of
Michigan, most recently as an Associate Professor of Medicine. Dr. Grillo-Lopez currently serves as a director of Onyx
Pharmaceuticals, Inc., a biopharmaceutical company. He received a bachelor’s degree in Natural Sciences from the
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University of Puerto Rico, College of Natural Sciences, and an M.D. from the University of Puerto Rico School of Medicine.

Peter Barton Hutt has served as a member of our board of directors since November 2003. Mr. Hutt has been a partner or
senior counsel specializing in food and drug law in the Washington, D.C. law firm of Covington & Burling since 1968,
except when he served as Chief Counsel for the FDA from 1971 te 1975. He is the co-author of a casebook used to teach
food and drug law throughout the country and teaches a full course on this subject each year at Harvard Law School.

Mr, Hutt currently serves on the board of directors of CV Therapeutics, Inc., a biopharmaceutical company, ISTA
Pharmaceuticals, Inc., a specialty pharmaceutical company, Momenta Pharmaceuticals, Inc., a biotechnology company,
Xoma, a biotechnology company, Introgen Therapeutics, Inc., a biopharmaceutical company, and privately-held
biopharmaceutical companies and on venture capital advisory boards, including Polaris Venture Partners and the Sprout
Group. Mr. Hutt received a bachelor’s degree in Economics and Political Science from Yale University, an LL.B. from
Harvard Law School and an L.L.M. in Food and Drug Law from New York University Law School.

David Molowa Ph.D. was appointed to our Board of Directors in Juty 2006. Since September 2006, Dr. Molowa has been a
partner of Venrock Associates. Prior to joining Venrock Associates, Dr, Molowa was Managing Director of life science
equity research at UBS Securities from 2004 to 2006 and Managing Director of life science equity research at JP Morgan
from 2000 to 2004. From 1991 to 2000, Dr. Molowa was Senior Managing Director of biotechnology equity research at Bear
Stearns & Co. Previous to his career in the financial industry, Dr. Molowa was a senior research biochemist for Merck & Co.
He received a bachelor’s degree in Biology from the University of Richmond, Ph.D. in Pharmacology/Toxicology from the
Medical College of Virginia and an M.B.A. from Rutgers University.

Fred Middleton has served as a member of our board of directors since May 2002. Since 1987, he has been a General
Partner/Managing Director of Sanderling Ventures, a firm specializing in biomedical venture capital, and an affiliate of
certain holders of our capital stock. From 1984 through 1986, he was Managing General Partner of Morgan Stanley Ventures,
an affiliate of Morgan Stanley & Co. Prior to that, from 1978 to 1984, Mr. Middleton served as Vice President of Finance and
Corporate Development, Chief Financial Officer, and President of Genentech Development Corporation for Genentech, Inc.
He currently serves as Chairman of the Board of Stereotaxis, Inc., a biotechnology company, and also as a director of several
privately-held companies. Mr. Middleton received a bachelor’s degree in Chemistry from the Massachusetts Institute of
Technology and an M.B.A. with distinction fror Harvard Business School.

Arda Minocherhomjee, Ph.D, has served as a member of our board of directors since March 2004, He is currently a partner
of Chicago Growth Pariners. Since 1992, Dr. Minocherhomjee has served in various capacities for William Blair &
Company, L.L.C., an affiliate of certain holders of our capital stock, including, most recently, as a Principal. Since
September 1998, Dr. Minocherhomjee has also served as a managing member of William Blair Capital Partners, an affiliate
of William Blair & Company, L.L.C. He currently serves on the board of directors of CryoCor Inc., a medical device
company, as well as several privately-held pharmaceutical and medical device companies. Dr. Minocherhomjee received a
master’s degree in Pharmacology from the University of Toronto and a Ph.D. and an M.B.A. from the University of British
Columbia, and was a post-doctoral fellow in Pharmacology at the University of Washington Medical School.

Wayne L. Roe has served as a member of our board of directors since February 2001. He was the founding Chief Executive
Officer and Chairman of Covance Health Economics and Qutcomes Services, Inc. from 1988 to 1999 and previously served
as Vice President for Economic and Health Policy for the Health Industry Manufacturers Association. He currently sits on the
boards of directors of Aradigm Corporation, a biopharmaceutical company, ISTA Pharmaceuticals, Inc., a specialty
pharmaceutical company, and a number of privately-held companies. Mr. Roe also serves on the executive committee of the
Maryland Angels Fund. Mr. Roe received a bachelor’s degree in Economics from Union College and an MLA_ in Economics
from the University of Maryland.

Ivor Royston, M.D. has served as a member of our board of directors since January 2000, and as our acting Chief Executive
Officer from January 2000 to August 2001. He is a co-founder of Forward Ventures, a venture fund affiliated with certain
holders of our capital stock. From 1990 to 2000, Dr. Royston served as the founding President and Chief Executive Officer of
the non-profit Sidney Kimmel Cancer Center. He remains a member of the Board of Trustees of that organization. In 1986,
Dr. Royston co-founded IDEC Pharmaceuticals Corporation (now Biogen Idec), and in 1978 he founded Hybritech, Inc.
From 1978 to 1990, Dr. Royston served on the faculty of the medical school and cancer center at the University of California,
San Diego. Dr. Royston also serves on the board of directors of CancerVax Corporation, 2 biotechnology company, Corautus
Genetics, Inc., a biopharmacentical company and Avalon Pharmaceuticals, Inc., a biopharmaceutical company. Dr. Royston
received a bachelor’s degree in Human Biology and an M.D. from The Johns Hopkins University and completed post-
doctoral training in internal medicine and medical oncology at Stanford University.
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Item 1A. Risk Factors
You should consider carefully the risk factors described below, together with the other information contained in this report. If
any of the following risks actually occur, our business, financial condition, results of operations and future growth prospects
would likely be materially and adversely affected. In these circumstances, the market price of our common stock could
decline, and you may lose all or part of your investment in our common stock.
Risks Related to the Development of Our Product Candidates

Failure to obtain product approvals by the FDA could harm our business.
We are subject to rigorous and extensive regulation by the FDA. In the United States, our biologic product candidates,
currently in the preclinical and clinical stages of development, cannot be marketed until they are approved by the FDA.
Obtaining FDA approval involves the submission of the results of preclinical studies and clinical trials of the product
candidates, among other information. We may not be able to obtain FDA approval, and, even if we are able to do so, the
approval process typically takes many years and requires the commitment of substantial effort and financial resources. The
FDA can delay, limit or deny approval of a biologic product candidate for many reasons, including:

» the FDA may not find that the biologic product candidate is sufficiently safe or effective;

¢ FDA officials may interpret data from preclinical testing and clinical trials differently than we do; and

» the FDA may not find our manufacturing processes or facilities satisfactory.

In addition, the specific active immunotherapy technology on which FavId is based is a relatively new form of cancer therapy
that presents novel issues for the FDA to consider, which may make the regulatory process especially difficult.

‘We cannot assure you that any of our product candidates in development will be approved in the United States in a timely
fashion, or at all. Failure to obtain regulatory approval of our product candidates in a timely fashion, or at all, would prevent
or delay us from marketing or selling any products and, thercfore, from generating revenues from their sale. If this oceurs, we
may be unable to generate sufficient revenues to attain or maintain profitability, our ability to raise additional capital will. be
impaired and our stock price may be negatively affected. In addition, both before and after approval, we are subject to
numerous FDA requirements covering, among other things, testing, manufacturing, quality control, labeling, advertising,
promotion and export of biologics. Failure to comply with the law, including statutes and regulations, administered by the
FDA, couid result in, among others, any of the following actions:

* warning letters;

¢ fines and other civil penalties;

s unanticipated expenditures;

¢ delays in approving or refusal to approve a product candidate;

 product recall or seizure;

s interruption of production;

& operating restrictions,

* injunctions; and

« criminal prosecution.
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We are dependent on the success of our lead product candidate, FavId, and we cannot be certain that it will be
commercialized.

We have expended significant time, money and effort in the development of our lead product candidate, Favid, which is still
in clinical development, has not yet received regulatory appreval and may never be commercialized. In order to
commercialize Favld, we will need to demenstrate to the FDA and other regulatory agencies that it satisfies rigorous
standards of safety and effectiveness. We completed patient enrollment in a pivotal Phase 3 clinical trial of Favid following
Rituxan for the treatment of follicular B-cell NHL in January 2006.

We are also evaluating Favld for use in other B-cell NHL indications. However, even if we were to receive regulatory
approval of Favld for the treatment of follicular B-cell NHL or the other indications we are exploring, our ability to
successfully commercialize Favld could be jeopardized by the emergence of a competitive product that exhibits greater
efficacy, longer duration of response or other benefits. In addition, because our initial regulatory and marketing strategy
contemplates the administration of FavId to patients following treatment with Rituxan, the commercial opportunity for Favld
may be limited by the degree to which oncologists continue to use Rituxan to treat indolent B-cell NHL. Furthermore, to the
extent FavId fails to gain market acceptance for its initial indication, it may be more difficult for us to generate sufficient
credibility with physicians and patients to commercialize Favld for other indications.

Other than Favld, we have only two other product development programs, which are at significantly earlier stages of
development. In June 2006, we received an allowance from the FDA for an IND for a product candidate, FAV-201, from
one of these programs for the treatment of cutancous T-cell lymphoma. We have ongoing preclinical studies to assess the
applicability of our technology to autoimmune diseases, with an initial focus on multiple sclerosis. We cannot be certain that
we will be able to successfully develop any product candidate from these development programs. We cannot be certain that
the clinical development of Favld or any other product candidate in preclinical testing or clinical trials will be successful, that
it will receive the regulatory approvals required to commercialize it, or that any of our other research programs will yield a
product candidate suitable for entry into clinical trials. [f we are unable to commercialize Favld or our other product
candidates, we may be unable to generate sufficient revenues to attain or maintain profitability, our ability to raise additional
capital will be impaired and our stock price may be negatively affected.

Before we can seek regulatory approval of any of our product candidates, we must successfully complete clinical
trials, which are uncertain.

Conducting clinical trials is a lengthy, time-consuming and expensive process, and the results of these trials are inherently
uncertain. We have completed enrollment of patients in several Phase 2 clinical trials of Favld involving over 130 indolent B-
cell NHL patients and are currently conducting follow-up evaluation of those patients. We completed enrollment of patients
in a pivotal double-blind, placebo controlled Phase 3 clinical trial of Favld for the treatment of follicular B-cell NHL in
January 2006 with 349 randomized patients. During the week of November 6, 2006, our Data Monitoring Committee
completed a planned interim analysis of data from the secondary endpoint, overall response improvement, in the first 226
patients enrolled in the trial. The independent Data Monitoring Committee concluded that the interim analysis did not
demonstrate a statistically significant difference between treatment and control groups in the secondary endpoint. We
antic'ipate the final analysis of the primary endpoint, TTP, during the fourth quarter of 2007.

Four additional Phase 2 clinical trials of Favld are ongoing. One of these clinical trials is being conducted under a separate
physician-sponsored IND in the United States. In June 2006, we received an allowance from the FDA for an IND for our
second product candidate, FAV-201, for the treatment of cutaneous T-cell lymphoma,

We have received a Special Protocol Assessment, or SPA, from the FDA for our pivotal Phase 3 clinical trial of Favld. In the
SPA process, the FDA reviewed the design, size and planued analysis of our Phase 3 clinical trial and provided comments
regarding the trial’s adequacy to form a basis with respect to effectiveness for approval of a Biologics Licensing Application,
or BLA, if the trial meets its predetermined objectives. We will not be able to file a BLA for Favld until after we receive an
analysis of the primary endpoint, TTP, of our ongoing pivotal Phase 3 clinical trial (assuming the TTP data is positive),
which analysis is anticipated in the fourth quarter of 2007, or at all. The FDA’s written agreement is binding, except in
limited circumstances, such as when a substantial scientific issue essential to determining the safety or effectiveness of a
product candidate is identified after the Phase 3 clinical trial is commenced. Despite having received an SPA, we may be
required to conduct an additional Phase 3 clinical trial of Favld for the treatment of indolent B-cell NHL before we can apply
for regulatory approval. Although the FDA typically requires successful results in two Phase 3 clinical trials to support
marketing approval, the FDA has, on several occasions, approved products based on a single Phase 3 clinical trial that
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demonstrates a high level of statistical significance where there is an unmet need for a life-threatening condition. We
currently plan to seek FDA approval of Favid based on our ongoing pivotal Phase 3 clinical trial alone. In the event that the
FDA requires the results of a second Phase 3 clinical trial before accepting a BLA or before granting marketing approval of
Favld, our launch of Favld would be delayed, possibly by several years, and we would incur significant costs in conducting
the additional trial.

The preliminary, blinded clinical data reported from time to time prior to the release of the final results of our pivotal Phase 3
clinical trial and the preliminary clinical data from our Phase 2 clinical trials have not been fully audited and have been taken
from databases that have not been fully reconciled against medical records kept at the clinical sites or that may not include
the most current information on patient discase progressions. The data released may not be indicative of the final results of
our pivotal Phase 3 clinical trial or any other clinical trial of Favld. Failure can occur at any stage of testing. We do not
know whether our Phase 3 clinical trial or any future clinical trials will demonstrate safety and efficacy sufficient to resu.t in
marketable products. Our failure to adequately demonstrate the safety and efficacy of Favld will prevent us from obtaining
regulatory approval for, or commercializing, Favid.

Completion of necessary clinical trials may take several years or more. Qur commencement and rate of completion of clinical
trials may be delayed by many factors, including:

» ineffectiveness of the product candidate, or perceptions by physicians that the product candidate is not safe or effective
for a particular indication;

e inability to manufacture sufficient quantities of the product candidate for use in clinical trials;
e delay or failure in obtaining approval of our clinical trial protocols from the FDA;

o slower than expected rate of patient recruitment and enrollment;

« inability to adequately follow and monitor patients after treatment;

» difficulty in managing multiple clinical sites;

+ unforeseen safety issues; and

 government or regulatory delays,

Even if we achieve positive interim results in clinical trials, these results do not necessarily predict final results, and positive
results in early trials may not be indicative of success in later trials. A number of companies in the pharmaceutical indusiry
have suffered significant setbacks in advanced clinical trials, even after promising results in earlier trials. Negative or
inconclusive results or adverse medical events during a clinical trial could cause us to repeat or terminate a clinical trial or
require us to conduct additional trials. Our clinical trials may be suspended at any time for a variety of reasons, including if
the FDA or we believe the patients participating in our trials are exposed to unacceptable health risks or if the FDA finds
deficiencies in the conduct of these trials.

Failures or perceived failures in our clinical trials will directly delay our product development and regulatory approval
process, damage our business prospects, make it difficult for us to establish collaboration and partnership relationships, and
negatively affect our reputation and competitive position in the pharmaceutical community.

Failure to enroll patients in our clinical trials may cause delays in developing FavId or any other product candidate.

We may encounter delays in development and commercialization, or fail to obtain marketing approval, of Favld or any other
product candidate that we may develop if we are unable to enroll enough patients to complete clinical trials. Our ability 10
enroll sufficient numbers of patients in our clinical trials depends on many factors, including the size of the patient
population, the nature of the protocol, the proximity of patients to clinical sites, the eligibility criteria for the trial and
competing clinical trials. Although we completed patient enrollment in our pivotal Phase 3 clinical trial of Favld in January
2006, we have from time to time experienced slower-than-expected patient enrollment in our clinical trials and may do so in
the future if additional clinical trials of Favld are required or if we clinically develop any of our other product candidates.
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Delays in planned patient enrollment may result in increased costs and harm our ability to complete our clinical trials and
obtain regulatory approval.

The development of Favld requires the continued availability of two FDA-approved drugs: GM-CSF and Rituxan.

Administration of Favld requires an adjuvant, which is a substance that is used to enhance the immune response. We use a
white blood cell growth factor known as GM-CSF, which is commercially available solely from Berlex Laboratories, Inc., as
an adjuvant for Favld. GM-CSF is an FDA-approved and commercially available drug that may be purchased by physicians.
In February 2007, we entered into a clinical supply and study agreement with Berlex for clinical trials of FavId performed in
the United States, prior to which time we relied on purchase orders to purchase GM-CSF from Berlex. If we require GM-
CSF for use in clinical trials outside the United States, or for use in other clinical trials not covered by our agreement with
Berlex, we will need to rely on purchase orders for such purchases. Our current strategy for the initial commercialization of
Favld involves the administration of Favld following treatment with Rituxan. Rituxan is a passive immunotherapy for
patients with NHL, which is also FDA-approved and is commercially available solely from Genentech, Inc. and Biogen Idec
Inc. We currently rely on physicians to order and administer Rituxan to patients prior to the administration of Favld in our
registration trial. If GM-CSF or Rituxan were to become unavailable as a result of regulatory actions, supply constraints or
other reasons, our ability to continue the clinical development of Favld would be jeopardized.

Risks Related to Our Financial Results and Need for Financing

We have incurred significant operating losses since inception and anticipate that we will continue to incur substantial
losses and negative cash flow from operations for the foreseeable future,

We are a development stage company with a limited operating history, We have financed our operations through private
placements of common stock and warrants, an initial public offering of our common stock and equipment and leasehold debt
financing, We have incurred losses in each year since our inception in 2000. Net losses applicable to common stockholders
were $40.5 million, $35.9 and $54.2 million for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. As of
December 31, 2006, we had an accumnulated deficit of $155.9 million. These losses, among other things, have had and will
continue to have an adverse effect on our stockholders’ equity and working capital. We expect to incur substantial operating
losses for at least the next several years. This is due primarily to the expansion of our clinical trials and research and
development programs, preparations to manufacture Favlid on a commercial scale, and, selling, general and administrative
expenses. We also have substantial lease and debt obligations related to our new manufacturing and headquarters facilities
impacting our operating expenses. We expect that our losses will fluctuate from quarter to quarter and that these fluctuations
may be substantial. We cannot guarantee that we will successfully develop, manufacture, commercialize or market any
products. As a result, we cannot guarantee that we will ever achieve or sustain product revenues or profitability.

We currently have no source of revenue and may never become profitable.

Our ability to become profitable will depend upen our ability to generate revenue. To date, Favld has not generated any
revenue, and we do not know when or if Favld will generate revenue. Our ability to generate revenue depends on a number of
factors, including our ability to:

e successfully complete clinical trials for Favd;

¢ obtain regulatory approval for Favld, including regulatory approval for our commercial scale manufacturing facility
and process;

¢ manufacture commercial quantities of Favld at acceptable cost levels; and
» successfully market and sell Favid.
We do not anticipate that we will generate revenues until 2008, at the earliest. Further, we do not expect to achieve

profitability for at least several years after generating material revenues. If we are unable to generate revenue, we will not
become profitable, and we may be unable to continue our operations.
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‘We will need substantial additional funds to continue operations, which we may not be able to raise on favorable
terms, or at all.

We will need substantial additional funds for existing and planned preclinical studies and clinical trials, to continue research
and development activities, for lease and debt obligations related to our manufacturing and headquarter facilities, and to
establish manufacturing and marketing capabilities for any products we may develop. In addition, because we do not expact
to generate revenues from the sale of our product candidates for several years, if at all, we will also need to raise additional
capital to fund our operations.

We believe that our cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments, which was approximately $42.4 million at December
31, 2006, together with the $10 million raised in an equity financing in February 2007 and access to the Committed Equity
Financing Facility, or CEFF, through Kingsbridge Capital Limited, will be sufficient to meet our projected operating
requirements at least for the next 12 months. We will need to raise additional funds in order to commercialize FavId,
including the completion of the expansion and qualification of our manufacturing facility for commercial-scale production.
Our forecast of the period of time through which our financial resources will be adequate to support our operations is a
forward-looking statement and involves risks and uncertainties, and actual results could vary as a result of a number of
factors, including the factors discussed elsewhere in this prospectus. We have based this estimate on assumptions that may
prove to be wrong, and we could utilize our available capital resources sooner than we currently expect.

Our future capital requirements or the adequacy of our available funds will depend on many factors, including, but not
limited to:

¢ the results of our ongoing pivotal Phase 3 clinical trial of Favld;

» magnitude and cost of our product development efforts and other research and development activities;

o rate of progress towatd obtaining regulatory approval for our product candidates;

» costs of filing, prosecuting, defending and enforcing our patent claims and other intellectual property rights;

» our ability to establish and maintain collaborative, licensing or other arrangements for the development, sale, marketing
or distribution of our product candidates and the terms of those arrangements;

» effects of competing technological and market developments;

e the cost of expansion of cur current facility for commercial production or the construction of a large separate
commercial-scale production facility; and

¢ the success of the commercialization of FavId.

Future capital requirements will also depend on the extent to which we acquire or invest in businesses, products and
technologies, but we currently have no commitments or agreements relating to any of these types of transactions.

To that end, on June 20, 2006, we filed a shelf registration statement with the SEC on Form S-3 pursuant to which we may
periodically sell up to $60 million in debt securities, common stock or warrants to purchase debt securities or common stock.
In February 2007, we sold $10 million of common stock pursuant to the shelf registration statement. Additionally, we have
entered into the CEFF pursuant to which Kingsbridge committed to purchase, subject to certain conditions, up to $40.0
million of our common stock. We may seek to access the public or private equity markets whenever conditions are
favorable, even if we do not have an immediate need for additional capital at that time. Additional funding may not be
available to us, and, if available, may not be on acceptable terms. If we raise additional funds by issuing equity securities,
stockholders will incur immediate dilution. If adequate funds are not available to us, we may be required to delay, reduce the
scope of, or eliminate one or more of our research, development and clinical activities. Alternatively, we may need to seek
funds through arrangements with collaborative partners or others that require us to relinquish rights to technologies or
product candidates that we would otherwise seek to develop or commercialize ourselves. Any of these events could have a
material adverse effect on our business, results of operations, financial condition or cash flow.
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Our committed equity financing facility with Kingsbridge may not be available to us if we elect to make a draw down,

may require us to make additional “blackout” or other payments to Kingshridge and may result in dilution to our
stockholders.

In December 2006, we entered into the CEFF with Kingsbridge. The CEFF entitles us to sell and obligates Kingsbridge to
purchase, from time to time over a period of 36 months, shares of our commeon stock for cash consideration up to an
aggregate of $40.0 million, subject to specified conditions and restrictions. Kingsbridge will not be obligated to purchase
shares under the CEFF unless specified conditions are met, which include a minimum price for our common stock; the
accuracy of representations and warranties made to Kingsbridge; compliance with laws; and the effectiveness of a
registration statement registering for resale the shares of common stock to be issued in connection with the CEFF. In
addition, among other termination rights, Kingsbridge is permitted to terminate the CEFF by providing written notice to us
within 10 business days after it obtains actual knowledge that an event has occurred resulting in a material and adverse effect
on our business, operations, properties or financial condition (subject to specified exceptions, including conditions or events
that are reasonably expected to occur in the ordinary course of our business). If we are unable to access funds through the
CEFF, or if Kingsbridge terminates the CEFF, we may be unable to access capital on favorable terms, or at all.

We are entitled, in certain circumstances, to deliver a “blackout” notice to Kingsbridge to suspend the use of this prospectus
and prohibit Kingsbridge from selling shares under this prospectus for a certain period of time. If we deliver a blackout
notice in the 75 trading days following the settlement of a draw down and the volume weighted average price on the trading
day immediately preceding the related blackout period is greater than the volume weighted average price on the first trading
day following such blackout period, or if the registration statement of which this prospectus is a part is not effective in
circumstances not permitted by our registration rights agreement with Kingsbridge, then we must make a payment to
Kingsbridge, or issue Kingsbridge additional shares in lieu of this payment, calculated on the basis of a specified number of
shares held by Kingsbridge immediately prior to the blackout period and the change in the market price of our common stock
during the period in which the use of the registration statement is suspended. If the trading price of our common stock
declines during a suspension of the resale registration statement, the blackout or other payment could be significant.

Should we sell shares to Kingsbridge under the CEFF, or issue shares in lieu of a blackout payment, it will have a dilutive
effect on the holdings of our current stockholders and may result in downward pressure on the price of our common stock. If
we draw down amounts under the CEFF, we will issue shares to Kingsbridge at a discount of up to 10% from the volume
weighted average price of our common stock. If we draw down amounts under the CEFF when our stock price is decreasing,
we will need to issue more shares to raise the same amount than if our stock price was higher. Issuances in the face of a
declining stock price will have an even greater dilutive effect than if our stock price were stable or increasing and may further
decrease our stock price.

Future changes in financial accounting standards or practices or existing taxation rules or practices may cause
adverse unexpected revenue or expense fluctuations and affect our reported results of operations.

A change in accounting standards or practices or a change in existing taxation rules or practices can have a significant effect
on our reported results and may even affect our reporting of transactions completed before the change is effective. New
accounting pronouncements and taxation rules and varying interpretations of accounting pronouncements and taxation
practice have occurred and may occur in the future. Changes to existing rules or the questioning of current practices may
adversely affect our reported financial results or the way we conduct our business. For example, in December 2004, the
FASB issued SFAS No. 123(R), “Share-Based Payment,” which is a revision of SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-
Based Compensation.” In April 2005, the SEC approved a vote that effectively required us to adopt this statement on
January 1, 2006. This statement eliminates the ability to account for stock-based compensation using the intrinsic value
method allowed under APB 25 and requires these transactions to be recognized as compensation expense in the statermnent of
operations based on the fair values on the date of grant, with the compensation expense recognized over the period in which
an employee or director is required to provide service in exchange for the stock award. This new requirement will result in an
increase in our stock-based compensation expense, which will increase our net losses. For example, as a result of adopting
SFAS 123(R), the Company’s net loss for the year ended December 31, 2006 is approximately $1.3 million larger, than if
the Company had continued to account for stock-based compensation under APB 25. Basic and diluted net loss per share for
year ended December 31, 2006 is $0.05 higher than if the Company had continued to account for stock-based compensation
under APB 25.
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Other Risks Related to Our Business and Industry

We currently depend on single source suppliers for critical raw materials for manufacturing. The loss of these
suppliers could delay our clinical trials or prevent or delay commercialization of Favid.

We currently depend on single source suppliers for critical raw materials used in the manufacture of Favld. In particular, our
manufacturing process for Favld requires a foreign protein derived from shellfish that is known as keyhole limpet
hemocyanin, or KLH. We purchase KLH from biosyn Arzneimittel GmbH, or biosyn, which is currently the only supplier of
KLH that has submitted the required filing, known as a drug master file, to the FDA. In November 2004, we entered intc an
eight-year supply and license agreement with biosyn under which biosyn has agreed to supply us with KLH and we have
committed to annual KLH purchase requirements during the commercialization of FavId. In October 2006, we made a
payment of $50,000 to biosyn for the achievement of a milestone. An additional aggregate of up to $250,000 will be due
upon the achievement of certain milestones, the timing of which is not known at this time. Either party may terminate the
supply agreement upon a breach by the other party that is not cured within 60 days or other events relating to insolvency or
bankruptcy. If we identify another supplier of KLH of suitable quality for our purposes, we will not be able to use the
supplier as a second source of KLH for the commercial manufacture of Favld unless the KLH is tested to be comparable to
the existing KLH.

In addition, we depend on a single source supplier for the cell growth media we use to produce Favld. We purchase this
material from Expression Systems LLC, which in turn obtains several of the components used in the cell growth media from
sole suppliers. We currently rely on purchase orders to obtain this material and do not have a supply agreement with
Expression Systems. We intend to qualify a second source for the cell growth media or manufacture the cell growth media in-
house from commercialtly available raw materials but may not be able to do so.

Establishing additional or replacement suppliers for these materials may take a substantial amount of time. In addition, we
may have difficulty obtaining similar materials from other suppliers that are acceptable to the FDA. If we have to switch to a
replacement supplier, we may face additional regulatory delays and the manufacture and delivery of Favld, or any other
product candidates that we may develop, could be interrupted for an extended period of time, which may delay completion of
our clinical trials or commercialization. If we are unable to obtain adequate amounts of these materials, our clinical trials will
be delayed. In addition, we will be required to obtain regulatory clearance from the FDA to use different materials that may
not be as safe or as effective. As a result, regulatory approval of Favld, or any other product candidates that we may develop,
may not be received at all.

We rely on third parties to conduct our clinical trials. If these third parties do not successfully carry out their
contractual duties or meet expected deadlines, we may be delayed or may not be able to obtain regulatory approval
for or commercialize Favld or any other product candidates that we may develop.

Our pivotal Phase 3 clinical trial of FavId for the treatment of follicular B-cell NHL is being conducted at 67 centers in the
United States and will require long-term follow up of at least 342 patients randomized into the trial. One clinical trial of
Favld is being conducted under the direction of a physician sponsor, rather than under our supervision. We do not have the
ability to independently conduct clinical trials for Favld, or any other product candidate that we may develop, and we must
rely on third parties, such as medical institutions and clinical investigators, including physician sponsors, to conduct our
clinical trials. In particular, we will rely on these parties to recruit and enroll patients in our clinical trials. We also rely on
third-party couriers to transport patient tissue samples and Favld. If any of the third parties upon whom we rely to conduct
our clinical trials or transport patient tissue samples and immunotherapies do not comply with applicable laws, successfully
carry out their obligations or meet expected deadlines, and need to be replaced, our clinical trials may be extended, delayed or
terminated.

If the quality or accuracy of the clinical data obtained by medical institutions and clinical investigators, including physician
sponsors and other third-party vendors involved in data management, is compromised due to their failure to adhere to
applicable laws or our clinical protocols or for other reasons, we may not be able to obtain regulatory approval for or
successfully commercialize Favld, or any other product candidates that we may develop. If any of our relationships with any
of these organizations or individuals terminates, we believe that we would be able to enter into arrangements with altemative
third parties. However, replacing any of these third parties would delay our clinical trials and could jeopardize our ability to
commercialize Favld and our other product candidates on a timely basis, or at all.
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Even if we obtain regulatory approval, we will continue to be subject to extensive government regulation that may
cause us to delay the introduction of our products or withdraw our products from the market.

Even if we obtain regulatory approval for Favld or our other product candidates, we will still be subject to extensive
regulation. These regulations will impact many aspects of our operations, including production, record keeping, quality
control, adverse event reporting, storage, labeling, advertising, promotion and personnel. In addition, the later discovery of
previousty unknown problems may result in restrictions of the product candidates, including their withdrawal from the
market. Furthermore, regulatory approval may subject us to ongoing requirements for post-marketing studies. If we or any
third party that we involve in our operations fail to comply with any continuing regulations, we may be subject to, among
other things, product seizures, recalls, fines or other civil penalties, injunctions, suspensions or revocations of marketing
licenses, operating restrictions and criminal prosecution.

Before we can obtain marketing approval for or commercially distribute Favld, we must have a commercial-scale -
facility for the manufacture of FavId. In addition, the FDA and the California Department of Health Services must
find our manufacturing facility and process satisfactory,

Our manufacturing methods, equipment and processes must comply with the FDA’s current Good Manufacturing Practices,
or cGMP, requirements. We may also need to perform extensive audits of vendors, contract laboratories and suppliers. The
c¢GMP requirements govern, among other things, record keeping, production processes and controls, personnel and quality
control. We have only undertaken initial steps towards achieving compliance with these regulatory requirements. Additional
steps will require expenditure of significant time, money and effort. We cannot predict the likelihood that the FDA will find
our facility satisfactory, even if we believe that we have taken the necessary steps to achieve compliance. If we fail to comply
with these requirements or fail to pass a pre-approval inspection of our manufacturing facility in connection with an
application to obtain marketing approval for Favld or another product candidate, we would not receive regulatory approval,
and we would be subject to possible regulatory action.

‘We manufacture Favld for our ongeing pivotal Phase 3 and for the planned and ongoing Phase 2 clinical trials at our facility
in San Diego. We currently lease an 80,000 square foot facility in San Diego, California under a long-term lease agreement.
Our manufacturing facility consists of approximately 26,000 square feet of space in the facility. Our manufacturing facility is
subject to the licensing requirements of the California Department of Health Services. Our facility was inspected and licensed
by the California Department of Health Services. Our facility is subject to re-inspection at any time. Failure to maintain a
license from the California Department of Health Services or to meet the inspection criteria of the California Department of
Health Services would disrupt our manufacturing processes and prevent us from supplying FavId to patients. If an inspection
by the California Department of Health Services indicates that there are deficiencies in our manufacturing process, we could
be required to take remedial actions at potentially significant expense, and our facility may be temporarily or permanently
closed.

We will need to either expand and qualify our current facility or construct and qualify a commercial scale manufacturing
facility in order to commercialize Favld or any other product candidates that we may develop. We believe our current facility
could be used to manufacture FavId for initial commercial launch, and we began construction to expand this facility during
the second quarter of 2006. We cannot assure you that we would be able to meet commercial demand for Favld in this
facility. Additionally, we may require a larger production facility to meet the demand for FavId if it is approved. We would
need to raise additional debt or equity capital to finance construction of the larger facility. Such financing may not be
available or, if available, may not be obtained on terms favorable to us or our stockholders.

Preparing a facility for commercial manufacturing may involve unanticipated delays and the costs of complying with FDA
regulations may be significant. In addition, any material changes we make to the manufacturing process after approval may
require approval by the FDA and state regulatory authorities, Obtaining these approvals is a lengthy, involved process, and
we may experience delays that could limit our ability to manufacture commercial quantities, increase our costs and adversely
affect our business.
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We may experience difficulties in manufacturing Favld or any other product candidates that we may develop, whiich
could prevent us from completing our ongoing clinical trials and commercializing these product candidates.

Manufacturing Favld is a complex, multi-step process that requires us to expend significant time, money and effort in
production, record keeping and quality systems to assure that Favld will meet product specifications and other regulatory
requirements. To date, we have manufactured FavId only for use in Phase 2 and Phase 3 clinical trials and have no experience
in manufacturing Favld for the commercial quantities that might be required if we receive regulatory approval. In particular,
we cannot be sure that we will be able to manufacture FavId at a cost that would enable commercial use. We may experience
any of the following problems in our efforts to manufacture our product candidates for our expanding clinical trials or on a
commercial scale:

» failure to obtain a sufficient supply of key raw materials;

« difficulties in completing the development and validation of the specialized assays required to ensure the
consistency of our product candidates, including Favid,

« difficulties in obtaining adequate tumor samples from treating physicians and hospitals;
e difficulties in manufacturing FavId for multiple patients simultancously;

« difficulties in the timely shipping of tumor samples to us or in the shipping of Favld to the treating physicians due
to errors by third-party couriers, transportation restrictions or other reasons;

s failure to ensure adequate quality control and assurance in the manufacturing process as we increase the production
quantities of Favld;

s difficulties in establishing and effectively managing a commercial-scale manufacturing facility;

¢ failure to comply with regulatory requirements, such as FDA regulations and environmental laws;
s significant changes in regulatory requirements;

» damage to or destruction of our manufacturing facility or equipment;

» difficulty in qualifying a second-source supplier for certain critical equipment; and

* shortages of qualified personnel.

In addition, because our manufacturing process only begins upon our receipt of a patient’s tumor biopsy, we cannot produce
inventory reserves of our product candidate to be stored in anticipation of any of these potential manufacturing problems. The
failure to produce an adequate supply of Favld could delay our clinical trials and, in turn, delay submission of a BLA for
Favld and commercial launch. Similarly, any difficulties we experience in the manufacture and supply of other product
candidates, such as FAV-201, would delay the clinical trials of those product candidates.

If our manufacturing facility is damaged or destroyed, our ability to manufacture products will be significantly
affected, which could delay or prevent completion of our clinical trials and commercialization of Favld or any other
product candidates that we may develop.

We currently rely on the availability and condition of our manufacturing facility in San Diego to manufacture Favld. We
lease the property where this facility is located under a lease agreement that expires June 30, 2025, but may be extended at
out option for two additional five-year periods. After that time, we may not be able to negotiate a new lease for our facility. If
the facility or our equipment in the facility is damaged or destroyed, we will not be able to quickly or inexpensively replace
our manufacturing capacity. This would significantly affect our ability to complete clinical trials of, and to manufacture and
commercialize, Favld, or any other product candidates that we may develop.
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In addition, our facilities have been subject to electrical blackouts as a result of a shortage of available electrical power.
Although we have back-up emergency power generators to cover energy needs for key support systems, a lengthy outage
could disrupt the operations of our facilities and clinical trials. While we carry business interruption insurance, this insurance
may not be adequate. Any significant business interruption could cause delays in our product development and harm our
business.

If we do not develop a sufficient sales and marketing force or enter into agreements with third parties to sell and
market Favid, we may not be able to successfully commercialize our products, which would limit our ability to earn
product revenues.

We plan to retain exclusive worldwide rights to FavId for oncology indications at least until we receive the results from the
pivotal Phase 3 clinical trial. If we are successful in obtaining BLA approval or foreign marketing approval for Favld, we will
need to establish sales and marketing capabilities. In the United States, we plan to do this either by establishing our own sales
force or by entering into a co-promotion arrangement with a sales and distribution partner. Outside of the United States, we
plan to establish strategic collaborations for the development and marketing of Favid.

We do not presently possess the resources or experience necessary to market Favld or our other product candidates ourselves,
-and we currently have no arrangements for the promotion or distribution of our product candidates. Our future commercial
success will depend on our ability to establish cur own sales and marketing infrastructure or to collaborate with third parties
that have greater sales and marketing experience and resources. Developing effective internal sales and marketing
capabilities, which would include the hiring of a sales force, would require a significant amount of our financial resources
and time,

We may be unable to establish and manage an effective sales force in a timely or cost-effective manner, or at all, and any
sales force we do establish may not be capable of generating demand for Favld or any other product candidate we may
develop. In addition, if we cannot enter into co-promotion arrangements in the United States, or other strategic collaborations
for the development and marketing of Favld in other countries, in a timely manner and on acceptable terms, we may not be
able to successfully commercialize Favld or any other product candidate that we may develop.

To the extent that we enter into arrangements with third parties to perform sales, marketing and distribution services, our
product revenues are likely to be lower than if we directly marketed and sold Favld, or any other product candidates that we
may develop. If we are unable to establish adequate sales, marketing and distribution capabilities, independently or with
others, we will not be able to generate product revenue and will not become profitable.

If physicians and patients do not use any of our products that may be approved, our ability to generate revenue in the
future will be limited.

If approved, Favld and other product candidates that we may develop may not gain market acceptance among physicians,
healthcare payors, patients and the medical community. Demand for any approved product that we may develop will depend
on many factors, including:

* our ;a.bility to provi&e acceptable evidence of safety and efficacy;

» convenience and ease of ad:ﬁinistration;

. availaﬁility 6f alter.native treatments;

+ cost effectiveness;

e continuing widespread use of Rituxan to treat our initial target disease market;

» effectiveness of our regulatory and marketing strategies;

o prevalence and severity of adverse side effects;

» publicity concerning our products or competitive products; and

32




s our ability to obtain third-party coverage or reimbursement.

Furthermore, to the extent FavId fails to gain market acceptance for its initial indication, it may be more difficult for us to
generate sufficient credibility with physicians and patients to commercialize Favld for other indications.

If we are unable to obtain acceptable prices or adequate coverage and reimbursement from third-party payors for
Favld, or any other product candidates that we may develop, our revenues and prospects for profitability will suffer.

Our ability to commercialize Favid, or any other product candidates that we may develop, depends on the extent to which
coverage and reimbursement for FavId, or any other product candidates that we may develop, will be available from:

» governmental payors, such as Medicare and Medicaid;
e private health insurers, including managed care organizations; and
e other third-party payors.

Many patients will not be capable of paying for Favld, or any other product candidates that we may develop, themselves and
will rely on third-party payors to pay for their medical needs. The federal and state governments, insurance companies,
managed care organizations and other third-party payors are actively seeking to contain or reduce costs of health care in the
United States and exert increasing influence on decisions regarding the use of, and reimbursement levels for, particular
treatments. Such third-party payors, including Medicare, are scrutinizing newly approved medical products and services and
may not cover or may limit coverage and reimbursement for our product candidates. In particular, third-party payors may
limit the indications for which they will reimburse patients who use FavId, or any other product candidates that we may
develop. Cost-control initiatives could cause us to decrease the price we might establish for Favld, or any other product
candidates that we may develop, which would result in lower product revenues. If the prices for Favid, or any other product
candidates that we may develop, decrease or if governmental and other third-party payors do not provide adequate coveruge
and reimbursement levels for Favld, or any other product candidates that we may develop, our revenue and prospects for
profitability will suffer.

If we are unable to establish or manage strategic collaborations in the future, our revenue and product development
may be limited.

Our strategy may include reliance on strategic collaborations for co-promotion of Favld in the United States. In addition, we
expect to rely on strategic collaborators for commercialization of Favld outside of the United States and, to an even greater
extent, for worldwide development and commercialization of product candidates and programs for chronic autoimmune
diseases, such as multiple sclerosis. To date, we have not entered into any agreements with third parties for any of these
services and do not plan to establish a collaboration for Favld in the United States until we have received results of the
pivotal Phase 3 clinical trial.

Establishing strategic collaborations is difficult and time-consuming. Our discussions with potential collaborators may not
lead to the establishment of new collaborations on favorable terms, or at all. For example, potential partners may reject
collaborations based upon their assessment of our financial, regulatory or intellectual property position. If we successfully
establish new collaborations, these relationships may never result in the successful development or commercialization of our
product candidates or the generation of sales revenue. To the extent that we enter into co-promotion or other collaborative
arrangements, our product revenues are likely to be lower than if we directly marketed and sold any products that we may
develop.

Management of any collaborative relationship we may establish in the future will require:
o significant time and effort from our management team;

e coordination of our research and development programs with the research and development priorities of our
collaborators; and

o effective allocation of our resources to multiple projects.
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If we enter into development or commercialization collaborations, our success will in part depend on the performance of our
corporate collaborators. We will not directly control the amount or timing of resources devoted by our corporate collaborators
to activities related to our product candidates. Our corporate collaborators may not commit sufficient resources to our
research and development programs or the commercialization, marketing or distribution of our product candidates. If any
corporate collaborator fails to commit sufficient resources, our preclinical or clinical development related to the collaboration
could be delayed or terminated. Also, our collaborators may pursue development or commercialization of other products,
product candidates or alternative technologies in preference to our product candidates. Finally, our collaborators may
terminate our relationships, and we may be unable to establish additional corporate collaborations in the future on acceptable
terms, or at all.

Our efforts to discover, develop and commercialize new product candidates beyond Favld are at an early stage and
are subject to a high risk of failure.

Our strategy is focused on the research, development and commercialization of targeted immunotherapies for the treatment of
cancer and other diseases of the immune system. The process of successfully developing product candidates is very time-
consuming, expensive and unpredictable. We have only recently begun to direct significant effort toward the development of
product candidates in addition to Favld, such as FAV-201 for T-cell lymphoma and a preclinical product candidate for the
treatment of multiple sclerosis. We do not know whether our planned preclinical studies or clinical trials for these other
product candidates will begin on time or be completed on schedule, or at all. In addition, we do not know whether these
clinical trials will result in marketable products. Typically, there is a high rate of attrition for product candidates in preclinical
and clinical trials. We do not anticipate that any of our product candidates will reach the market for at least several years.

We may not identify, develop or commercialize any additional new product candidates from our proprietary active
immunotherapy technology. Our ability to develop successfully any of these product candidates depends on our ability to
demonstrate safety and efficacy in humans through extensive preclinical testing and clinical trials and to obtain regulatory
approval from the FDA and other regulatory authorities. Development of our product candidates will also depend |
substantially upon the availability of funding for our research and development programs.

If our competitors develop and market products that are more effective than our existing product candidates or
others we may develop, or obtain marketing approval before we do, our commercial opportunity may be reduced or
eliminated.

The development and commercialization of new pharmaceutical products for the treatment of cancer and autoimmune
diseases is competitive, and we will face competition from numerous sources, including major pharmaceutical companics,
specialty pharmaceutical companies and biotechnology companies worldwide. Many of our competitors have substantially
greater financial and technical resources and development, production and marketing capabilities than we do. In addition,
many of these companies have more experience than we do in preclinical testing, clinical trials and manufacturing of biologic
therapeutics, as well as in obtaining FDA and foreign regulatory approvals. We will also compete with academic institutions,
governmental agencies and private organizations that are conducting research in the fields of cancer and autoimmunc disease.
Competition among these entities to recruit and retain highly qualified scientific, technical and professional personnel and
consultants is also intense,

We are aware of a number of companies that are developing active immunotherapies to treat B-cell NHL. Genitope
Corporation is evaluating its idiotype immunotherapy product candidate in a Phase 3 clinical trial in patients with follicular
B-cell NHL who are in remission following prior treatment with chemotherapy. Antigenics, Inc. completed a Phase 2 clinical
trial evaluating its active immunotherapy candidate in indolent NHL patients. The NCI is also conducting a Phase 3 clinical
trial of an active idiotype immunotherapy in collaboration with Accentia Biopharmaceuticals.

Several companies are engaged in the development and commercialization of passive immunotherapy products for the
treatment of B-cell NHL that may compete with Favld. Genentech and Biogen Idec are co-marketing Rituxan for the
treatment of relapsed or refractory, indolent B-cell NHL. Biogen Idec is also marketing Zevalin, its passive
radioimmunotherapy product. GlaxoSmithKline plc currently markets Bexxar, a passive radioimmunotherapy product.

The most recent advances in the treatment of B-cell NHL have involved the combination of existing products and changes to
approved schedules and doses, particularly for Rituxan. Numerous clinical trials reported in recent years have indicated that
additional doses of Rituxan and maintenance dosing of Rituxan can improve TTP in patients who respond to therapy.
Combination therapies involving chemotherapeutic or immunostimulatory drugs in combination with Rituxan at various
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doses and schedules may provide patients with an increase in TTP over that expected with Rituxan alone. Accordingly, we
may face competition as a result of developments in this area,

We expect that our ability to compete effectively will depend upon our ability to: !

» successfully and rapidly complete clinical trials and obtain all requisite regulatory approvals in a cost-effective
manner;

» reliably and cost-effectively manufacture sufficient quantities of our products;

= maintain a proprietary position for our manufacturing process and other technology;
» price our products competitively;

» obtain appropriate reimbursement approvals for our products; -

= establish an adequate sales and markctiﬁg force for our products; and

= attract and retain key personnel.

In addition, our ability to compete effectively will depend on the relative efficacy and safety of other active immunotherapy
products approved for sale as compared to our own products.

We are subject to new legislation, regulatory proposals and managed care initiatives that may increase our costs of
compliance and adversely affect our ability to market our products, obtain collaborators and raise capital.

There have been a number of legislative and regulatory proposals aimed at changing the healthcare system and
pharmaceutical industry, including reductions in the cost of prescription products and changes in the levels at which
consumers and healthcare providers are reimbursed for purchases of pharmaceutical products. For example, the Prescription
Drug and Medicare Improvement Act of 2003 was recently enacted. This legislation provides a new Medicare prescription
drug benefit beginning in 2006 and mandates other reforms. Although we cannot predict the full effects on our business of
the implementation of this new legislation, it is possible that the new benefit, which will be managed by private health
insurers, pharmacy benefit managers and other managed care organizations, will result in decreased reimbursement for
prescription drugs, which may further exacerbate industry-wide pressure to reduce the prices charged for prescription drugs.
This could harm our ability to market our products and generate revenues.

We depend on attracting and retaining key scientific and management personnel to advance our technelogy, and the
loss of these personnel could impair the development of our products.

Our success depends on our continued ability to attract, retain and motivate highly qualified management, clinical and
scientific personnel and on our ability to develop and maintain important relationships with leading academic institutions,
clinicians and scientists. We are highly dependent upon our senior management and scientific staff, particularly John P,
Longenecker, Ph.D., our President and Chief Executive Officer, and Daniel P. Gold, Ph.D., one of our co-founders and our
Chief Scientific Officer. The loss of services of Dr. Longenecker or Dr. Gold, or one or more of our other members of senior
management, could delay or prevent the successful completion of our pivotal Phase 3 clinical trial or the commercialization
of Favld. Although we have employment agreements with each of our executives, their employment with us is “at will,” and
each executive can terminate his or her agreement with us at any time. We do not carry “key person” insurance covering
members of senior management, other than Drs. Longenecker and Gold. This insurance may not continue to be available on
commercially reasonable terms and may prove inadequate to compensate us for the loss of their services. '

The competition for qualified personnel in the biotechnology field is intense. In particular, our manufacturing process
depends on our ability to attract and retain qualified manufacturing and quatlity control personnel. We will need to hire
additional personnel as we continue to expand our manufacturing, research and development activities. We may not be able
to attract and retain quality personnel on acceptable terms given the competition for such personnel among bictechnology,
pharmaceutical and other companies. We are not aware of any key personnel planning to retire or terminate their employment
in the near future,
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We will need to increase the size of our organization, and we may experience difficulties in managing growth.

As of December 31, 2006, we had 151 employees. Of these, 123 employees were in research and development comprised of
88 in manufacturing, quality control and quality assurance, 32 in research and process development, and three members of
senior management. Of the remaining employees, three were members of senior management and 25 were in marketing,
general and administration. We will need to expand our financial, managerial, operational and other resources in order to
continue our clinical trials and commercialize Favld, FAV-201, or any other product candidates that we may develop. Future
growth would impose significant added responsibilities on our management team, including the need to identify, recruit,
maintain and integrate additional employees. Our ability to commercialize Favid, FAV-201, or any other product candidates
that we may develop, and our future financial performance in general, will depend in part on our ability to manage any future
growth effectively. In order to meet these challenges, we would need to:

» manage our clinical trials effectively;

s manage our research and development efforts effectively;

* develop our administrative, accounting and management information systems and controls; and

¢ hire, train and integrate additional management, administrative, manufacturing and §ales and marketing persqnnel.

We may not be able to accomplish these tasks, and our failure to accomplish any of them could harm our business or future
prospects.

If we use biological and hazardous materials in a manner that causes injury or violites laws, we may be liable for
damages.

Our research and development and manufacturing activities involve the use of biological and hazardous materials that could
be dangerous to human health, safety or the environment. Although we betieve our safety procedures for handling and
disposing of these materials comply with federal, state and local laws and regulations, we cannot entirely eliminate the risk of
accidental injury or contamination from the use, storage, handling or disposal of these materials. In the event of
contamination or injury, we could be held liable for any resulting damages, and any liability could exceed our resources. We
currently maintain property and casualty insurance coverage which covers liability for hazardous and controlled materials.
However, this insurance coverage may not be sufficient to cover our liability and we may not be able to obtain sufficient
coverage in the future at a reasonable cost. In addition, we may incur significant costs complying with both existing and
future environmental laws and regulations, In particular, we are subject to regulation by the Occupational Safety and Health
Administration, or OSHA, and the Environmental Protection Agency, or EPA, and to regulation under the Toxic Substances
Control Act and the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act. OSHA, the EPA or other agencies may adopt regulations that
adversely affect our research and development programs.

We face a risk of product liability claims and may not be able to obtain adequate insurance,

Our business exposes us to potential liability risks that may arise from the clinical testing of our product candidates and the
manufacture and sale of any approved products. These risks will exist even with respect to those product candidates that are
approved for commercial sale by the FDA and manufactured in facilities regulated by the FDA. Any product liability claim
or series of claims brought against us could significantly harm our business by, among other things, reducing demand for our
products, injuring our reputation and creating significant adverse media attention and costly litigation. Plaintiffs have
received substantial damage awards in some jurisdictions against pharmaceutical companies based upon claims for injuries
allegedly caused by the use of their products. Any judgment against us that is in excess of our insurance policy limits would
have to be paid from our cash reserves, which would reduce our capital resources. We currently maintain clinical trial
insurance. Although we believe our current insurance coverage is adequate, we cannot be certain that it will be sufficient.
Furthermore, we cannot be certain that our current insurance coverage will continue to be available, or that increased
coverage, which will be necessary if we are able to commercialize our products, will be available in the future on reasonable
terms, or at all. Further, we may not have sufficient capital resources to pay a judgment, in which case our creditors could
levy claims against our assets, including our intellectual property.
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We could be negatively impacted by future interpretation or implementation of federal and state fraud and abuse
laws, including anti-kickback laws and other federal and state anti-referral laws.

If we are able to commercialize Favld or any other product candidates that we may develop, we will be subject to various
federal and state laws pertaining to healthcare fraud and abuse, including anti-kickback laws and physician self-referral laws.
Violations of these laws are punishable by criminal and civil sanctions, including, in some instances, imprisonment and
exclusion from participation in federal and state healthcare programs, including Medicare, Medicaid and Veterans
Administration health programs. Because of the far-reaching nature of these laws, we may be required to atter one or more of
our practices to be in compliance with these laws. Healthcare fraud and abuse regulations are complex, and even minor,
inadvertent irregularities can potentially give rise to claims that a statute or prohibition has been violated. Any violations of
these laws, or any action against us for violation of these laws, even if we successfully defend against it, could result in a
material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations. If there is a change in law, regulation or
administrative or judicial interpretations, we may have to change our business practices or our existing business practices
could be challenged as unlawful, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results
of operations. In addition, some allegations under these laws have been claimed to violate the False Claims Act, discussed in
more detail below.

In addition, if we are able to commercialize Favid or any other product candidates that we may develop, we could become
subject to false claims litigation under federal statutes, which can lead to civil money penalties, criminal fines and
imprisonment, and exclusion from participation in Medicare, Medicaid and other federal and state healthcare programs.
These false claims statutes include the False Claims Act, which allows any person to bring suit on behalf of the federal
government alleging the submission of false or fraudulent claims, or causing to present such false or fraudulent claims, under
federal programs or contracts claims or other violations of the statute and to share in any amounts paid by the entity to thz
government in fines or settlement. These suits against biotechnology companies have increased significantly in recent years
and have increased the risk that a healthcare company will have to defend a false claim action, pay fines or be exciuded from
the Medicare, Medicaid or other federal and state healthcare programs as a result of an investigation arising out of such
action. We cannot assure you that we will not become subject to such litigation or, if we are not successful in defending
against such actions, that such actions will not have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and resalts
of operations. In addition, we cannot assure you that the costs of defending claims or allegations under the False Claims Act
will not have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Risks Related to Our Intellectual Property and Potential Litigation

If we are unable to obtain and maintain protection for our intellectual property, the value of our technology and
products may be adversely affected.

Our business and competitive positions are dependent upon our ability to protect our proprietary technology. Our success will
depend in large part on our ability to obtain and maintain patent protection for our product and technologies, preserve trade
secrets and operate without infringing the intellectual property right of others. Because of the substantial length of time and
expense associated with development of new products, we, along with the rest of the biopharmaceutical industry, place
considerable importance on obtaining and maintaining patent protection for new technologies, products and processes. The
patent positions of pharmaceutical, biopharmaceutical and biotechnology companies, including us, are generally uncertain
and involve complex legal and factual questions. Our patent applications may not protect our technologies and products
because, among other things:

o there is no guarantee that any of our pending patent applications will result in issucd patents,
« we may develop additional proprietary technologies that are not patentable;

s there is no guarantee that any patents issued to us, our collaborators or our licensors will provide a basis for a
commercially viable product;

o there is no guarantee that any patents issued to us or our collaborators or our licensors will provide us with any
competitive advantage;

» there is no guarantee that any patents issued to us or our collaborators or our licensors will not be challenged,
circumvented or invalidated by third parties; and
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o there is no guarantee that any patents previously issued to others or issued in the future will not have an adverse
effect on our ability to do business.

We attempt to protect our intellectual property position by filing United States patent applications related to our proprietary
technology, inventions and improvements that are important to the development of our business. Currently we own U.S.
Patent No. 6,911,204 concerning the treatment of NHL with our technology together with four pending United States patent
applications covering methods of treating immune system diseases, including B-cell and T-cell lymphomas, using our
proprietary immunotherapy production methods, as well as methods for combining the idiotype immunotherapies with other
therapies that are used to treat diseases of the immune system.

QOutside of the United States, we have six issued patents and over twenty pending patent applications. Limitations on patent
protection in some countries outside the United States, and the differences in what constitutes patentable subject matter in
these countries, may limit the protection we have under patents issued to us outside of the United States. In addition, laws of
foreign countries may not protect our intellectual property to the same extent as would laws of the United States. In
determining whether or not to seek a patent or to license any patent in a particular foreign country, we weigh the relevant
costs and benefits, and consider, among other things, the market potential of our product candidates in the jurisdiction, and
the scope and enforceability of patent protection afforded by the law of the jurisdiction. Failure to obtain adequate patent
protection for our proprietary product candidates and technology would impair our ability to be commercially competitive in
these markets.

Although we believe our issued patents, as well as our patent applications if they issue as patents, will provide a competitive
advantage, we may not be able to develop additional patentable products or processes. Further, we may not be able to obtain
patents from any of the pending applications. Even if patent claims are allowed, the claims may not issue, or in the event of
issuance, may not be sufficient to protect our technology. In addition, any patents or patent rights we obtain may be
circumvented, challenged or invalidated by our competitors.

We are not able to prevent others, including potential competitors, from using certain types of patient-specific
idiotype protein-KL.H conjugates, like those we use in our lead product candidate, Favid, for the treatment of indolent
B-cell NHL.

Certain types of patient-specific idiotype-KLH conjugates, comprising single idiotype proteins, and their use for the
treatment of indolent B-cell NHL are in the public domain and therefore cannot be patented. Consequently, we may only be
able to seek patent protection for methods of treating immune system diseases, including B-cell and T-cell lymphomas, using
our proprietary immunotherapy production methods for making idiotype protein conjugates and compositions comprising
such conjugates, as well as methods for combining the idiotype or T-cell receptor-based immunotherapies with other
therapies that are used to treat diseases of the immune system. As a result, we may not be able to prevent other companies
using different manufacturing processes from developing active immunotherapies that directly compete with Favld.

We may have to engage in costly litigation to enforce our proprietary rights or to defend challenges to our intellectual
property by our competitors, which may harm our business, results of operations, financial condition and cash flow,

The pharmaceutical field is characterized by a large number of patent filings involving complex legal and factual questions,
and, therefore, we cannot predict with certainty whether our patents will be enforceable. Competitors may have filed
applications for or have been issued patents and may obtain additional patents and proprietary rights related to products or
processes that compete with or are similar to ours. We may not be aware of all of the patents potentially adverse to our
interests that may have been issued to others. Litigation may be necessary to protect our patent position, and we cannot be
certain that we will have the required resources to pursue litigation or otherwise to protect our patent rights. In addition, our
efforts to protect our patents may not be successful.

Our ability to market our products may be impaired by the intellectual property rights of third parties,

Our commercial success will depend in part on not infringing the patents or proprietary rights of third parties. We are aware
of competing intellectual property relating to active idiotype immunotherapies for cancer. Competitors or third parties may be
issued, or may currently hold, patents that may cover subject matter that we use in developing the technology required to
bring our product candidates to market, that we use in producing our product candidates, or that we use in treating patients
with our product candidates. In addition, from time to time we receive correspondence inviting us to license patents from
third parties. While we currently believe we have freedom to operate in our area, others may challenge our position in the
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future. There has been, and we believe that there will continue to be, significant litigation in the pharmaceutical industry
regarding patent and other intellectual property rights.

While we believe that our pre-commercialization activities fall within the scope of an available exemption against patent
infringement provided by 35 U.S.C. §271(e), and that our subsequent manufacture of our commercial products will also ot
require the license of any patents, claims may be brought against us in the future based on these or other patents held by

others. As our product candidates progress toward commercialization, competitors or other parties may assert that we infringe
on their patents or proprietary rights.

In particular, we are aware of the following third party patents:

¢ Genentech and City of Hope National Medical Center hold patent rights related to the expression of recombinant
antibodies;

» Genitope holds patent rights relating to immunotherapy using idiotype proteins produced using T-lymphoid cetls
for the treatment of B-Cell lymphoma; and

» Schering Corp. holds patent rights relating to the use of GM-CSF as a vaccine adjuvant for use against infectious
diseases.

The first patent listed above was issued to Genentech in 2001. We do not believe that this patent covers our technology, and
we note that in May 2005, a third party filed a request for reexamination of this patent with the U.S. Patent and Trademark
Office, requesting that the claims of this patent be reexamined as to their patentability; the reexamination is currently
pending. During reexamination the issued claims were rejected; proceedings before the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office
continue. If this patent reissues and we decide to attempt to obtain a license for this patent, we cannot guarantee that we
wotuld be able to obtain such a license on commercially reasonable terms, or at all.

Additionally, because patent prosecution can proceed in secret prior to issuance of a patent, third parties may obtain other
patents with claims of unknown scope relating to our product candidates, which they could attempt to assert against us.
Further, as we develop our products, we may infringe the current patents of third parties or patents that may issue in the
future. Third parties could bring legal actions against us claiming damages and seeking to enjoin clinical testing,
manufacturing and marketing of the affected product or products. If we become involved in any litigation, it could consume a
substantial portion of our resources, regardless of the outcome of the litigation. If any of these actions are successful, in
addition to any potential liability for damages, we could be required to obtain a license to continue to manufacture or market
the affected product, in which case we may be required to pay substantial royalties or grant cross-licenses to our patents.
However, there can be no assurance that any such license will be available on acceptable terms or at all. To enforce patents
issued to us or to determine the scope and validity of other parties’ proprietary rights, we may also become involved in
litigation or in interference proceedings declared by the United States Patent and Trademark Office, which could result in
substantial costs to us, regardless of the outcome of the litigation, or an adverse decision as to the priority of our inventions.
Ultimately, as a result of patent infringement claims, our business could be harmed and we could be prevented from
commercializing a product, or forced to cease some aspect of our business operations.

If we are not able to protect and control unpatented trade secrets, know-how and other technological innovation, we
may suffer competitive harm.

‘We also rely on trade secrets to protect our technology, particularly when we do not believe that patent protection is
appropriate or available. However, trade secrets are difficult to protect. We attempt to protect our trade secrets by requiringg
each of our employees, consultants and advisors to execute a non-disclosure and assignment of invention agreement befor:
beginning his or her employment, consulting or advisory relationship with us. We cannot guarantee that these agreements
will provide meaningful protection, that these agreements will not be breached, that we will have an adequate remedy for any
such breach, or that our trade secrets will not otherwise become known or independently developed by a third party. Our
trade secrets, or those of our future collaborators, may become known or may be independently discovered by others, which
could adversely affect the competitive position of our product candidates.
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Risks Related to the Securities Markets and Ownership of Our Common Stock

Until our initial public offering in February 2005, there was no public market for our common stock, and the price of
our common stock may be volatile and could decline significantly.

Until our initial public offering, or IPQ, in February 2005, there was no public market for our common stock, and despite our
IPQO, an active public market for these shares may not be sustained. Qur stock price has traded in the range of $7.77- $2.39
from the commencement of our IPO on February 2, 2005 to March 22, 2007.
The stock market in general has been experiencing dramatic fluctuations that have often been unrelated to the operating
performance of companies. The market prices for securities of biotechnology companies in general have been highly volatile
and may continue to be highly volatile in the future. If market-based or industry-based volatility continues, the trading price
of our common stock could decline significantly, independent of our actual operating performance, and you could lose alt or
part of your investment. The market price of our common stock could fluctuate significantly as a result of several factors,
including:

» announcements of technological innovations or new products by us or our competitors;

¢ announcement of FDA approval or non-appreval of Favld or any other product candidates that we may develop, or
detays in the FDA review process;

= actions taken by regulatory agencies with respect to Favld and FAV-201, or any other product candidates that we
may develop, or our clinical trials, manufacturing process or sales and marketing activities;

e regulatory developments in the United States and foreign countries;

e success of our research efforts and clinical trials;

 any intellectual property infringement lawsuit in which we may become involved;

& announcements concemning our competitors, or the biotechnology ot biopharmaceutical industries in general,

* actual or anticipated fluctuations in our operating results;

» changes in financial estimates or recommendations by securities analysts;

o sales of large blocks of our common stock;

e sales of our common stock by our executive officers, directors and significant stockholders;

e changes in accounting principles; and

e loss of any of our key scientific or management personnel,
Specifically, you may not be able to resell your shares at or above the price you paid for such shares. In addition, class action
litigation has often been instituted against companies whose securities have experienced periods of volatility in market price.
Any such litigation brought against us could result in substantial costs and a diversion of management’s attention and

resources, which could hurt our business, operating results and financial condition.

Concentration of ownership among our existing officers, directors and principal stockholders may prevent other
stockholders from influencing significant corporate decisions and depress our stock price.

As of December 31, 2006, our officers and directors and stockholders affiliated with our directors together beneficially held
approximately 37.9% of our outstanding common stock on an as-converted basis. If some or all of these officers, directors

and principal stockholders act together, they will be able to exert a significant degree of influence over our management and
affairs and over matters requiring stockholder approval, including the election of directors, the merger, consolidation or sale
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of all or substantially all of our assets, and any other significant corporate transaction. The interests of this concentration of
ownership may not always coincide with our interests or the interests of our other stockholders. For instance, officers,
directors and principal stockholders, acting together, could cause us to enter into transactions or agreements that we would
not otherwise consider. Similarly, this concentration of ownership may have the effect of delaying or preventing a change in
control of us otherwise favored by our other stockholders. This concentration of ownership also could depress our stock
price.

Provisions in pur amended and restated certificate of incorporation and amended and restated bylaws and applicable
Delaware law may prevent or discourage third parties or our stockholders from attempting to replace our
management or influencing significant decisions.

Provisions in our amended and restated certificate of incorporation and amended and restated bylaws may have the effect of
delaying or preventing a change in control of us or our management, even if doing so would be beneficial to our
stockholders. These provisions include:

» dividing our board of directors into three classes serving staggered three-year terms;

¢ authorizing our board of directors to issue preferred stock without stockholder approval;
o prohibiting curnulative voting in the election of directors;

s prohibiting stockholder actions by written consent;

o limiting the persons who may call special meetings of stockholders;

» prohibiting our stockholders from making certain changes to our certificate of incorporation or bylaws except with
66.7% stockholder approval; and

e requiring advance notice for raising business matters or nominating directors at stockholders’ meetings.

We are also subject to provisions of the Delaware corporation law that, in general, prohibit any business combination with a
beneficial owner of 15% or moere of our common steck for five years unless the holder’s acquisition of our stock was
approved in advance by our board of directors. Together, these charter and statutory provisions could make the removal of
management more difficult and may discourage transactions that otherwise could involve payment of a premium over
prevailing market prices for our common stock.

Because we do not intend to pay any cash dividends on our shares of common stock, our stockhotders will not be uble
to receive a return on their shares unless they sell them.

We have never paid or declared any cash dividends on our capital stock and intend to retain any future earnings to finance the
development and expansion of our business. The payment of dividends by us on our common stock is limited by our debt
agreements. We do not anticipate paying any cash dividends on our common stock in the foreseeable future. Unless we pay
dividends, our stockholders will not be able to receive a return on their shares unless they sell them.

We may incur increased costs as a result of recently enacted and proposed changes in laws and regulations.

Recently enacted and proposed changes in the laws and regulations affecting public companies, including the provisions of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and rules related to corporate governance and other matters subsequently adopted by the
SEC and the Nasdaq Stock Market, could result in increased costs to us. The new rules and any related regulations that may
be proposed in the future could make it more difficult or more costly for us to obtain certain types of insurance, including
directors’ and officers’ liability insurance, and we may be forced to accept reduced policy limits and coverage or incur
substantiatly higher costs to obtain the same or similar coverage. The impact of these events could also make it more difficult
for us to attract and retain qualified persons to serve on our board of directors, our board committees or as executive officers.
We are presently evaluating and monitoring developments with respect to new and proposed rules and cannot predict or
estimate the amount of the additional costs we may incur or the timing of such costs.
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Item 1B.  Unresolved Staff Comments

Not applicable.

Item 2. Properties

We lease approximately 128,000 square feet of space in two adjacent buildings in San Diego, California under two lease
agreements. The lease term for the 80,000 square foot facility expires on June 30, 2025, but may be extended at our option
for two additional five-year periods. The lease term on the adjacent 48,000 square foot facility expires June 30, 2025, but
may be terminated, at no cost to us, as of June 1, 2017, upon six months’ prior notice to the landlord. We plan to dedicate the
existing 80,000 square feet of space for the commercial-scale manufacturing of Favld if it is approved and of product for
additional clinical trials. The 48,000 square foot facility houses our corporate offices. Construction of improvements for the
expansion of manufacturing capacity in the 80,000 square foot facility began in June 2006.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

We are currently not a party to any material legal proceeding. We may be subject to various claims and legal actions arising
in the ordinary course of business from time to time,

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

No matters were submitted to us by a vote of the security holders during the quarter ended December 31, 2006.
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PART I

Item 5, Market for the Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity
Securities

Common Stock Market Price
Our common stock commenced trading on the Nasdaq National Market on February 2, 2005 under the symbol “FVRL.” Prior

to such time, there was no public market for our common stock. The table below sets forth the high and low sales prices of
common stock:

High Low
2006
January 1, 2006 — March 31, 2006 .......ccvviiiiinniminiesrsnssgsessssesonnns 797 3.60
April 1, 2006 ~ June 30, 2006 ......cereemnninicernrmsiarene s 6.80 4.18
July 1, 2006 — September 30, 2006 ... 490 3.92
October 1, 2006 — December 31, 2006, .ccooeiiiricriiinccnneeeseenens 525 239
2005
February 2, 2005 —March 31, 2005 ... 7.50 4.79
April 1, 2005 — June 30, 2005 ... 524 346
July 1, 2005 — September 30, 2005 ... 6.60 3.83
Octaber 1, 2005 — December 31, 2005........ov et 472 3.20

As of March 22, 2007 we had outstanding 32,503,721 shares of common stock held by approximately 1,686 stockholders
including beneficial owners of the common stock whose shares are held in the names of various dealers, clearing agencics,
banks brokers and other fiduciaries.

Performance Measurement Comparison

The material in this section is not “soliciting material,” is not deemed “filed” with the Securities and Exchange
Commission, and is not to be incorporated by reference into any filing of Favrille under the Securities Act of 1933, as
amended, or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

The following graph shows a comparison of the total cumulative returns of an investment of $100 in cash (i) on
February 3, 2005, the first trading day following our initial public offering, in our common stock, (ii) on January 31, 2005 in
the Nasdaq Composite Index, U.S. Companies and (iii) on January 31, 2005 in the Nasdaq Biotechnology Index, in each case
through December 31, 2006. The comparisons in the graph are required by the SEC and are not intended to forecast or be
indicative of the possible future performance of our common stock. The graph assumes that all dividends have been
reinvested (to date, we have not declared any dividends).
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Dividends

We have never declared or paid any cash dividends on our capital stock. The payment of dividends by us on our commeon
-stock is limited by our debt agreements. We currently intend to retain ail of our future camings, if any, to finance the growth
and development of our business. We do not intend to pay cash dividends on our common stock for the foreseeable future.
Any future determination related to dividend policy will be made at the discretion of our board of directors.
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Use of Proceeds from the Sale of Registered Securities

Qur initial public offering of our commeon stock, par value $0.001, was effected through a Registration Statement on Form S-
1 (File No. 333-114299) that was declared effective by the Securities and Exchange Commission on February 2, 2005. On
February 7; 2005, 6 million shares of our common stock were sold for an aggregate offering price of $42.0 million. On
March 7, 2005, 285,000 shares of our common stock were sold for an aggregate offering price of $2.0 million upon the
partial exercise of the underwriters’ over-allotment option. Our initial public offering resulted in aggregate proceeds to us of
approximately $39.5 million, net of underwriting discounts and commissions of approximately $3.1 million and offering
expenses of approximately $1.4 million, through a syndicate of underwriters managed by Bear, Stearns & Co. Inc., CIBC

World Markets Corp., Needham & Company, Inc. and A.G. Edwards & Sons, Inc.

No offering expenses were paid directly or indirectly to any of our directors or officers (or their associates) or person owning
ten percent or more of any class of our equity securities or to any other affiliates. All offering expenses were paid directly to

others.

We had invested $40.9 million in proceeds from the offering, net of underwriting discounts and commissions but before
expenses, in govermment agency securities, corporate bonds and notes and money market funds. Through December 31,
2006, we used all of the proceeds from our initial public offering to develop and prepare for filing a biologic license
application, or BLA, for regulatory approval of Favld, for development of our other product candidates, for general and

administrative expenses, and for working capital, including debt repayments.

The foregoing payments were direct payments made to third parties who were not our directors or officers (or their
associates), persons owning ten percent or more of any class of our equity securities or any other affiliate, except that the




proceeds used for salaries expense included regular compensation for our officers and directors. The use of proceeds does
not represent a material change from the use of proceeds described in the prospectus we filed pursuant to Rule 424(b)(4) of
the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, with the Securities and Exchange Commission on February 3, 2005.

Issuer Purchase Of Equity Securities

On October 16, 2006, we repurchased 254 restricted shares of common stock from an employee whose employment had
terminated. These restricted common stock shares had been issued upon the early exercise of employee options and upon
termination had not yet vested.

Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The following selected financial data set forth below should be read in conjunction with Financial Statements and Notes
thereto included in Item 8 and with “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations” included in Item 7. The selected financial data for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 and the
selected balance sheet data as of December 31, 2006 and 2005 are derived from our audited financial statements, which are
included in Ttem 8. The selected financial data for the years ended 2003 and 2002 and the selected balance sheet data as of
December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 are derived from our audited financial statements, which are not included in this report.
Our historical results are not necessarily indicative of our future results.

Years ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004 2003 2002

Operating expenses:

Research and development ............. b 31,050 § 29,592 § 19,890 % 10,606 § 5,308

General and administrative............... 11,170 6,776 5,716 2,433 2,017
Total operating eXpenses .........ccocoueueee 42,220 36,368 235,606 13,039 7,325
Loss from operations ... (42,220) (36,368) (25,606) (13,039) (7,325)
Interest iNCOME. .......cverrereeeeeemsssssisnaens 2,648 1,492 375 108 167
INterest EXPense ........covvimssescsnseriessns (834) (703) (817) (332) (88)
Other income (€Xpense) .........ocececeeeene (105) (6) 12 ‘ 8 —
Loss on extinguishment of debt........... — (290 — — —
Total other income (expense), net........ 1,709 ' 493 (430) (216) 79
INELLOSS vovemeeceveceenrr e sssesesnseniens (40,511) (35,875 (26,036) (13,255) (7,246)

Deemed dividend—beneficial

conversion feature for Series C

redeemable convertible preferred

STOCK e eraner e e — —_ (28,103) — —
Accretion of Series C redeemable )

convertible preferred stock issnance

COBIS cuciviimsmreiastsmrnrsbare s s mnasssssnaes — (6) (51) — —
Net loss applicable to common

stockholders......cooovevnnvinececniniiienns . $ (40,511) $  (35.881) $  (54,190) $  (13,255) § (7,246)
Historical net loss per share:
Basic and diluted.......occococoiiiininnnnn. $ (149 § (1.99) § {(5148) § (16.97) § {11.87)
Weighted-average shares—basic and :

diluted ....cooeeeree et 27,247,385 18,060,992 1,052,624 781,054 610,709
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As of December 31,

1006 2005 2004 2003 2002
(in thousands)

Balance Sheet Data:
Cash and cash equivalents ................... 3 14249 % 12,065 $ 25,065 § 5610 § 10,030
Short-term investments.............o.ocvenn 28,160 22,427 1,493 — —
Working capital ....ccoovivricevererernineinenn, 31,504 28,986 22,176 3,466 9,226
Total B8SetS ..veeveemrerrrrrereeiine e 72,289 47,007 39,130 14,932 11,998
Debt (less current portion) ................... 5,754 3,532 4,224 3,501 207
Redeemable convertible preferred stock

......................................................... — — 43,672 — —
Deficit accumulated during the

development Stage ......c.covveeceecnnens (155,894) (115,383) (79,502) (25,312) (12,057)
Total stockholders’ equity (deficit)...... 44,635 35,714 (14,654) 8,278 10,727

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

You should read the following discussion and analysis together with our financial statements and accompanying notes
included elsewhere in this report. This discussion contains forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties.
As a result of several factors, including those set forth under Item 14 of Part I and elsewhere in this Report, our actual
results and the timing of selected events may differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking statements.

Overview

We are a biopharmaceutical company focused on the development and commercialization of targeted immunotherapies for
the treatment of cancer and other diseases of the immune system. We have developed a proprietary technology that enables
us to manufacture active immunotherapy products that are designed to stimulate a patient’s immune system to mount a
specific and sustained response to disease. Our lead product candidate, Favid, is an active immunotherapy for the treatment
of B-c¢ll non-Hodgkin’s lymphoma, or NHL. We initiated a pivotal Phase 3 clinical trial of FavId in patients with follicular
B-cell NHL in July 2004 and completed patient enrollment in January 2006 with 349 patients randomized into the trial. In
addition, FavId has been evaluated in several multi-center, open-label Phase 2 clinical trials involving more than 130 patients.

We believe Favld may be effective in treating other types of B-cell NHL. Four additional Phase 2 clinical trials of Favld are
ongoing. One of these clinical trials is being conducted under a separate physician-sponsored Investigational New Drug, or
IND, application in the United States. Moreover, we believe our active immunotherapy expertise and proprietary
manufacturing technology may enable us to develop additional product candidates for other oncology indications, such as T-
cell lymphoma, and for autoimmune diseases. In June 2006, we received an allowance from the FDA for an IND for our
second product candidate, FAV-201, for the treatment of cutaneous T-cell lymphoma. We have retained exclusive worldwide
commercialization rights to all of our product candidates.

We were incorporated in Delaware in January 2000. As of December 31, 2006, we had not generated any revenues, and we
had financed our operations and internal growth through private placements of our stock and warrants, equipment and
leasehold debt financings and the sale of commeon stock in our initial public offering, or IPO, in February 2005. We are a
development stage company and have incurred significant losses since our inception in 2000, as we have devoted
substantially all of our efforts to research and development activities, including clinical trials. As of December 31, 2006, our
deficit accumulated during the development stage was approximately $155.9 million. We expect to incur substantial and
increasing losses for the next several years as we:

e continue to develop and prepare for the commercialization of our lead product candidate, Favid;

« cxpand our research and development programs;

* expand our current manufacturing ca;pabilities to support commercial manufacturing of Favld; and
= acquire or in-license oncology products that are complementary to our own.
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Financial Operations Overview

Research and Development Expense. Rescarch and development expense consists primarily of costs associated with clinical
trials of our product candidates, including the costs of manufacturing our product candidates, compensation and other
expenses related to research and development personnel, facilities costs and depreciation. We charge all research and
development expenses to operations as they are incurred. Our research and development activities are primarily focused on
the development of Favid. We have completed enrollment in two Phase 2 clinical trials and continue to evaluate the results.
We initiated our pivotal Phase 3 clinical trial of FavId following Rituxan in patients with follicular B-cell NHL in July 2004
and completed patient enrollment in the trial in January 2006. In addition, four additional Phase 2 clinical trials of Favid are
ongoing.

From inception through December 31, 2006, we incurred costs of approximately $99.9 million associated with the research
and development of Favld, which represents substantially all of our research and development costs to date. We expect our
research and development costs to increase as we advance Favld and new product candidates into later stages of clinical
development, While difficult to predict, we estimate that research and development costs required to complete the
development of and file a Biologics Licensing Application, or BLA, for Favld will be an additional $55 million. We arc
unable to estimate with any certainty the costs we will incur in the continued development of other product candidates for
commercialization. On an ongoing basis, we expect to expand our research and development activities to include clinical
development of FAV-201 and preclinical research of treatments for autoimmune diseases, initially multiple sclerosis.

Clinical development timelines, likelihood of success and total costs vary widely. Although we are currently focused
primarily on Favld, we anticipate that we will make determinations as to which rescarch and development projects to pursue
and how much funding to direct toward each project on an ongoing basis in response to the scientific and clinical success of
each product candidate.

At this time, due to the risks inherent in the clinical trial process, clinical trial completion dates and costs vary significartly
for each product candidate and are difficult to estimate. The lengthy process of seeking regulatory approvals and the
subsequent compliance with applicable regulations require the expenditure of substantial resources. Any failure by us to
obtain, or any delay in obtaining, regulatory approvals for our product candidates could cause our research and development
expenditures to increase and, in turn, have a material adverse effect on our results of operations. We cannot be certain when,
if ever, any cash flows from our current product candidates will commence. .

Marketing, General and Administrative Expense. Marketing, general and administrative expenses consist primarily of
compensation and other expenses related to our marketing and corporate administrative employees, legal fees and other
professional services expenses. We anticipate increases in marketing, general and administrative expenses as we add
personnel and continue to develop and prepare for commercialization of our product candidates.

Interest Income. Interest income primarily consists of interest earned on our cash reserves, cash invested in money market
funds, government securities, corporate notes and bonds and certificates of deposit.

Interest Expense. Interest expense represents interest on our debt, including capital leases.
Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations are based on our financial statements, which
have been prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. The preparation of financial statements
requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, expenses and related
disclosures. Actual results could differ from those estimates. While our significant accounting policies are described in more
detail in Note 1 of the Notes to Financial Statements included elsewhere in this report, we believe the following accounting
policies to be critical to the judgments and estimates used in the preparation of our financial statements:

Stock-Based Compensation. Effective January 1, 2006, we adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123
(revised 2004), “Share-Based Payment,” (SFAS 123(R)). Under SFAS 123(R), stock-based compensation cost is measured
at the grant date, based on the estimated fair value of the award, and is recognized as expense over the employee’s requisite
service period. We adopted the provisions of SFAS 123(R) using a modified prospective application. Accordingly, prior
periods have not been revised for comparative purposes. The valuation provisions of SFAS 123(R) apply to new awards and
to awards that are outstanding on the effective date, which are subsequently modified or cancelled. Estimated compensation
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expense for awards outstanding at the effective date will be recognized over the remaining service period using the
compensation cost calculated for pro forma disclosure purposes under SFAS 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation.
We utilize the Black-Scholes valuation model for estimating the fair value of the stock-based compensation granted both
before and after the adoption of SFAS 123(R). The Black-Scholes valuation model requires extensive use of accounting
judgment and financial estimates, including estimates of the expected term participants will retain their vested stock options
before exercising them, the estimated volatility of our common stock price over the expected term and the number of options
that will be forfeited prior to the completion of their vesting requirements. Application of alternative assumptions could
produce significantly different estimates of the fair value of stock-based compensation and consequently, the related amount
of stock-based compensation expense recognized in the Statement of Operations could have been significantly different than
the amounts recorded. Under provisions of SFAS 123(R), we recorded approximately $4.0 million of stock-based
compensation expense in our Statement of Operations for the year ended December 31, 2006. Prior to the adoption of SFAS
123(R), we recorded approximately $2.9 million and $2.4 million of stock-based compensation expense for certain options
granted during 2005 and 2004 in our Statement of Operations for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, tespectively,
under the provisions of APB 25 based upon their intrinsic value. At December 31, 2006, the total compensation cost related
to unvested stock-based awards granted to employees under our stock award plans but not yet recognized was approximately
$6.7 millicn, net of estimated forfeitures of approximately $380,000. This cost will be amortized on a straight-line basis over
a weighted-average period of approximately 1.25 years and will be adjusted for subsequent changes in estimated forfeitures.
See Note 5 to the Financial Statements for further information on our accounting for stock-based compensation.

Lease Obligation. We recognize rent expense on a straight-line basis over the reasonably assured lease term. Qur lease
agreements provide for scheduled rent increases during the lease terms or for rental payments commencing at a date other
than the date of initial occupancy. We include any rent escalations and other rent holidays in our straight-line rent expense.
In addition, tenant improvements paid by the landlord are capitalized as leasehold improvements and amortized over the
shorter of their estimated useful lives or the remaining lease term, while the tenant improvement allowance is recorded as
deferred rent and recovered ratably over the remaining term of the lease.

Capitalized Software. Software developed for internal use, whether purchased or developed, is capitalized and amortized
using the straight-line method over an estimated useful life of five years. Costs incurred until the point the project has
reached development stage are expensed in accordance with Statement of Position (“SOP") 98-1, “dccounting for the Costs
of Computer Sofiware Developed or Obtained for Internal Use.” Determining when a project has reached the development
stage, requires the use of judgment. Subsequent additions, modifications or upgrades to internal-use software are capitalized
only to the extent that they allow the software to perform a task it previously did not perform. Software maintenance and
training costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Management has discussed the development and selection of these critical accounting policies with the Audit Committee of
our Board of Directers and the Audit Committee has reviewed the disclosures presented above relating to them,

Results of Operations
Comparison of Fiscal Years Ended December 31, 2006 to 2005

Research and Development. Research and development expense increased from approximately $29.6 million in 2005 to
$31.1 million in 2006. The increase of $1.5 million, or 5%, was due primarily to an increase of approximately $2.4 million
for the compensation costs of additional personnel and the 2006 merit bonus program, an increase of approximately $950,000
primarily due to the increased amortization of deferred rent associated with the amended long-term lease agreements related
to our facility expansion; an increase of approximately $650,000 to support our pivotal Phase 3 clinical trial and Information
Technology outside services, clinical and regulatory third-party consulting services to prepare for the commercialization of
Favld; and an increase of approximately $550,000 in stock-based compensation costs due to the implementation of SFAS
123(R); offset by a decrease of approximately $2.3 million of raw materials and supplies for the manufacture of Favld due to
the completion of patient enrollment into our pivotal Phase 3 clinical trial in the first quarter of 2006 and a decrease of
approximately $1.3 million in clinical trial site costs.

Marketing, General and Administrative. Marketing, general and administrative expense increased from approximately
$6.8 million in 2005 to $11.2 million in 2006. The increase of $4.4 million, or 65%, primarily reflects an increase of
approximately $1.9 million in personnel and outside services related to strategic marketing programs; an increase of
approximately $800,000 in compensation costs associated with additional administrative personnel, discretionary bonuses
paid in 2006 and the 2006 merit bonus program; an increase of approximately $600,000 in stock-based compensation due to
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the implementation of SFAS 123(R); and an increase of approximately $550,000 in legal and audit fees and other public
company expenses. ‘

Interest Income. Interest income increased from approximately $1.5 million in 2005 to $2.6 million in 2006. The increase of
$1.1 million, or 73%, was primarily a result of rising interest rates during 2006 and the higher average cash, cash equivalents
and short term investments balance of $51.7 million available for investment during 2006 as compared to $46.0 million in
2005. The higher cash, cash equivalents and short term investments is due to the addition of net proceeds of $45 million
from our private placement of common stock and warrants in March 2006.

Comparison of Fiscal Years Ended December 31, 2005 to 2004

Research and Development. Research and development expense increased from approximately $18.7 million in 2004 to
$28.2 million in 2005. The increase of $9.5 million, or 51%, was primarily due to an increase of approximately $2.7 million
in clinical trial site costs; an increase of $2.6 million associated with an increase in personnel from 92 employees to 115
employees to support our Phase 3 clinical trial initiated in July 2004; an increase of $2.2 million associated with supplies to
support continued process and formulation development and the purchase of raw materials and supplies for our manufacture
of Favld for our Phase 3 clinical trial, an increase of $1.0 million paid to third party vendors providing support services for
our Phase 3 clinical trial, including randomization of patients, radiology and laboratory management; and an increase of
$500,000 related to the operation of our manufacturing facility to support the production of Favld.

General and Administrative. General and administrative expense increased from approximately $4.5 million in 2004 to
$5.3 million in 2005. The increase of $800,000, or 18%, was primarily due to an increase of approximately $620,000
associated with an increase in personnel from 17 employees to 21 employees; an increase of approximately $640,000 in
directors and officers liability insurance premiums and public company-related expenses incurred subsequent to our IPO; an
increase of approximately $180,000 in recruiting and relocation expenses related to the increase in personnel;, an increase of
approximately $157,000 in fees related to market research studies, all of which were partially offset by a decrease of
approximately $790,000 due to non-recurring IPO related expenditures in 2004.

Amortization of Stock-Based Compensation. In connetction with the grant of stock options, we recorded deferred stock-
based compensation of $350,000 and $9.4 million in 2005 and 2004, respectively. Deferred stock-based compensation ‘was
reduced by amounts representing stock option cancellations and our repurchases of unvested restricted stock of
approximately $221,000 and $224,000 in 2005 and 2004, respectively. We recorded these amounts as components of
stockholders’ equity and are amortizing the amounts, on a straight-line basis, as a non-cash charge to operations over the
vesting period of the options, We recorded amortization of stock-based compensation of $2.9 million and $2.4 million in
2005 and 2004, respectively.

Interest Expense. Tnterest expense decreased from approximately $817,000 in 2004 to $703,000 in 2005. The decrease of
$114,000, or 14%, was primarily due to repayments of approximately $5.5 million associated with our debt agreements with
GE Technology Finance with interest rates ranging from 11.44% to 14.66%, offset by approximately $5.0 million of new
borrowings under new debt agreements, with Oxford Finance Corporation (“Oxford”) and GE Capital Corporation with
interest rates ranging from 9.34% to 12.17%.

Interest Income. Interest income increased from approximately $375,000 in 2004 to $1.5 million in 2005. The increase of
$1.1 million, or 300%, was primarily a result of the increase in interest rates during 2005 and the higher average cash, cash
equivalents and short term investments balance of $46.0 million available for investment during 2005 as compared to $28.9
million in 2004. The higher cash, cash equivalents and short term investments is due to the addition of net proceeds of $39.5
miltion from our IPO in February 2005.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Sources of Liquidity

We have historically funded our operations primarily through the sale of our equity securities and equipment and leasehold
debt financing. As of December 31, 2006, we had received proceeds of approximately $76.1 million, net of stock issuance

costs from the sale of preferred stock which was converted to common stock; proceeds from the sale of common stock in our
IPO of approximately $39.5 million, net of underwriters’ discounts and commissions and offering expenses; and proceeds of
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approximately $45.0 million from the sale of common steck and warrants to purchase common stock to certain investors, ina
private placement, net of offering expenses.

As of December 31, 2006 we had financed the purchase of equipment and leasehold improvements through debt totaling
approximately $20.0 million. Total debt of $10.7 million was outstanding at that date. These obligations are secured by our
existing and future assets excluding intellectual property and are due in monthly installments through July 2010. They bear
interest at stated rates ranging from approximately 9.34% to 12.17%. The debt agreements subject us to certain financial and
non-financial covenants. As of December 31, 2006, we were in compliance with the terms of the debt agreements.

Cash Flows

As of December 31, 2006, cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments were approximately $42.4 million as compared
to $34.5 million at December 31, 2005, an increase of approximately $7.9 million. The increase resulted primarily from the
$45.0 million in net proceeds received from our private placement during the first quarter of 20086, partially offset by net
cash used to fund ongoing operations.

Net cash used in operating activities was approximately $32.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2006, compared to
approx1mately $29.6 million for the same period in 2005. The increase of approximately $2.5 million is primarily due to an
increase in operating expenses related to additional personne! and other expenses related to the continuing clinical
development and preparation for commercialization of FavId,

Net cash used in investing activities for the year ended December 31, 2006 was approximately $15.5 million compared to net
cash used in investing activities of $22.7 million for the same period in 2005. The decrease of approximately $7.2 million is
due to an increase of approximately $16.0 million in short-term investment maturities net of short-term investment purchases,
offset by an increase of approximately $6.8 in property and equipment purchases and the increase of $1.9 million in restricted
cash to collateralize the letter of credit, which has been increased to $3.5 million as required by our facility lease agreement.
Net cash provided by financing activities for the year ended December 31, 2006 totaled $49.8 million, reflecting primarily
the net proceeds from our private placement of common stock and warrants in the first quarter of 2006 of approximately
$45.0 million. Net cash provided by financing for the same period in 2005 totaled approximately $39.4 million, reflecting
primarily the net proceeds of our IPO of $39.5 million in February 20035.

Funding Requirements

Our future capital uses and requirements depend on numerous forward-looking factors. These factors include but are not
limited to the following:

e the results of our ongoing pivotal Phase 3 clinical trial of Favid;

+ magnitude and cost of our product development efforts and other research and development activities;

o rate of progress toward obtaining regulatory approval for our product candidates;

» costs of filing, prosecuting, defending and enforcing our patent claims and other intellectual property rights;

& our ability to establish and maintain collaborative, licensing or other arrangements for the development, sale,
marketing or distribution of our product candidates and the terms of those arrangements;

» effects of competing technological and market developments; and

# the success of the commercialization of Favld.
Until we can generate significant cash from our operations, we expect to continue to fund our operations with existing cash
resources that were primarily generated from the proceeds of offerings of our equity securities and from equipment and

leasehold improvement debt financing. In addition, we may finance future cash needs through the sale of other equity
securities, strategic collaboration agreements and debt financing. However, we may not be successful in obtaining
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collaboration agreements, or in receiving milestone or royalty payments under those agreements. In addition, we cannot be
sure that our existing cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments will be adequate or that additional financing will be
available when needed or that, if available, financing will be obtained on terms favorable to us or our stockholders. Having
insufficient funds may require us to delay, scale back or eliminate some or all of our research or development programs or to
relinquish greater or all rights to product candidates at an earlier stage of development or on less favorable terms than we
would otherwise choose. Failure to obtain adequate financing may also adversely affect our ability to operate as a going
concern. If we raise additional funds by issuing equity securities, substantial dilution to existing stockholders would likely
result, If we raise additional funds by incurring debt financing, the terrhs of the debt may involve significant cash payment
obligations as well as covenants and specific financial ratios that may restrict our ability to operate our business.

As of December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, we have not invested in any variable interest entities. We do not have any
relationships with unconsolidated entities or financial partnerships, such as entities often referred to as structured finance or
special purpose entities, which would have been established for the purpose of facilitating off-balance sheet arrangemenls or
other contractually narrow or limited purposes. In addition, we do not engage in trading activities involving non-exchange
traded contracts. As such, we are not materially exposed to any financing, liquidity, market or credit risk that could arise if
we had engaged in these relationships. We do not have relationships or transactions with persons or entities that derive
benefits from their non-independent relationship with us or our related parties other than what is disclosed in Note 8 of the
Notes to Financial Statements included elsewhere in this report.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
‘We do not have any off-balance sheet arrangements.
Contractual Obiigations

The following summarizes our long-term contractual obligations as of December 31, 2006:

Payments Due by Period
Less than 1to3 405 More than
Contractual Oblipations Total 1 Year Years Years 5 Years
(in thousands)
Long-term debt obligations(1}......cocoeeeermrmiisesesscininnesesnenens $ 1238 $ 5994 § 6098 3 297 § -
Operating lease obligations........ccccoeevivisrrniinnesirriniens 96,873 3,693 8,892 9,599 74,689
TOAL..... et e et s $109.262 9,687 14,990 9.896 74,689

{1) Includes monthly principal and interest payments. The stated annual rates of interest on the loans range from 9.34% to
12.17%.

Under terms of an existing supply agreement, we are obligated to pay fees of up to $250,000 based upon certain events
occurring. As the timing of those events is unknown they have been excluded from the table.

We also enter into agreements with service providers and clinical sites that administer and conduct our clinical trials,
respectively. We make payments to the service providers and sites based upon the number of patients enrolled. For the years
ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, we had made aggregate payments of $5.2 million, $5.1 million and $2.1 million,
respectively, in connection with our clinical trials. At this time, due to the variability associated with these agreements, we
are unable to estimate with certainty the future patient enrollment costs we will incur and therefore have excluded these costs
from the above table.

Purchase orders or contracts for the purchase of raw materials and other goods and services are not included in the table
above. We are not able to determine the aggregate amount of such purchase orders that represents contractual obligations, as
purchase orders may represent authorizations to purchase rather than binding agreements. Our purchase orders are based on
our current manufacturing needs and are fulfilled by our vendors within relatively short time horizons.

As of December 31, 2006, we had $3.5 million in restricted cash associated with our facility lease.
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Related Party Transactions

For a description of our related party transactions, see “Certain Relationships and Related Transactions.”
Subsequent Event

On February 12, 2007, we entered into common stock purchase agreements with certain investors relating to a registered
direct offering of an aggregate 3,333,334 shares of our common stock at $3.00 per share to the investors for gross proceeds of
approximately $10 million.

The common stock was issued pursuant to a prospectus supplerhcnt filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
February 13, 2007, in connection with a shelf takedown from our Registration Statement on Form S-3 (File No. 333-135169)
which became effective on July 11, 2006.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS 157, Fair Value Measurements, SFAS 157 defines fair value, establishes a
framework for measuring fair value in GAAP and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. SFAS 157 is effective
for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007 and will first be effective for us for the
year beginning January 1, 2008. We are in the process of analyzing the effects of this pronouncement.

In July 2006, the FASB issued FIN 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes, which prescribes a recognition threshold
and measurement process for recording in the financial statements uncertain tax positions taken or expected to be taken in a
tax return. Additionally, FIN 48 provides guidance on derecognition, classification, accounting in interim periods and
disclosure requirements for uncertain tax positions. The accounting provisions of FIN 48 will be effective for fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2006 and will first be effective for us for the year beginning January 1, 2007. We are
currently evaluating the impact of FIN 48 on results of operations, financial position and cash flows.

Item 7A.  Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

The primary objective of our investment activities is to preserve principal while maximizing income without significantly
increasing risk. Some of the securities in which we invest may be subject to market risk. This means that a change in
prevailing interest rates may cause the market value of the investment to fluctuate. To minimize this risk, we may maintain
our portfolio of cash equivalents and short-term investments in a variety of securities, including commercial paper, money
market funds and direct or gnaranteed obligations of the United States government. The risk associated with fluctuating
interest rates is limited to our investment portfolio and we do not believe that a 1% change in interest rates would have a
significant impact on our interest income. As of December 31, 2006, all of our short-term investments were government
agency securities, corporate notes and bonds, and our cash equivalents were held in checking accounts and money market
funds.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

The information required by this ftem is included in Part [V, Item 15(a).

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.

Item 9A.  Controls and Procedures

As of the end of the period covered by this report, we carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the
participation of our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and
procedures pursuant to Rule 13a-15 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or Exchange Act. Based upon that
evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that, as of the end of the period covered by
this report, our disclesure controls and procedures were effective to cause material information required to be disclosed by us

in the reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act to be recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the
time periods specified in the Securities and Exchange Commission’s rules and forms.
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We believe that a control system, no matter how well designed and operated, is based in part upon certain assumptions about
the likelihood of future events, and, therefore, can only provide reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the objectives of the
controls system are met, and no evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that all control issues and instances of
fraud, if any, within a company will be detected.

During the year ended December 31, 2006, there were no changes in our intemnal control over financial reporting which
materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

Item 9B.  Other Information

None.
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PART I

Item 10.  Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant
Directors and Executive Officers

See the section entitled “Executive Officers and Directors of the Registrant” in Part I, Item 1 hereof for certain information
regarding executive officers and directors.

Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

The information required by this item with respect to Section 16(a) beneficial ownerhip reporting compliance is incorporated
by reference from our Proxy Statement to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to Regulation 14A
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, in connection with Favrille’s 2007 Annual Meeting of Stockholders
(the “Proxy Statement”).

Code of Ethics

We have adopted the Favrille, Inc. Code of Business Conduct and Ethics that applies to all officers, directors and employees.
The Cede of Business Conduct and Ethics is available on our website at www._favrille.com. If we make any substantive
amendments to the Code of Business Conduct and Ethics or grant any waiver from a provision of the Code to any executive
officer or director, we will promptly disclose the nature of the amendment or waiver on our website.

Corporate Governance

The information required by this item with respect to corporate governance matters is incorporated by reference from the
Proxy Statement.

Item 11, Executive Compensation

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference from the Proxy Statement.
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Item 12.  Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters

The following table sets forth certain information with respect to all of our equity compensation plans in effect as of
December 31, 2006:

Equity Compensation Plan Information

Number of securities

remaining available for
Number of securities to be fature issuance nnder equity
issued upon exercise of Weighted-average exercise compensation plans
cutstanding options, price of outstanding options, (excluding securitizs
Plar category warrants and rights warrants and rights reflected in column (a))
(=) ®) ©
Equity compensation plans approved by
security holders.........cocneiinicncenans 2365384 § 3.99 631,508
Equity compensation plans not approved
by security holders..........cocoeeeeneee. — — —
TOtal...oooeee e 2,365,384 e 631,508

The other information required by this item is incorporated by reference from the Proxy Statement.
Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions and Director Independence

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference from the Proxy Statement.

Item 14.  Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference from the Proxy Statement.
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PART IV

Item 15.  Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules
(a) The following documents are filed as part of, or incorporated by reference into, this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
(1) Financial Statements

The following Financial Statements of Favrille, Inc. are included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K beginning

on page 52:

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Fitt.........coiiininiiiisiiss s 57
Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2000 and 2Z005.........ccccveevirmiviseeereieirsreseesirrrsrosesrnsressssassasreesrerasessssesesssessenmeessmsees 58
Statements of Operations for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2006 and the period from

January 21, 2000 (inception) to December 31, 2006 .........corvreeereninrrerimrenisrirecomcrmsesrcserees e semsarssesee s i sescoestsmssais 59
Statements of Stockholders’ Equity (Deficit) for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2006 and

the period from January 21, 2000 (inception) to December 31, 2006........coomicceececeee e 60
Statements of Cash Flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2006 and the petiod from

January 21, 2000 (inception) to December 31, 2006 .......ccorvimirrirrimie it bt 66
Notes t0 FInancial StaleImMeENS.........couiiniririnisriisissiisirssis i s s e mrsessssss e e sesrss e sssssesssbesssmsssansabab s besnnba e e sanans 68

(2) Financial Statement Schedules

All schedules have been omitted because they are not applicable or the required information is included in the
financial statements or notes thereto.

(3) Exhibits

The exhibits required by Item 15(b) hereof are filed with, or incorporated by reference into, this Annual Report on
Form 10-K.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Favrille, In¢.

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of Favrille, Inc. (a development stage company) (the Company)
as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the related statements of operations, stockholders’ equity (deficit), and cash flows for
each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2006 and the period from January 21, 2000 (inception) to

December 31, 2006. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. We were not engaged to perform an audit of the Company’s intemal
control over financial reporting. Our audits included consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for
designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit
also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements,
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of Favrille, Inc. at December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years

in the period ended December 31, 2006, and the period from January 21, 2000 (inception) to December 31, 2006, in
conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, Favrille, Inc, changed its method of accounting for share-bas:d
payments in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards 123 (Revised 2004) on January 1, 2006.

/s/ Emst & Young LLP

San Diego, California
March 23, 2007
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FAVRILLE, INC.
{a development stage company)

BALANCE SHEETS
(in thousands, except share and per share data)

ASSBES. .o veevereinirireresee e et et st e e e et b s aene e e e enarateabevR T oA e vhea b e eReR e SR s oA be L bt A sedemremee e sesasenanesresseenens
Current assets:

Cash and cash qUIVAIENLS .........cccereiiicirernriiir e s s sas st as s st et b e te s

SHOTE-LEITI IMVESHMIENES ..\ viviiteiieeeeietis et s e ssrseeesre s sasessesbest s bbb asssats1aansaubess s o st baae semseresenemarenne

OhET CUITENE ASSCES. ...cucvriieeieeeeucrriesienreserassteerestevessarassesesssssssssessortasssossossstistnmsnctrmmsosseeamenenserenes
TOLAL CUITENE ASSELS ..o irr e crrvrreesrerer e res e esra e e se st sbe st e era e s e sbesserarrs e e s reasaberas st sabesbenssronasansas biateen
Property and eqUIPMENt, NEL ... ..o ittt ettt snemsm st b st rrsssn st se s s s
RESIHCIEA GOSN ..ot sneet s sse e se st st sare s sr e se e s s b e s aa e sment shese s R sssasanaberesas
L0171 T SO U SOOI
TOAL BSSELS ....vecececeeee st eeerr e ree e se st e e s e sae st sabs s e reea e s seam s e e st enteeneranerntorpeses s esresnneeetsanarestane

Liabilities and stockholders® equity ................cccririirrirriineren s ane e resreans
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities ..........ccovvcreeeeireeieninineee st ecerae s e severanans

Current portion 0F debt ... et s et b e st e e e snen
Total CUITENT HAbITIIES ....coeeoc e et s e e e e e s rns e e s b e e R es
Debt, 1SS CUITENE POTLION.....cceocviririirirercnts s rienereseeststesesnsresee e s s se st eamteses e s st snesbessasabssasasssaseasssssisasane
DIEfEITEA TRIME ... ittt et et s ecrra e et s en e s ssar e ve e s r s s e s ts e ra b seabe e sa e be s smnean s ssanbaresnsnanan
Commitments and CONUIIZENCIES -........ccoomirrere s rsrsesss et srsrsssssrssseresetese e senensassssssssessassesnsnsasess
Stockholders’ equity:

Preferred stock, $0.001 par value 5,000,000 shares authorized; no shares issued and cutstanding
at December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively ... sinsesrere s s rssennes
Common stock, $0.001 par value 75,000,000 shares authorized; 29,060,081 and 20,329,046

issued and outstanding at December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively ..ccevcivivnrercvcrerenennns

Additional paid-in capital ..ot e et ens s

Deferred stock-based COMPENSALION .......covverrreerarererrrrraesresesieiassesssarsisias s sessressesessesssensasssssersssnsns

Note receivable from StOCKNOMEr ... ..o b reaes

Accumulated other comprehensive InCome (1088) .....vovvceverreverrsnenresenescs e e sessseestesnses

Deficit accumulated during the development StAEE ...........vevrvererrrerereeerriissaereeesesrsensencee s sseenenes

Total StoCkhOIAErS’ EQUILY ...ccoviuverreeeie ettt s e s et v nse s sarsr st ennanans
Total liabilities and stockholders’ Uity ... ss st bbb e eeneees

See accompanying notes.
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December 31,
2006 2005

$ 14249 $ 12,065
28,160 22,427
850 935
43,259 35,427
25,071 9,430
3,451 1,550
508 600

$ 72280 § 47,007

$ 6779 § 3,888
4,976 2,553
11,755 6,441
5,754 3,532
10,145 1,320

29 20
200,497 156,882
—  (5,655)

— (96)

3 (54)

{155,894) {115,383)
44,635 35714
$ 72,289 3 47,007




STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

FAVRILLE, INC.
(a development stage company)

(in thousands, except share and per share data)

Operating expenses:

Research and development .......ccooevinieene

Marketing, general and administrative.......
Total operating XPenses ......cccovverevesvsssrssenns
Interest INCOME.....c.cevirrrrereesnernereesmsemnssnerens
Interest expense ..........coeveiieinnncimnnniniiens
Other income (EXPENSE)....covuerrrvreermmsnisiniiinns
Loss on extinguishment of debt......................
Total other income (expense), net.........c...oeu

Deemed dividend—beneficial conversion feature for Series C

redeemable convertible preferred stock.....

Accretion of Series C redeemable convertible preferred stock

ISSUANCE COSS ..ot rreecenrnere e ieas
Net loss applicable to common stockholders.

Historical net loss per share:

Basic and diluted.........ooveiveceieiiierereeieiieenns

Weighted-average shares—basic and diluted

Period from
January 21,
2000
(inception) to
Years ended December 31, December 31,
2006 2008 2004 2006

............................. $ 31,050 $ 29592 § 19,800 § 99906

............................. 11,170 6,776 5,716 29,663

............................. 42,220 36,368 25,606 129,569

............................. 2,648 1,492 375 5,057

............................. (834) (703) (817) Z,841)

............................. (105) (6) 12 (91)

............................. — (290) — (290)

............................. 1,709 493 (430) 1,835

............................. (40,511) (35,875) (26,036) (127,734)

............................. — — (28,103) (28,103)

............................. — (6) 51 (57

............................. $ (40,511) § (35881) $ (54,190) $ (155,894)
............................. $  (149) $ (199 $ (51.48)
............................. 27,247,385 18,060,992 1,052,624

See accompanying notes
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FAVRILLE, INC.
(a development stage company)
STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY (DEFICIT)

Period from January 21, 2000 (inception) to Décémber 31, 2006
(in thousands, except share and per share data)

Issuance of common stock for cash
Issuance of Series A Convertible
Preferred Stock, in May and June,
net of issuance costs of $89,000
Net loss and comprehensive loss ...
Balance at December 31, 2000 ......
Issuance of common stock for cash
Exercise of options to purchase
common stock........cccvviieneenn.
Issuance of warrant in conjunction
with credit agreement.................
Repurchase of common stock........
Net loss and comprehensive loss ...
Balance at December 31, 2001 ......
Issuance of common stock for cash
Issuance of Series B Convertible
Preferred Stock net of issuance
costs of $136,000......ccceveiriinnn
Conversion of Promissory Notes into
Series B stock .........cccovmrvnvrnrnee
Non-cash stock compensation .......
Issuance of common stock for
license agreement.............c.ccen..
Issuance of options related to
consulting agreement.................
Exercise of options to purchase
common Stock ..............ooevenrnnee
Repurchase of common stock at ...
Net loss and comprehensive loss ...
Balance at December 31, 2002 ......
Issuance of Series B-2 Convertible
Preferred Stock ........cooeeenennieee
Issuance of commeon stock for
license agreement........c.c.cceceee.
Issuance of options related to
consulting agreement.................
Issuance of warrant in conjunction
with credit agreement.................
Exercise of options to purchase
common Stock........cceeveveeneniennn
Repurchase of common stock........
Deferred stock-based compensation
related to issuance of stock
options to employees .................
Amortization of stock-based
CoOmpensation ..........ccceoceeeveercennns
Net loss and comprehensive loss ...
Balance at December 31, 2003 ......

Additional
Convertible Preferred Stock Commen stock Paid-In
Shares Amount Shares Amount Capital

— 5 — 588,713 § | B 2
1,156,610 1 — — 5,910
1,156,610 1 588,713 1 5912
— - 50,119 - 26
— — 39,128 — 20
—_ — — — 22
— — (2,120) — —
1,156,610 1 675,840 1 5,980
— — 28,912 — 17
2,563,605 3 — — 16,085
103,123 — — — 653
— — — — 18
— — 40,867 — 21
— — — — 1
— — 196,474 — 102

— — (3.919) —_ 2
3,823,338 4 038,174 1 22,875
1,681,992 2 — — 10,522
-— — 38,553 — 24
— — — — 16
— — — —- 84
— — 6,056 — 4

— — (1,687) — (1)
— _— — — 1,595
5,505,330 6 081,096 | 35,119
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Issuance of common stock for cash
Issuance of Series A Convertible
Preferred Stock, in May and June,
net of issuance costs of $89,000
Net loss and comprehensive loss ...
Balance at December 31, 2000 ......
Issuance of common stock for cash
Exercise of options to purchase
common S1OCK...ocrvevee e
Issuance of warrant in conjunction
with credit agreement.................
Repurchase of common stock ........
Net loss and comprehensive loss ...
Balance at December 31, 2001 ......
Issvance of common stock for cash
Issuance of Series B Convertible
Preferred Stock net of issuance
costs of $136,000........ccveveeen.
Conversion of Promissory Notes into
Series B stock ....coovnreceeniirnnnens
Non-cash stock compensation .......
Issuance of common stock for
license agreement...........ccccevnnee
Issuance of options related to
consulting agreement.................
Exercise of options to purchase
common Stock........cccevvrreennnnnas
Repurchase of common stock at ...
Net loss and comprehensive loss ...
Balance at December 31, 2002 ...
Issuance of Series B-2 Convertible
* Preferred Stock .....evoceceeerniceene.
Issuance of common stock for
license agreement..........ccoeernnees
Issuance of options related to
consulting agreement..................
Issuance of warrant in conjunction
with credit agreement.................
Exercise of options to purchase
COmMMON StOCK.....cccvmrrreccnnrnnns
Repurchase of common stock........
Deferred stock-based compensation
related to issuance of stock
options to employees .................
Amortization of stock-based
COMPENSAON ..covvoririviarirsiririsseans
Net loss and comprehensive loss ...
Balance at December 31, 2003 ......

Deferred
Stock-Based

Compensation

$

Note

Receivable

from

Stockholder

Accumulated
Other

Comprehensive

Loss

Deficit
Accumulated
During the
Development

Stage

$

$

$

(1,05_9

Total
Stockholilers’
Equity

(Deficit)

$

3

5911
(1,053)

(1,053)

(3,758)

- 4,861
26

20
22

(3',7;8-)

(96)

(4,811)

(7,246)

1,171

16,088

653
18

21
1
6

(2)
(7,246)

(1,595)

155

(96)

(12,057)

(1 3,25)

10,727
10,524
24
16
84

4
8))

155
(13,255)

(1.330)
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8,278




Balance at December 31, 2003 .......ccoooovevvecmnnennn,
Issuance of options and warrant related to
consSulting agreement.......vveerieessrinsecsrissrisssns
Exercise of options to purchase common stock .....
Exercise of warrant to purchase common stock.....
Repurchase of common stock .........coccevveceeninenne
Issuance of warrant in conjunction with credit
AETEEMENT ... ovevvrieirirarirermreriissisriiessssnasssinsnans
Deemed dividend—beneficial conversion feature
for Series C redeemable convertible preferred
BLOCK -cieiece ettt et et
Deferred stock-based compensation related to
issuance of stock options to employees.............
Accretion of Series C redeemable Preferred Stock
ISSUATICE COBLS ..vvivirrenvnnrirmasssirmsnsirersesiesnsssssonans
Amortization of stock-based compensation
Comprehensive Loss:
Unrealized loss on cash equivalents and short-
LET INVESHTMENIS ....coveveneecniescasiirisnrneressinns

Net comprehensive 1oss ...............
Balance at December 31, 2004 ...........cocccvinininnne
Issuance of common stock related to initial public
offering and follow on offering, net of
approximately $4.6 million of issuance costs....
Deferred stock-based compensation related to
issuance of stock options to employees.............
Deferred stock-based compensation related to
cancellations of stock options to employees......
Exercise of options to purchase common stock.....
Issuance of commeon stock related to Employee
Stock Purchase Plan.........ccconineniicciiiniinniins
Repurchase of common stock
Expiration of warmant..............ccoccvenienrinneorninesanes
Issuance of warrant in conjunction with credit
ABTECINENT ...ceenceeeracmer e ererse st resessernnessrananses
Conversion of Series C redeemable Preferred Stock
0 COMMON SEOCK ...vveviveenrirernsirsrissseraserirsaseses
Conversion of preferred stock to common stock ...
Accretion of Series C redeemable Preferred Stock
ISSUANICE COBS -.eoureeeeereemceeeaeanraansryensassesarar s
Amortization of stock-based compensation...........
Comprehensive Loss:
Unrealized loss on cash equivalents and short-
term INVESHEMENTS ..oinineriirissisnncaniemnasreennans
Netloss...ocovecriiiieeneas
Net comprehensive loss
Balance at December 31, 2005
Exercise of options to purchase common stock .....
Issuance of common stock related to Employee
Stock Purchase Plan .........cccooeneiicensinnncnsioncnns
Repurchase of common stock .........cooevvircnnnene
Elimination of deferred compensation upon
adoption of SFAS 123R ....cccovvnriinncenicnccasionnae
Stock-based compensation related to stock options
to employees under SFAS 123R.......ococveevenenne

FAVRILLE, INC.
(a development stage company)
STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS® EQUITY (DEFICIT)
Period from January 21, 2000 (inception) to December 31, 2006
(in thousands, except share and per share data)
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Additional
Convertible Preferred Stock Common stock Pald-In
Shares Amount Shares Amount Capital
5,505,330 § 6 981,096 § 1 3 35,119
— — — — 169
— —_ 889,266 1 555
— — 9638 — 6
— — (41,286) — (26)
— — — — 36
— — — — 28,103
— — — — 9,362
5,505,330 6 1,838,714 2 73,324
— — 6,285,000 6 39,436
— — — — 350
— — — — (221)
— _ 13,126 — 9
— — 27,050 - 106
— _— {12,188) —_ ®)
— — — — 27
— — — —_— 241
— — 6,672,014 6 43,672
(5,505,330) {6) 5,505,330 6 —_
— 8 — 20,329,046 § 20 § 156,882
_ _ 90,262 —_ 57
— — 94,302 1 355
— — (8,662) - (5)
_— —_ — —_ (5.655)
— — - -— 4,010




Issuance of common stock related to PIPE, net of
approximately $450,000 of issuance costs ........
Sale of warrant to purchase common stock related
10 PIPE ......oveiricrectcrneneseseresnsserasssosorasnsasoness
Issuance costs related to Committed Equity
Finaneing Facility.........ccimeenninrennnnencnninenns
Payment of note receivable from stockholder........
Comprehensive Loss:
Unrealized gain on cash equivalents and short-
eI INVESHMENES ......ovveerereerrerresencrrereneenes

Net comprehensive loss
Balance at December 31, 2006 ............cocoveeeeee.e.

8,555,133

44,561
374

(82

29,060,081

29

5

200,497
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Balance at December 31, 2003 .....,
Issuance of options and warrant
related to consulting agreement.
Exercise of options to purchase
COmIMON StOCK .....covvvverercnrserenns
Exercise of warrant to purchase
COMMON StOCK ....ccoveerncriieinecrens
Repurchase of common stock.........
Issuance of warrant in conjunction
with credit agreement.................
Deemed dividend-beneficial

conversion feature for Series C

redeemable convertible preferred

SEOCK e

Deferred stock-based compensation
related to issuance of stock
options to employees.......coocue...

Accretion of Series C redeemable
Preferred Stock issuance costs...

Amortization of stock-based
COMPENSAtION....cerrrerrreransseennnenis

Comprehensive Loss:

Unrealized loss on cash
equivalents and short-term
INVESIMENLS .....evvevrvvvararreneane

Netloss.....ccoeereeecanen

Net comprehensive loss

Balance at December 31, 2004 ......

Issuance of common stock related to
initial public offering and follow
on offering, net of approximately
$4.6 million of issuance costs....

Deferred stock-based compensation
related to issuance of stock
options to employees.................

Deferred stock-based compensation
refated to cancellations of stock
options to employees.................

Exercise of options to purchase
common StOCK ........cceceervrmnerrenns

Issuance of common stock related to
Employee Stgck Purchase Plan.

Repurchase of common stock........

Expiration of warrant............cc.......

{ssuance of warrant in conjunction
with credit agreement.................

Conversion of Series C redeemable
Preferred Stock to common stock

Conversion of preferred stock to
common SOk ......oovvverieriennn,

Accretion of Series C redeemable
Preferred Stock issuance costs...

Comprehensive Loss:

Unrealized loss on cash
equivalents and short-term
INVESHMENtS .. ..ooreenicreenecnne

Net 1085.....coveeceeeecreceeeeeenee

Net comprehensive loss.................

Deferred
Stock-Based
Compensation

Note
Receivable
from
Stockholder

Deficit
Accumulated
During the
Development
Stage

Accumulated
Other
Comprehensive
Loss

Total
Stockholders’
Equity
(Deficit)

$

(1,440) §

(9,362)

2,416

96) $ — 3

(25,312}

— (28,103)

- (1)

2 —
— (26,036)

$ 8,278
169
556

6
(26)
36

G
2416

(2)
(26,036)
(26,038)

(3.386)

(350)

221

) (79,502)

_— . (6)

(52) —
— (35,875)

(14,654)

39,442

106
(8)
@n

241
43,678

(6)
2,860

(52)

(35,875)
(35.927)




Balance at December 31, 2005 ......
Exercise of options to purchase
COMMON SLOCK ..cecerceriinisnsiinnnas
Issuance of common stock related to
Employee Stock Purchase Plan.
Repurchase of commen stock ........
Elimination of deferred
compensation upon adoption of

SFAS 123R .rcennecrirenns

Stock-based compensation related to
stock options to employees under

SFAS 123R i

Issuance of common stock related to
PIPE, net of approximately
£450,000 of issuance costs.........
Sale of warrant to purchase common
stock related to PIPE .................
Issuance costs related to Committed
Equity Financing Facility ..........
Payment of note receivable from
stockholder...........cciiinnnns
Comprehensive Loss:

Unrealized gain on cash
equivalents and short-term
investments

Net 1085..coveeeereecrncrrenen

Net comprehensive loss
Balance at December 31, 2006......

$

(5,655) $ (96) $

5,655 —

(54)

$

(115383) %

35,714
57

356
©)

4,010

44,569
374
(82)

96

— 57
@0511) ___ (40511)

{40 454)

$

(155,894) §

44 635

See accompanying notes.
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FAVRILLE, INC.
{a development stage company)
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in thousands)

Period from
January 21, 2000
(inception) to
Years ended December 31, December 31,
2006 2005 2004 2006
Operating activities:
NEL LS5 .ovvvee it esses s ecsas st sassasasnsrsnas 3 (40,511) § (35,875) % (26,036) $  (127,734)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in
operating activities: :
Depreciation and amortization.............coinns 2,133 1,825 1,426 6,491
Stock-based compensation.........ceevrreveccrecceiiiins 4,010 2,860 2,416 9,460
Amortization of premium/discount on short-term
INVESHTIENLS .oeveveeeecvaeerenesavnensasrmermescssssssssnsanns (638) 6 ¢} (633)
Other ... 281 {566) 228 58
Changes in operatmg assets and 11ab1ht1es
OthET BS5E1S..veevireiriereceeeeeeseienrrnsesenen e e enere s 105 329 (165) (818)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities......... 1,072 1,285 913 4,960
Deferred rent...........ccocevereeremrnevicecsssenssiinsnns 1,443 527 596 2,763
Net cash used in operating activities..........cccoenicnees (32,105} (29,609) (20,623) (105,453)
Investing activities:
Purchases of property and cquipment...........c......... (8,586) (1,805) 4,347 {22,344)
Purchases of short-term investments ............cooeeenn (63,386) (32,995) (1,493) (97,874)
Maturities of short-term investments.........ccccceeurens " 58,348 12,003 — 70,351
Other aSSetS.....cvveeverveerece e s e — — 219 (70)
Restricted cash... (1,901) 56 52 (3,451)
Net cash used in mvestmg actlvmes ........................ {15,525) (22,741) (5,569) (53,388)
Financing activities:
Proceeds from debt ......cocciiiiiiinccisceniniec e 7,563 5,300 3,675 22,970
Payments on debt........ccccoiiii e (3,113) (5,499) (2,119) (12,196)
Issuance of preferred stock, et ..ieeieieeiviiiinns — — 43,621 76,144
Deferred IPO issuances costs, Det.......cceiiisereecaine — — (66) —
Proceeds from issuance of convertible promissery
NIOLE «.vvrrrcemcemmeceesesatsisnesessnnst st st eaus s onmstesnsrrssneres — _ — 650
Issuance of common stock and warrants........cc....... 45,369 39,557 562 85,564
Repurchase of restricted common stock ........coveve.e.. (5) (8) (26) {42)
Net cash provided by financing activities.......ou...... 49,814 39,350 45,647 173,090
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents
............................................................................. 2,184 {13,000) 19,455 14,249
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period ... 12,065 25,065 5,610 —
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period ............. 3 14,249  § 12,065 $ 25065 § 14,249
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow
information:
Cash paid for interest ..., $ 703 § 654 § 732 % 2,183
Supplemental non-cash financing activities:
Issuance of warrant related to line of credit
ALTEETNENL .. cevreeeeeee et esessasaseressnsmsessnse s ssbsterssabais 3 — 8§ 241  § 6 5 383
Issuance of options and warrant related to consulting
BETEEINIENL ....vveoeeceeemerassssiscrsiaeraossennsssssesssersssisssace $ — § - 3 169 § 186
Issuance of preferred stock upon conversion of
PIOMISSOTY NOLE ooocvvccrercneceenmsercnecrnnessessonssenion $ — $ — 3 — $ 650
Essuance of restricted common stock for license
AGTEEMENLS .....eoeecvecerecar vt se e seremmsnsssanseseseres $ — 3 — 3 — 3 45
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Deemed dividend—Dbeneficial conversion feature for

Series C redeemable convertible preferred stock. $ — — 28,103 28,103
Accretion of Series C redeemable convertible

preferred stock iSSUANCE COSES...ovvinimimniciiininnnns $ — 6 51 57
Conversion of Series C to common stock ................ 5 —_ 43,678 — 43,678
Capitalized interest recorded as property, plant and

EQUIPITIENE ...c.voveererernssrernsrercnsrersvrcsesaransboisiasnsses $ 91 — — 91
Accrued asset aCqQUISIHONS......ceeervrencernrnrnrrreacernns 3 £,819 — — 1,819
Leasehold improvements acquired under tenant

improvement alloWance.......c..evveveorereiissinsnsinins 3 7,382 — — 7,382

See accompanying notes.
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Favrille, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements

1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Organization and Business

Favrille, Inc. (the Company or Favrille) was incorporated in Delaware on January 21, 2000. The Company is a
biopharmaceutical company focused on the research, development and commercialization of targeted immunotherapies for
the treatment of cancer and other diseases of the immune system. The Company’s lead product candidate, Favld, is based
upon unique genetic information extracted from a patient’s tumor. Favld is currently under investigation in a pivotal Phase 3
clinical trial for patients with follicular B-cell NHL and Phase 2 clinical trials in other B-cell NHL indications. The Company
is developing additional applications based on its immunotherapy expertise and proprietary manufacturing technology,
including a second product candidate, FAV-201, for the treatment of T-cell lymphoma.

The Company is a development stage company in the initial stage of its operations, and since inception, the
Company has been engaged in organizational activities, including: recruiting personnel; establishing office and
manufacturing facilities; conducting research and clinical development; and obtaining financing. From inception through
December 31, 2006, the Company has incurred net losses of $127.7 million and has a deficit accumulated during the
development stage of approximately $155.9 million.

Financial Statements Preparation

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP)
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts in the Company’s financial
statements and the accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Certain prior year amounts have
been reclassified for consistency with the current year presentation. These reclassifications had no effect on reported results
of operations.

Cash Equivalents and Short-Term Investments

Highly liquid investments and original maturities of three months or less, when purchased, are classified as cash and
cash equivalents. Cash equivalents are comprised of commercial paper and U.S. government debt securities. The carrying
amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturities of these instruments. Investments with maturities greater than
three months when purchased are classified as short-term investments. All of the Company’s short-term investments are
classified as available-for-sale and are reported at fair value, as determined by quoted market prices, with any unrealized
gains and losses, net of tax, recorded as a separate component of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) in
stockholders’ equity. Unrealized gains and losses on investments accounted for all of the accumulated other comprehensive
income (loss) balance in the Statement of Stockholders’ Equity (Deficit). The Company manages its cash equivalents and
short-term investments as a portfolio of highly marketable securities, all of which are intended to be available for the
Company's current operations.

Clinical Trial Accruals

In the normal course of business, the Company contracts with numerous third-party clinical trial centers to perform
various clinical trial activities in the on-going development of Favld. The financial terms of these agreements are subject to
negotiation and variation from contract to contract may result in uneven payment flows. Payment under the contracts depend
on factors such as the completion of individual patients’ treatments and the related required documentation. These costs are a
significant component of research and development expenses. The Company records expenses for contracted clinical trial
costs based upon patient enrollment and the dates that they receive treatment. The Company obtains information regarding the
numbers of patients enrolled and the numbers of treatments administered during each period through regular communication
between its internal clinical trial personnel and the third-party clinical trial centers performing such enrollment and treatment.
The objective of the accrual policy is to match the recording of expenses in the Company’s financial statements to the actual
services received and efforts expended, and the Company believes that its regular communications with third-party clinical trial
centers regarding patient enrollment and treatment provide the most reliable basis for determining the timing and amount of
expenses it records for clinical trial costs. Despite the Company’s efforts to obtain accurate and current information from third-
party clinical trial centers, the estimates may not match the timing of actual services performed by the clinical trial centers,
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which may result in adjustments to the research and development expenses in future periods. However, to date there have been
no material adjustments to clinical trial accruals in any of the periods presented, and the Company does not expect any material
adjustments in future reporting periods.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to significant credit risk, consist primarily of cash and
cash equivalents, short-term investments and restricted cash. The Company maintains cash deposits in federally insured
financial institutions in excess of federally insured limits. Management believes that the Company is not exposed to
significant credit risk due to the financial position of the depository institutions in which those deposits are held. In addition,
the Company invests in a variety of financial instruments and, by policy, limits the amount of credit exposure with any one
issuer.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying amount of cash equivalents, shert-term investments, receivables, accounts payable and accrued
expenses are considered to be representative of their respective fair value because of the short-term nature of those item:.
Based on the borrowing rates currently available to the Company for loans with similar terms, management believes the fair
value of the long-term debt approximates its carrying value.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated on the basis of cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is calculated
using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets (three to seven years). Leasehold improvements
are stated at cost and amortized over the shorter of the life of the lease term or the useful life of the asset.

Capitalized Software

In accordance with the Statement of Position, (SOP) No. 98-1, Accounting for the Costs of Computer Software
Developed or Obtained for Internal Use, the Company expenses costs as incurred for software developed for internal use
incurred during the preliminary project stage and during the post-implementation/operation stage. Direct costs incurred
during the application development stage, which provide additional functionality, are capitalized and are amortized on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives of five years, commencing on the date the software is placed into use.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment or
Disposal of Long-Lived Assets, the Company assesses the recoverability of the affected long-lived assets by determining
whether the carrying value of such assets can be recovered through the undiscounted future operating cash flows. If
impairment is indicated, the Company measures the amount of such impairment by comparing the fair value to the carrying
value. While the Company’s current and historical operating losses and cash flows are indicators of impairment, the
Company believes the future cash flows to be received from the long-lived assets will exceed the assets’ carrying value.
Accordingly, there have been no indicators of impairment through December 31, 2006 or 2005.

Deferred Rent

Rent expense is recorded on a straight-line basis over the terms of the leases. The difference between rent experise
and amounts paid under the lease agreements is recorded as deferred rent in the accompanying balance sheets. Tenant
improvements paid by the landlord are capitalized as leasehold improvements and amortized over the shorter of their
estimated useful lives or the remaining lease term, while the tenant improvement allowance is recorded as deferred rent and
will be recovered ratably over the remaining term of the lease.

Research and Development
Research and development costs are expensed as incurred and consist primarily of costs associated with the clinical

trials of the Company’s product candidates, compensation and other expenses for research and development personnel,
supplies, costs for consultants, facility costs and depreciation. :
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Patent Costs

Costs related to filing and pursuing patent applications are expensed as incurred as recoverability of such
expenditures is uncertain.

Comprehensive Income (Loss)

In accordance with SFAS No. 130, Reporting Comprehensive Income, all components of comprehensive income
(loss) are reported in the financial statements in the period in which they are recognized. Comprehensive income (loss) is
defined as the change in equity during a period from transactions and other events and circumstances from non-owner
sources. Net loss and other comprehensive income (loss), including foreign currency translation adjustments and unrealized
gains and losses on investments, are reported, net of their related tax effect, to arrive at comprehensive income (loss). The
Company has disclosed its comprehensive income (loss) in the statement of stockholders’ equity (deficit).

Stock-Based Compensation

Effective January 1, 2006, the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123 (revised
2004), “Share-Based Payment,” (SFAS 123(R)). Under SFAS 123(R), stock-based compensation cost is measured at the
grant date, based on the estimated fair value of the award, and is recognized as expense over the employee’s requisite service
period. The Company adopted the provisions of SFAS 123(R) using a modified prospective application. Accordingly, prior
periods have not been revised for comparative purposes. The valuation provisions of SFAS 123(R) apply to new awards and
to awards that are outstanding on the effective date, that are subsequently modified or cancelled. Estimated compensation
expense for awards outstanding at the effective date will be recognized over the remaining service period using the
compensation cost calculated for pro forma disclosure purposes under SFAS 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation.
For further discussion of the adoption of SFAS 123(R) refer to Note 5 of the Financial Statements.

The Company has elected the FASB Staff Position No. SFAS 123(R)-3, “Transition Election Related to Accounting
Jor Tax Effects of Share-Based Payment Awards " (SFAS 123(R)-3). Under this method, the Company has elected to adopt
the alternative transition method , which includes a simplified method to establish the beginning balance of the additional
paid-in-capital pool related to the tax effects of employee stock-based compensation, that is available to absorb tax
deficiencies recognized subsequent to the adoption of SFAS 123(R).

Income Taxes

In accordance with SFAS No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes, a deferred tax asset or liability is determined based
on the difference between the financial statement and tax basis of assets and liabilities as measured on the balance sheet date
based upon enacted tax rates, which will be in effect when these differences reverse. The effect on deferred tax assets and
liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in the period such tax rate changes are enacted. A valuation allowance is
established when necessary to reduce deferred tax assets when it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the
deferred tax asset will not be realized prior to its expiration. A full valuation allowance was recorded on the Company’s net
deferred tax assets as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, due to uncertainties related to the Company’s ability to utilize
deferred tax assets in the foreseeable future. These deferred tax assets primarily consist of certain net operating loss
carryforwards and research and development tax credits.

The Company’s income tax returns are based on calculations and assumptions that are subject to examination by the
Internal Revenue Service and other tax authorities. At this time, the Company believes it has appropriate support for the
positions taken on its tax returns.

Net Loss per Common Share

Net loss per share is calculated in accordance with SFAS No. 128, Earnings Per Share and Staff Accounting
Bulletin (SAB) No. 98. Basic loss per share is calculated using the weighted average number of commeon shares outstanding
during each period, without consideration for common stock equivalents. Diluted loss per share includes the dilutive effect of
common equivalent shares outstanding for the period determined using the treasury-stock method. For purposes of this
calculation, common stock subject to repurchase by the Company, preferred stock, options and warrants are considered to be
common stock equivalents and are only included in the calculation of diluted earnings per share when their effect is dilutive.
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As of December 31,

2066 2005 2004

Historical outstanding antidilutive securities not included in diluted net loss

per share calculation:
Common stock equivalents:

Redeemable convertible preferred stock........cooeeviinvecnnicinsnicccenians — — 6,672,014

Convertible preferred S10CK ... ivvrmreric i s — — 5,505,330

SLOCK WAITANS ....veeeeiierreeesere st emems et st s st s s s st s s e e e ns prasnabass 3,371,787 127,499 47,057

Options to purchase COMMON SEOCK .......occerreiminiesniresiiiner s rresnsreensses 2,365,384 1,682,237 959,753
Common stock subject t0 repUrChase ..........ccocveiiiiirism e e 107,399 288,683 599,325

5,844,576 2098419 13,783.479

Segment Information

The Company adopted the provisions of SFAS No. 131, Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related
Information. SFAS No. 131 requires public companies to report financial and descriptive information about their reportzble
operating segments. The Company identifies its operating segments based on how management internally evaluates separate
financial information, business activities and management responsibility. The Company believes it operates in a single
business segment, therefore this standard did not have a material impact on the Company’s financial statements.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In September 2006, the Securities Exchange Commission (“SEC”) issued Staff Accounting Bulletin (“SAB”) 108,
Considering the Effects of Prior Year Misstatements when Quantifying Misstatements in Current Year Financial Statements,
to address diversity in practice regarding consideration of the effects of prior year errors when quantifying misstatements in
current year financial statements. The SEC concluded that registrants should quantify financial statement errors using both a
balance sheet approach and an income statement approach and evaluate whether either approach results in quantifying a
misstatement that, when all relevant quantitative and qualitative factors are considered, is material. SAB 108 states that if
correcting an error in the current year materially affects the current year's statement of operations, the prior period financial
statements must be restated. SAB 108 is effective for fiscal years ending after November 15, 2006 and was first effective for
the Company for the year ended December 31, 2006. The adoption of SAB 108 did not significantly affect our financial
condition or results of operations, financial position or cash flows.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS 157, Fair Value Measurements. SFAS 157 defines fair value,
establishes a framework for measuring fair value in GAAP and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. SFAS
157 is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007 and will first be effective
for the Company for the year beginning January 1, 2008. The Company is in the process of analyzing the effects of this
pronouncement.

In July 2006, the FASB issued FIN 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes, which prescribes a recognition
threshold and measurement process for recording in the financial statements uncertain tax positions taken or expected to be
taken in a tax return. Additionally, FIN 48 provides guidance on derecognition, classification, accounting in interim periods
and disclosure requirements for uncertain tax positions. The accounting provisions of FIN 48 will be effective for fiscal
years beginning after December 15, 2006 and will first be effective for the Company for the year beginning January 1, 2007.
The Company is currently evaluating the impact of FIN 48 on results of operations, financial position and cash flows.
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2. Financial Statement Information

Short-term Investments

Short-term investments by security type were as follows (in thousands):

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Estimated
Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
December 31, 2006:
Government AZency SECUTHES ......vcueveererereceeeeevrre s sssssssessesseseseesmesrers $ 598 § — 3 — § 598
Corporate Bonds and NOES ......ccoceeintiniineeei e vversessssessbesns e emeees 21,962 4 — 21,966
ASSEE —Backed SeCUITIES...covvveiiriisiiieieieeee et reerrsrsesessressaeasssssssasesaastserers 2,395 — (D) 2,394
Certificate 0f DEPOSIL........cccereieerimiisieneer e sereestssrrs e s se s b s snresnsrene 3,202 — — 3,202
TORAL e ee e et et e e b bbb ea bbbt s s e emnnresarereaes $ 28,157 § 4 % (1) $ 28,160
December 31, 2005:
Government AGency SECUIEES ......vevvveiverireieeesesiriiaeececee s esessanirsesesas $ 10427 § — 5§ (3D %1039
Corporate Bonds and NOES ....c.ooeviiiccriieicnietecercetieseeee e rsrerreressesens 8,784 —_ (14) 8,770
Asset —Backed SECUIIES......cccoriecreere i erereceesirnesrs e e sreseeenenaens 3,270 — 9 3,261
TOAL ..ot e st e srr et sa e st e s e e e s e R s e b e e bt saba s nanen $ 22481 § — § (54) § 22427

All investments that have gross unrealized losses have been held for less than twelve months. At December 31, 2006
the Company had a net unrealized gain on short-term investments of approximately $3,000. At December 31, 2005, the
Company had an unrealized loss on short-term investments of approximately $54,000. These unrealized gains and losses are
included in the statement of stockholders’ equity as other comprehensive income and loss. Contractual maturities of short-
term investments are due in one year or less. There have been no significant realized gains or losses on investments since the

inception of the Company.
Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consisted of the following (in thousands):

Lab QUIPIEIL ..ottt et er e e e et e s e a e ane s
Manufacturing eqUIPINENL.........oeuerererierrmrarurssersrersresseesssssessssassssissmassessresesesessnas
Computer, software and office equipment.............ccoouiiinnemcvcscsemmren s
Leasehold iMPIrOVEIMENIS .......... . verevecrernreresrsmsrressmrmresssssssesssssessmessvsssenssessemsnsassasass
CONSIUCHON N PIOCESS -.evvvrreeeemeeserasescemes e seeemassse s ressssessasssrasssssasas s e sesssnsesssensas

Accumulated depreciation and AMOEMHZAON ....c..cveeriiiievieie e e esnesenes

December 31,
2006 2005

$ 3,570 8 3,749

2,968 2,998

3,384 2,606

4817 4,299

16,197 7

30,936 13,659
(5,865) {4,229

$§ 25071 § 9,430

Total depreciation expense, including amortization for assets under capital lease, for the years ended December 31,
2006, 2005 and 2004, and the period from January 21, 2000 (inception) to December 31, 2006 was $2.1 million, $1.8 million,
$1.4 million and $6.5 million, respectively. As of December 31, 2006, approximately $4.3 million of unamortized

capitalized software costs were included in construction in process.
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Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities consisted of the following (in thousands):

December 31,
2006 2005
Accounts payable.........o e $ 1,230 § 1,295
Accrued clinical Al COSES....ooiiiiiiiiireciersrissereseesrne s sececssssstsinrsssnsnnens 558 825
Accrued COMPENSAION. .....vervrieiiiaisisinainisinsisssns st e i s 2,288 832
Acerued Habilities .......cooverrreecececiieininireecensreesisressres et iassasssar e s nsaseean 2,703 936

$ 6,779 § 3,888

3. Commitments and Contingencies
Equipment Lines of Credit

During December 2005, the Company entered into loan and security agreement with a lender and an amendment to a
loan and security agreement with another lender (Agreements) under which the lenders agreed to extend to the Company a
line of credit equal to $20.0 million. As a condition of the Agreements, on December 30, 2005, the Company borrowed $3.0
million against the line of credit to repay the outstanding balance of existing loan and security agrecments executed in March
2003. The Agreements state that the remaining proceeds are to be used solely for the purchase of eligible equipment and
certain leasehold improvements through December 2007. Borrowings against the line of credit will be structured as
promissory notes with the interest rate fixed at the time of each draw based on the three-year treasury bill. Such borrowings
are to be secured by all existing and future assets of the Company, excluding intellectual property, and repaid, monthly, over
36 to 42 months, depending upon the nature of the equipment financed. The Company has agreed not to pledge its
intellectual property to any third party or permit a third party to restrict the Company’s ability to pledge its intellectual
property. However, the Company retains the right to grant non-exclusive licenses of its intellectual property in the ordinary
course of business and non-exclusive and exclusive licenses of its intellectual property in connection with joint ventures and
corporate collaborations in the ordinary course of business. The Agreements contain a restrictive financial covenant
requiring the Company maintain a minimum of $15.0 million in available cash, cash equivalent and short-term investments.
In addition, the Agreements subject the Company to certain non-financial covenants. As of December 31, 2006, the
Company was in compliance with the terms of the Agreements. As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, the Company had
borrowings outstanding under the loan and security agreement totaling approximately $8.7 million and $3.0 million,
respectively. Borrowings under the line of credit bore interest at rates ranging from 11.45% to 12.17% per annum.

During July 2004, the Company entered into a loan and security agreement under which the lender agreed to extend
to the Company a line of credit equal to $2.5 million. In June 2005, the lender increased the line of credit by $1.6 million,
which created a total line of credit facility of $4.1 million. The proceeds were used solely for the purchase of eligible
equipment, leaschold improvements and software. Borrowings under the line of credit bear interest at 9.34% and 10.93% per
annum and are collateralized by certain of the financed equipment. Principal and interest, related to each draw, are payable
monthly over 36 months or 42 months. The loan and security agreement subjects the Company to certain financial and non-
financial covenants. As of December 31, 2006, the Company was in compliance with the terms of the loan and security
agreement. As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, the Company had borrowings outstanding under the loan and security
agreement totaling $2.0 million and $3.3 million respectively.

During March 2003, the Company entered into a loan and security agreement under which the lender agreed to
extend to the Company a line of credit equal to $7.0 million. Borrowings under the line of credit bore interest at rates
ranging from 11.44% to 14.66% per annum and were collateralized by certain items of the financed equipment and leaseheld
improvements. Principal and interest, related to each draw, were payable monthly over 36 months or 42 months, and the
Company was required to make final terminal payments equal to 7.50% or 12.75% of the original principal amount of each
drawdown. Monthly payments were made from time of each drawdown through November 2005. Tn December 2005, the
Company repaid all of the outstanding principal and interest of approximately $2.9 million, of which approximately $200,000
had been prepaid at the time of the borrowings and an early termination fee of approximately $290,000, which the Company
recorded as a loss on extinguishment of debt.
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Future minimum principal payments due under the above loan and security agreements are as follows at
December 31 {(in thousands):

2007 ..o ecirrirti st raenstese et e s esasare b et a e AR et e AR S SRRt s et smed S b ka4 A na e e R RS R b bR e b RS bk e nrrara e e b et e ena 3 5,070
2008 ...ttt ae s e b4 RS b S ea R AR B4 e SRR g eSS b e e nre s e e RS be s 3,216
2009 ...t sae bR e A rE SRR AR S A SR d 4Rtk e et et st E b E s nr e e e R e e s R s 2,250
2000 ..ttt r et e eSS S Rt e E R R e R A AR ERE S erE R R e ReE e AR AR e R A nEnaea b et s bnE e e e 287
TOMAL......cocceeecrc ettt esese st s e st s RS Reete s rese e ses e r e e neRea s s nes 10,823
Less: Amounts representing debt diSCOUNE ...........ooviireeeceeentiinrreernr e ereescs e s et e e (93)
o [ 0 T O O U OO OO OO C S SOOP PRSP 10,730
Less: CUITENt POTHON ..o ccecreiieie ittt sesee e e e sinarsse s e sese e e s shseses b s seeeeeabe e sae bbb e Re st e s e s b eana bt sabestsnsnnnes 4,976
LODE-LEIIN POTHOM........ccormimrmemrrrreeseses e eecnseseasastabicacrsas st esese s bree s ssessasssssss bessens s reseassansenrserersssesasesssscncasnons $ 5,754
Leases

In November 2005, the Company entered into an amended and restated lease agreement (Lease Agreement) with its
landlord to expand its existing facility to support commercial-scale manufacturing of Favld, This 80,000-square foot facility
(Existing Facility) will be devoted to manufacturing and research and development. The landlord will provide the Company
with a tenant improvement allowance of $10 miilion for the Existing Facility. In September 2006, the Company entered into
the First Amendment to the Amended and Restated Office Lease Agreement (Amendment) pursuant to which the Company
agreed to expand the Existing Premises to include an adjacent 48,000-square foot facility (New Facility) to house the
Company’s corporate headquarters and warehousing operations. The landlord will provide the Company with a tenant
improvement allowance of $1.2 million for the New Facility. The Amendment was effective December 1, 2006, with a
commencement date of March 1, 2007 (ninety-one days after the effective date). The landlord has incurred approximately
$7.4 million in costs through December 31, 2006.

Existing Facility Under the Lease Agreement, monthly base rent for the Existing Facility will average
approximately $168,000 for the period November 2005 through January 2007. Monthly rent will be approximately $288,000
per month beginning in February 2007 and then will increase by 3.5% anmually commencing in February 2008. The Lease
Agreement further required the Company to increase the security deposit provided to the landlord from approximately
$166,000 to approximately $355,000, upon execution of the Lease Agreement. In addition, prior to any distribution of the
tenant improvement allowance, the Company was required to deliver to the landlord an amendment to the existing letter of
credit to increase the amount from approximately $1.6 million to approximately $3.5 million, which amount will be subject
to increases, reductions and reinstatements under specified circumstances. The Company is responsible for all operating
costs and real estate taxes incurred with respect to the Existing Facility and is required to maintain insurance at specified
minimum levels during the term of the Lease Agreement. In addition, the Company is obligated to pay the landlord monthly
management fees equal to 2.25% of the applicable base rent during the term of the Lease Agreement and an additional fee
equal to 1% of the construction costs incurred in connection with tenant improvements.

Unless earlier terminated, the Lease Agreement will expire June 30, 2025, but the Company has the option to extend the term
of the Lease Agreement for two additional five-year periods. Construction of the tenant improvements began in June 2006,

New Facility Under the Amendment, rental payments for the New Facility begin on March 1, 2007, with the base
rent for the New Facility increasing by 3.5% annually commencing on March 2008. However, during the first 12 months of
the lease for the New Fagility, the Company is obligated to pay only 50% of the base rent and operating expenses attributable
to the New Facility. The provisions of the Lease Agreement related to the Existing Premises regarding operating costs, real
estate taxes, insurance, monthly management fees and tenant improvement fees will also apply to the New Facility. Unless
earlier terminated, the Company’s lease of the New Facility will expire on June 30, 2025, but the Company has the option to
extend the term of the lease for two additional five-year periods. The Company has a one-time right to terminate its lease of
the New Facility effective as of June 1, 2017, upon six months’ prior notice to the landlord.

In January 2003, the Company entered into a 15 and one-half year lease for approximately 49,000 square fect of
manufacturing, laboratory and office space (QOriginal Lease). The Original Lease had stated rental increases over the lease
term. Under the terms of the Original Lease agreement, the Company was required to pay a security deposit of approximately
$152,000 and execute a $1.6 million letter of credit in favor of the landlord, which is secured by a restricted investment in
money market funds. The restricted investment is included in restricted cash in the accompanying balance sheets. The
Original Lease required the Company to pay for its share of maintenance, insurance and property taxes. In July 2004, the
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Company amended its Original Lease to add an additional 14,000 square feet of office space. The lease term on the additional
space was to expire July 31, 2008, but could be extended at the Company’s option for two additional two year periods. In
August 2005, the Company amended the Original Lease to add the remaining 17,000 square feet of space in order to occupy
the entire building. The lease term on the additional space was to expire on January 31, 2007. In November 2005, the
Company terminated the Original Lease and all amendments thereto upon executing an amended and restated Lease
Agreement as noted above.

In May 2003, the Company entered into a 36-month capital lease for the purchase of certain property and
equipment. The lease bears an annual interest rate of 6.57%, with interest and principal due monthly. In January 2004, the
Company entered into two capital leases, for the purchase of certain property and equipment, with tertns of 60 months and 36
months, respectively. The capital leases bear effective annual interest rates of 5.18% and 21.67%, respectively, with interest
and principal due monthly. .

Future annual minimum payments under non-cancelable operating leases are as follows at December 31 (in
thousands):

Operating

Leates
1) OO OO U P S OU YOO DO PP SRRSO e Poen $ 3,693
QOB ..o et tetetete s srer e st sseeareraR ey £eEn et eSSt AR PSR ees A A A SRR e 4,335
200D ..o eoes s eeeeee e tetetsteseteteternrar st b bR R e oS £ £ s s eE £ RS AR RSP T e LA A SRR AR S SrR eernrd 4,557
2OT0 ..o ees s eeeeemeeste e sstesetetsteberars bbb b er e s s ee v e E £ s et SE SR8 e e m R LR AR R PSR e TR e AL E SRR s b 4,717
g 1) 1 OO OO OO OO VPV TS POUUTIEO PP PSR PP TP 4,882
TRELEATET. .....ccceeeiierese st vee s reresessssa s r g ms s asbnb et e seseasan st eb e A s Ao R LR e P R e ek SRR LR RS E S E S e SR e n s st se e bbbt 74,689
Total MINIMUM 1EASE PAYINEILS —.....cocotieerimresisnmrisisisiirs s sesssssss s s st st s sn s b bbbt n s nar s $ 96,873

The Company records rental expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Rental expense, including
equipment rental, for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, and the period from January 21, 2000 (inception)
to December 31, 2006 and was $3.6 million, $2.4 million, $2.5 million and $10.7 million, respectively.

The landiord tenant improvement allowances of $10.0 million and $1.2 million associated with the expansion of the
Existing Facility and the build out of the New Facility, respectively, will be capitalized as leasehold improvements and
amortized over the shorter of their estimated useful lives or the remaining lease term, while the tenant improvement
allowance is recorded as deferred rent and will be recovered ratably over the remaining term of the lease.

4. License Agreements

In November 2004, the Company entered into a supply and license agreement with one of its vendors and made: a
$50,000 milestone payment, upon execution of the agreement. In October 2006, the Company made an additional payment
of $50,000 for the achievement of a subsequent milestone. An additional aggregate of up to $250,000 will be due upon the
achievement of certain milestones, the timing of which is not known at this time. The initial term of the agreement is 96
months and is automatically renewable for 12 month periods unless terminated by written notice by either party. Either party
may terminate the agreement earlier upon a breach by the other party that is not cured within 60 days or other events relating
to insolvency or bankruptcy. The payments were recorded as license fees and are amortized to research and development
expense over the term of the agreement. During 2005, the Company purchased the required minimum raw material under the
agrecment. Expense related to the amortization of the license and minimum purchase requirement for the years ended
December 31, 2006 and 2005 and the period from January 21, 2000 (inception) to December 31, 2006 totaled approximately
$11,000, $241,000 and $253,000, respectively.

In December 2003, the Company entered into a non-exclusive worldwide fee-bearing royalty-free license agreement
for certain patent rights. In consideration for the patent rights, the Company paid an initial fee of $20,000 and the first annual
payment of $10,000 upon execution of the agreement in 2003 and is committed to annual payments of $10,000 through the
Company’s clinical development period (anticipated to end in 2008) and, after commercialization of its first product
candidate, an aggregate of $225,000 in annual fees and a milestone payment. The annual payment is recorded as research and
development expense. The initial fee has been recorded as a license fee and is amortized to research and development
expense over a five-year period, the estimated life of the technology. Expense related to the license agreement for the yeurs
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ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 and the period from January 21, 2000 (inception) to December 31, 2006 totaled
approximately $14,000, $14,000, $14,000 and $43,200, respectively.

5. Change in Accounting Method for Stock-Based Compensation

Effective January 1, 2006, the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123 (revised
2004), “Share-Based Payment,” (SFAS 123(R)). SFAS 123(R) requires the recognition of the fair value of stock-based
compensation in net income or loss. The Company recognizes the stock-based compensation expense over the requisite
service period of the individual grantees on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, which is generally four years, Prior
to January 1, 2006, the Company recorded compensation expense for stock options based upon their intrinsic value on the
date of grant pursuant to Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees (APB 235).
Prior to the Company’s initial public offering (IPO), the Company established the exercise price based on the fair value of the
Company’s stock at the date of grant as determined by the Board of Directors (the Board). Therefore, the options had no
intrinsic value upon grant and no expense was recorded upon issuance. With respect to certain options granted during 2005
and 2004, the Company had recorded deferred compensation of $350,000 and $9.4 million, respectively, for the incremental
difference at the grant date between the fair value per share determined by the Board and the deemed fair value per share
determined solely for financial reporting purposes.

The Company has elected the modified prospective transition method for adopting SFAS 123(R). Under this
method, the provisions of SFAS 123(R) apply to all awards granted or modified after the date of adoption. The deferred
stock-based compensation balance of $5,7 million as of December 31, 2005, which was accounted for under APB 25, was
reclassified as a reduction of additional paid-in capital upon the adoption of SFAS 123(R). In addition, the unrecognized
expense of awards not yet vested at the date of adoption will be recognized in net income or loss in the periods after the date
of adoption using the same Black-Scholes valuation method and assumptions determined under the original provisions of
SFAS 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” as disclosed in our quarterly and annual reports. The cumulative
effect of the change in accounting principle from APB 25 to SFAS 123(R) was not material, because the amortization of
expense related to options granted prior to the adoption was based on the single-option approach.

Stock-Based Compensation under SFAS 123(R)

The Company estimates the fair value of each stock-based award on the grant date using the Black-Scholes
valuation model. To facilitate the adoption of SFAS 123(R), the Company applied provisions of Staff Accounting Bulletin
(SAB) 107 in developing its methodologies to estimate our Black-Scholes valuation model inputs. Option valuation models,
including Black-Scholes, require the input of highly subjective assumptions, and changes in the assumptions used can
materially affect the grant date fair value of an award. Below is a summary of the methodologies the Ccrmpany utilized to
estimate the assumptions:

Valuation and Amortization Method - The Company estimates the fair value of stock options granted using the Black-
Scholes option-pricing formula and a single-option award approach. This fair value is then amortized on a straight-line basis
over the requisite service period, which is generally the vesting period.

Expected Term- The expected term of the Company’s stock-based awards represents the period that the Company s stock-
based awards are expected to be outstanding and is determined based on the SAB 107 simplified method, since the Company
does not have adequate history of exercises of its stock-based awards since its IPO in February 2005.

Expected Volatility- The Company estimates its volatility factor by using the historical average volatility, over a period equal
to the expected term, of comparable companies since it does not have adequate stock price history of its own stock to
determine volatility.

Expected Dividend - The Black-Scholes valuation model calis for a single expected dividend yield as an input. The dividend
yield of zero is based on the fact that the Company has never paid cash dividends and has no present intention to pay cash
dividends in the future,

Risk-Free Interest Rate — The Company bases the risk-free interest rate used in the Black-Scholes valuation model on the
implied yield currently available on the U.S. Treasury zero-coupon issues with an equivalent remaining term, Where the
expected term of the Company’s stock-based awards does not correspond with the terms for which interest rates are quoted,
the Company performs a straight-line interpolation to determine the rate from the available maturities.
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Estimated Forfeitures — When estimating forfeitures, the Company considers voluntary termination behavior as well as an
analysis of actual option forfeitures. As stock-based compensation expense recognized in the Statement of Operations for the
year ended December 31, 2006 is based on awards ultimately expected to vest, it should be reduced for estimated forfeitures.
SFAS 123(R) requires forfeitures to be estimated at the time of grant and revised, if necessary, in subsequent periods if actual
forfeitures differ from those estimates. Pre-vesting forfeitures were estimated based on historical experience. In the
Company’s pro forma information required under SFAS 123 for the periods prior to January 1, 2006, the Company accounted
for forfeitures as they occurred.

Fair Value — The fair value of the Company’s stock options granted to employees and non-employee directors and employee
stock purchase plan offerings for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 was estimated using the following
assumptions:

Stock Option Plans Employee Stock Purchase Plans

2006 2005 2004 2006 2008 2004
Weighted average risk-free interest rate 477% 430% 2.83% 499% 441% NA
VOIatility ..oovveeeeisseiiinisinseereinsssssseseaas 61.8% 70% 70% 57.6% 70% N/A
Dividend yield..........ccviviiinnvirinieninn 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% N/A
Weighted average expected life (vears). 6.25 4.0 4.0 1.25 1.8 N/A

Stock-Based Compensation Expense

Under provisions of SFAS 123(R), the Company recorded approximately $4.0 million of stock-based compensation
expense in our Statement of Operations for the year ended December 31, 2006. The Company utilized the Black-Scholes
valuation model for estimating the fair value of the stock-based compensation granted both before and after the adoption of
SFAS 123(R). Prior to the adoption of SFAS 123(R), the Company recorded approximately $2.9 million and $2.4 millicn of
stock-based compensation for certain options granted during 2005 and 2004 in our Statement of Operations for the years
ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively, under the provisions of APB 25 based upon their infrinsic value. Total
stock-based compensation expense recognized for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 was as follows (in
thousands, except per share data):

2006 2005 2004
Research and development...........cccooviievnininininnns $ 1961 § 1,406 § 1,196
General and administrative ........o.oovevecceeeeiiiiienans 2,049 1,453 1,220
Stock-based compensation €Xpense ........coucveevurerene $ 4010 $ 2,859 % 2,416

At December 31, 2006, the total compensation cost related to unvested stock-based awards granted to employees
under the Company’s stock award plans but not yet recognized was approximately $6.7 million, net of estimated forfeitures
of approximately $380,000. This cost will be amortized on a straight-line basis over a weighted-average period of
approximately 1.25 years and will be adjusted for subsequent changes in estimated forfeitures.

The Company has a net operating loss carry-forward as of December 31, 2006, and no excess tax benefits for the tax
deductions related to share based awards were recognized in the statements of operations. Additionally, no incremental 1ax
benefits were recognized from stock options exercised in 2006 that would have resulted in a reclassification to reduce net
cash provided by operating activities with an offsetting increase in net cash provided by financing activities.
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Pro-forma Disclosures

SFAS 123(R) requires the Company to present pro forma information for the comparative periad prior to adoption
as if it had accounted for all our stock options under the fair value method of the original SFAS 123. The following table
illustrates the effect on net loss and earnings per share if we had applied the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS 123 to
stock-based employee compensation to the same period in the prior years (in thousands, except per share data):

Years ended December 31,
2005 2004

Net loss applicable to common stockholders as reported. .........cocoeoeeiceemmirieeeeeneeseccseerenenens $ (35,881) §$ (54,190)
Add: Stock-based employee compensation expense included in net 108s.......coceeveececiniiicrennnnns 2,860 2416
Deduct: Stock-based employee compensation expense determined under fair value method for all

AWATDS .. .co.ecorereeneeriae e ese e srasss e ns st ss st n s somot e sas et atse e s as e st seaaa e s s et esare s s e s aseataee (3,217 (2,564)
Pro forma net loss applicable to common stockholder ............ciicnevnininveenenincinee e $ (36,238) $ (54,338)
Net loss per share:

As reported—Basic and DIlUted .........ccvvviii s rresseress s eseserene s s s e £ (199 § (5148

Pro forma—Basic and Diluted...... ... sssssssssssasassasaressarsasans $ Qo § (51.62)

As aresult of adopting SFAS 123(R), the Company’s net loss for the year ended December 31, 2006 is
approximately $1.3 million larger than if the Company had continued to account for stock-based compensation under APB
25. Basic and diluted net loss per share is $0.05 higher than if the Company had continued to account for stock-based
compensation under APB 25,

The Company accounts for stock option grants and similar equity instruments granted to non-employees under the
fair value method, in accordance with Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) Issue No. 96-18, Accounting for Equity
Instruments That Are Issued to Other Than Emplayees for Acquiring, or in Conjunction with Selling, Goods or Services, and
SFAS No. 123.

6. Stockholders’ Equity
Committed Equity Financing Facility

On December 19, 2006, the Company entered into a Committed Equity Financing Facility (“CEFF”) with
Kingsbridge Capital Limited (“Kingsbridge’) pursuant to which Kingsbridge committed to purchase, subject to certain
conditions, up to the lesser of 5.8 million shares of the Company’s common stock or an aggregate of $40 million during the
next three years. The Company may require Kingsbridge to purchase newly-issued shares of the Company’s common stock
at a price between 90% and 94% of the volume-weighted average price on each trading day during an eight-day pricing
period. The maximum dollar amount of shares that the Company may require Kingsbridge to purchase in any such pricing
period is the lesser of $10 million or 1.75% of the Company’s market capitalization at the time of a draw down under the
CEFF. The Company is not obligated to sell any of the $40 million of common stock available under the CEFF, and there
are no minimum commitments or minimum use penalties. As of December 31, 2006, no shares have been sold to
Kingsbridge.

In connection with the CEFF, the Company issued a warrant to Kingsbridge to purchase 250,000 shares of the
Company’s common stock at an exercise price of $3.98 per share (the “Warrant™). The Warrant is exercisable beginning six
months after the date of issuance and for a period of five years thereafter,

On February 15, 2007, the Company filed a resale registration statement with the Securities and Exchange
Commission (“SEC”) with respect to resale shares of common stock pursuant to the CEFF and underlying warrant. To date
no securities have been issued pursuant to this registration staternent.

Registration Statement

On June 20, 2006, the Company filed a shelf registration statement on Form S-3 with the Securities Exchange
Commission. The shelf registration statement on Form S-3 permits the Company to sell, in one or more public offerings,
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shares of its common stock, debt securities or warrants, or any combination of such securities, for proceeds in an aggregate
amount of up to $60 million.

Private Placement of Common Stock and Warrants

On March 6, 2006, the Company entered into a securities purchase agreement relating to a private placement in which
the Company issued and sold to certain investors, for an aggregate purchase price of approximately $45.4 million, 8.6
million shares of its common stock and warrants to purchase up to 3 million shares of its common stock at an exercise price of
$5.26 per share. At the closing, investors in the private placement paid $5.26 per share of common stock and an additional
purchase price equal to $0.125 per warrant.

Certain of the Company’s existing stockholders, including two members of our board of directors, Ivor Royston,
M.D. and Fred Middleton, and funds affiliated with Forward Ventures, Sanderling Ventures, Alloy Ventures and William
Blair Capital Partners, invested in the private placement. Dr. Royston, Mr. Middleton, Doug Kelly, M.D. and Arda
Minocherhomijee, Ph.D., members of our board of directors on March 6, 2006, are associated with Forward Ventures,
Sanderling Ventures, Alloy Ventures and William Blair Capital Partners, respectively.

The Company filed a registration statement with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 31, 2006
coveting the resale of the shares of common stock issued in the private placement and the shares of common stock issuable
upon exercise of the warrants issued in the private placement.

Initial Public Offering

On February 7, 2005, the Company completed an initial closing of its initial public offering (IPO) in which it sold
6,000,000 shares of common stock for proceeds of $37.7 million, net of underwriting discounts and commissions and $1.4
million of offering expenses. In addition, on March 7, 2005, the Company completed an additional closing of its PO in
which it sold an additional 285,000 shares of common stock pursuant to the partial exercise by the underwriters of an over-
allotment option which resulted in proceeds of $1.8 million, net of underwriting discounts and commissions.

Authorized Capital Stock

On February 7, 2005, the Company filed an amended and restated certificate of incorporation to provide for
authorized capital stock of 75,000,000 shares of common stock and 5,000,000 shares of undesignated preferred stock.

Convertible Preferred Stock

Effective immediately prior to the initial closing of the IPQ in February 2005, shares of Series A, B, B-2 and C
convertible preferred stock then outstanding were converted into an aggregate of 12,177,344 shares of the Company’s
common stock.

Series C Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock Deemed Dividend

The 2004 Series C financing, involved the sale of preferred stock at a price per share below the Company’s
anticipated initial public offering price. Accordingly, pursuant to EITF 98-5, Accounting for Convertible Securities with
Beneficial Conversion Features, the Company recorded a deemed dividend on the Series C shares of $28.1 million, which is
the difference in the gross proceeds from the Series C offering and the underlying value of the conversion shares (adjusted for
a conversion price adjustment feature). The $28.1 million deemed dividend has been entirely recognized in the year ended
2004, as an adjustment to the net loss applicable to common stockholders since the preferred stock was convertible, at any
time, at the option of the holder, and was not mandatorily redeemable. In accordance with EITF 00-27, Application of Isiue
No. 98-5 to Certain Convertible Instruments, the Company calculated the deemed dividend of $28.1 million using the most
favorable conversion price of $6.33 per conversion share.

Restricted Stock
In January 2000, the Company issued approximately 396,000 restricted shares of the Company’s common stock: to

certain employees with vesting over a three-year period. During 2002 and 2001, the Company issued an additional 9,638 and
50,119, respectively, of restricted shares of common stock to certain directors and consultants. The restricted stock vests

79




meonthly, over a period of two to four years. In addition, during 2006, 2005, 2004 and the period from January 21, 2000
(inception) to December 31, 2006, the Company issued none, 1,536, 706,268 and 942,950 shares, respectively, of restricted
shares of common stock upon the early exercise of stock options, as noted below. The options generally vest over four years.
Included in the restricted stock issued in 2002 are 185,060 shares of common stock issued upon the early exercise of options
by an officer of the Company through a full recourse promissory note for $96,000. The note receivable from stockholder had
a maturity date of April 19, 2006 and was paid in full at that time. During the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, 2004
and the period from January 21, 2000 (inception) to December 31, 2006, the Company repurchased 8,666, 12,188, 41,286
and 67,743 unvested shares, respectively. As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, 107,399 shares and 288,683 shares,
respectively, were unvested and subject to repurchase by the Company.

Stock Options

Under the Amended and Restated 2001 Equity Incentive Plan (the Equity Incentive Plan), the Company is
authorized to issue approximately 3.8 million shares of common stock under various instruments. Options granted under the
Equity Incentive Plan generally expire no later than ten years from the date of grant (five years for a 10% stockholder).
Options generally vest over a period of four years. Prior to the Company’s [PO in February 2005, all options granted under
the Equity Incentive Plan allowed for early exercise prior to the option becoming fully vested. On the first day of each fiscal
year, beginning in 2006, the share reserve under the Equity Incentive Plan is automatically increased by the number of shares
equal to the least of: i) 5% of the Company’s outstanding shares of Common Stock on the day preceding the ﬁrst day of such
fiscal year; ii) 1.3 million shares of commen stock; or iii) an amount determined by the Board.

In December 2004, the Board approved the 2005 Non-Employee Directors’ Stock Option Plan (the Directors’ Plan),
which became effective on the closing date (February 7, 2005) of the registration statement filed in connection with the
Company’s [PO and was amended in June 2006. The Directors” Plan provides for the automatic grant of non-statutory
options to purchase shares of common stock to non-employee directors. An aggregate of 420,000 shares of common stock
have been reserved for future issuance under the Directors’ Plan. This amount may be increased annually on the first day of
the Company’s fiscal year, from 2005 to 2013, by the lesser of 90,000 shares of common stock or an amount determined by
the Board. In 2008, the Board did not increase the shares reserved for future issuance,

The exercise price of incentive stock options must be equal to at least the fair value of the Company’s common
stock on the date of grant, and the exercise price of non-statutory stock options may be no less than 85% of the fair value of
the Company’s common stock on the date of grant. The exercise price of any option granted to a 10% stockholder may not be
less than 110% of the fair value of the Company’s common stock on the date of grant.
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The following table summarizes the Company’s stock option activity for employee and director stock options
{shares in thousands):

Approximate
Weighted- Weighted Average
average Remaining Average Inirinsic
Shares exercise price Contractual Term Value
(In Years) {in thousands)
Outstanding at December 31, 2000................... — 5 — :

Granted ......oorveveeeeeererrr e 69 0.52

Exercised .......occocerevieeiiniinsmninisinisecssnnseeas (39) 0.52

Cancelled/Forfeited............coomnemninincrnrninrnnns — —

Outstanding at December 31, 2001 ................... 30 0.52

Granted .......ccovvreveecnrermrcereren sttt 361 0.57

EXercised .....cocvrevecmernisiinenirnree et (196) 0.53

Cancelled/Forfeited..........cccoooiiiniiniininninnnns C)) 0.54
Qutstanding at December 31, 2002............cce.s 191 0.61

Granted ..oceee i 312 0.63

EXercised .....ccoovveeninermmiinnirnsneissesnssseanans {6) 0.60

Cancelled/Forfeited.........c.ocovmvvemicoeeiiiiaianns (28) 0.62
Outstanding at December 31, 2003................... 469 0.62

Granted .....c.oceniveevcrermerrrrcr i 1,389 0.64

EXEICiSed .ocvvvreereeeeinreieermiieesscsssssinirssnseraseins (889) 0.63

Forfeited.......ovvieeverervenirecee s siesnnes (10) 0.62

EXDPIred.....ccoonnmmiensninirmnmnmresimessesararevesnsaes — —

Outstanding at December 31, 2004..............-.-. 959 0.63

GIANLEd .....ooververereeecseseesssessaenm e st sranrerasnneas 792 4.74

EXercised .........cccviminimensinnnininieensinne e (13) 3.36

Forfeited.........ccoovvcrimmennicesinininiiansesenene (56) 2.56

EXpired........ccovminimnieninsenin e snsssasseraerns — —

Outstanding at December 31, 2005.........ccco.cee. 1,682 2.50

GrAnted ...t e e 923 6.45

EXErCiSed ..ooeveeveeienecenresecssrese e varsmres s (90) 0.65

Forfeited.......ccccomeruierecrnerererneccessisniiisssssnenes (132) 442

EXPITEd....ccvrerecmenstnisemer et essasone (18) 540
Outstanding at December 31, 2006...........co...... 2,365 % 3.99 834 § 1,498
Vested and expected to vest at December 31,

2008 .....cieerrrrcenee et s 2301 % 3.95 833 § 1,485
Exercisable at December 31, 2006.................... 1,166 § 1.99 834 § 1,498
Exercisable at December 31, 2005................... 995 § 0.90
Exercisable at December 31, 2004...........covnnee 959 § 0.63

The weighted-average fair value of options granted during 2006, 2005 and 2004, and for the period from January 31,
2000 (inception) to December 31, 2006 was $4.02, $2.85, $6.88 and $4.61, respectively. At December 31, 2006 and 2005,
1,165,525 and 994,942 outstanding options were exercisable, respectively. In 2004, all outstanding options were exercisable,
and options to purchase 226,477 were vested.

The intrinsic value of stock options at the date of exercise is the difference between the fair value of the stock at the
date of exercise and the exercise price. During the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004, the total intrinsic value
of options exercised was $327,692, $34,995 and 316,764, respectively. In determining the intrinsic value of stock options
exercised prior to the IPO in February 2005, the Company established the exercise price based on the fair value of the
Company’s stock at the date of grant as determined by the Board. Aggregate intrinsic value is calculated as the difference
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between the exercise price of the underlying awards and the quoted price of the Company’s common stock for the 804,000
options that were in-the-money as of December 31, 2006.

Shares available for future stock option grants under the Equity Incentive Plan and the Directors’ Plan were 631,508
at December 31, 2006. At December 31, 2005, the Company had issued more shares than available for future issuance or
grant under the Equity Incentive Plan, creating a deficit of approximately 40,020 shares. The deficit was offset on January 1,
2006 as a result of an automatic increase to the share reserve of 1,016,452 shares. At December 31, 2004, 683,000 shares
remained available for future issuance or grant under the Equity Incentive Plan,

The following table summarizes information as of December 31, 2006 concerning options outstanding:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted Average

Remaining Weighted Weighted Average
Range of Options Contractual Life In Average Exercise Options Exercise Price of
Exercise Prices................ Qutstanding Years Price Exercisable Options Exercisable
$0.52-%0.73............ 804,200 7.19 § 0.64 804,200 §$ (.63
$0.74 -34.60............ 396,883 9.11 % 3.97 123,544 § 4.11
$4.61 -38550............ 475,930 843 § 5.37 216,554 § 5.46
$5.51-87.05............ 184,355 872 % 5.72 21,227 % 5.65
$706-3740............ 504,016 922 §% 740 — § —
$0.52-87.40............ 2,365,384 834 § 3.99 1,165,525 § 1.99

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

In December 2004, the Board approved the 2005 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the Purchase Plan) which became
effective on the closing date (February 7, 2005) of the registration statement filed in connection with the Company’s IPQ.

Under the Purchase Plan, the Company may issue up to 350,000 shares of common stock to eligible employees who
elect to participate in the Purchase Plan. This amount will be increased annually on the first day of the Company’s fiscal
year, from 2005 to 2013, by the least of i) 2% of the Company’s outstanding shares of Common Stock on the day preceding
such fiscal year, ii) 50,000 shares of Common Stock or iii) an amount determined by the Board. In 2006, the Board approved
an increase of 50,000 shares under the Purchase Plan. Employees participating in the Purchase Plan will obtain the right to
purchase shares of Common Stock at the

lower of 85% of the Common Stock closing price on the first day of the offering period or 85% of the Common Stock closing
price on the purchase date. The initial offering period commenced upon the closing date (February 7, 2005) of the
Company’s [PO and will be approximately 24 to 27 months in duration, with purchase dates occurring every six months. As
of December 31, 2006 and 2005, employees had purchased 94,302 and 27,050 shares, respectively, of Common Stock under
the Purchase Plan. At December 31, 2006, approximately 229,000 shares were reserved for future issuance and there was no
aggregate intrinsic value of these reserved shares outstanding under the Purchase Plan.

Warrants

In December 2006, in conjunction with a Committed Equity Financing Facility, or CEFF, the Company issued
warrants to purchase up to 250,600 shares of the Company’s Common Stock at an exercise price of $3.98 per share. The
warrant is exercisable beginning six months afier the date of grant through June 19, 2012. The Company determined the fair
value of the warrants on the grant date, using the Black-Scholes pricing model, of $343,000 and recorded that amount in a
contra-equity account. The assumptions used in determining the fair value of the warrants were a risk-free interest rate of
4.68%; dividend yield of 0%, expected volatility of 61.8%; and an expected life of five years and six months. As of
December 31, 2006, the warrants remained outstanding.

In March 2006, in conjunction with a securities purchase agreement relating to a private placement of approximately
$45.4 million, the Company issued warrants to purchase up to 2,994,288 shares of the Company’s Common Stock at an
exercise price of $5.26 per share. At the closing, investors in the private placement paid an additional purchase price equal to
$0.125 per share underlying the warrants. The warrants are exercisable through March 7, 2011. The Company determined
the fair value of the warrants on the grant date, using the Black-Scholes pricing model, of $8.9 million and recorded that
amount in 2 contra-equity account which was deducted from the proceeds received. The assumptions used in determining the
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fair value of the warrants were a risk-free interest rate of 4.76%; dividend yield of 0%; expected volatility of 61.8%; and an
expected life of five years. As of December 31, 2006, the warrants remained outstanding.

In December 2005, in conjunction with a loan and security agreement, the Company issued warrants to purchase up
to an aggregate of 97,668 shares of the Company’s Common Stock at an exercise price of approximately $4.10 per share. The
warrants are exercisable through December 30, 2010, The Company determined the fair value of the warrants on the grant
date, using the Black-Scholes pricing model, of $241,000, which was recorded as a debt discount and is being amortized over
24 months, which is equal to the repayment term of the promissory note under the loan and security agreement. The
assumptions used in determining the fair value of the warrants were a risk-free interest rate of 4.35%; dividend yield of 0%;
expected volatility of 70%; and an expected life of five years. Amortization of approximately $162,000 was recorded as
interest expense during the year ended December 31, 2006, and for the period from January 21, 2000 (inception) to
December 31, 2006, respectively. No interest expense was recorded during the year ended December 31, 2005. As of
December 31, 2006, the warrants remained outstanding. :

In March 2003, in conjunction with a loan and security agreement, the Company issued warrants to purchase shares
of the Company’s Series B Preferred Stock. Under the terms of the warrant agreement, upon the Company completing its
IPO, the underlying preferred stock shares of the warrants converted into common stock shares. Asa result, the underlying
warrants were converted into warrants to purchase an aggregate of approximately 22,121 shares of the Company’s Common
Stock at an exercise price of approximately $6.33 per share. The warrants are exercisable through March 20, 2010. The
Company determined the fair value of the warrants on the grant date, using the Black-Scholes pricing model, of $84,000,
which was recorded as a debt discount and was amortized over the term of the loan and security agreement. The assumptions
used in determining the fair value of the warrants were a risk-free interest rate of 3.0%; dividend yield of 0%; expected
volatility of 70%; and an expected life of five years. Amortization of $17,000 and $84,000 was recorded as interest expense
during the year ended December 31, 2005, and for the period from January 21, 2000 (inception) to December 31, 2006,
respectively. No interest expense was recorded during the year ended December 31, 2006. As of December 31, 2006, tte
warrants remained outstanding.

In March 2001, in conjunction with its line of credit agreement, the Company issued a warrant to purchase shares of
the Company's Series A Preferred Stock. On May 15, 2005, the warrant agrecment was amended to allow the warrant holder
to purchase up to an aggregate of 7,710 shares of the Company’s Common Stock at an exercise price of approximately $5.19
per share. The warrant is exercisable through the later of March 15, 2008 or five years after the Company’s initial public
offering. The Company determined the fair value of the warrant on the grant date, using the Black-Scholes pricing modet, of
$22,400, which was recorded as a debt discount and was amortized over the term of the line of credit. The assumptions used
in determining the fair value of the warrants were a risk-free interest rate of 4.3%; dividend yield of 0%; expected volatility
of 60%; and an expected life of five years. Amortization of approximately $500, $4,900 and $22,400 was recorded as interest
expense during the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, and for the period from January 21, 2000 (inception) to
December 31, 2006, respectively. As of December 31, 2006, the warrant remained outstanding.

The weighted-average exercise price of warrants outstanding as of December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 was
approximately $5.14, $4.55 and $5.02, respectively. The weighted-average fair value of warrants granted during 2006, 2005,
2004 and for the period from January 31, 2000 (inception) to December 31, 2006 was $2.99, $2.47, $5.14 and $2.98,
respectively. The weighted-average remaining contractual life of the warrants outstanding at December 31, 2006 and 2005
was 4.26 years and 4.70 years, respectively.

Common Stock Reserved for Future Issuance

The following shares of common stock were reserved for future issuance at December 31 (in thousands):

2006 2005
Warrant for the purchase of COMITION StOCK ...t s 3,372 127
COMMON SEOCK OPHIOIS ... veveueersieeceremmesii ittt st s sa s e eme st s b s st s sbemsa st s bbbt et
Granted and OWSIANGINE .....c.coevveeciriiirrrrnve sttt et s s s sasre e sres smeas s s s e 2,365 1,682
Reserved FOr fUNITE ISSUANCE . ..o cieiireerereens s eeeeemes st sas st s s as e s st st ar s sa s nr s s b e e 632 380
Common stock reserved for Employee Stock Purchase Plan ..o 229 273
6,598 2,462
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7. Income Taxes

Significant components of the Company’s deferred tax assets and liabilities as of December 31, 2006 and 2005 are
shown below. A valuation allowance of $53.1 million and $36.7 million as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively, has
been recognized to offset the net deferred tax assets as realization of such net assets has not met “the more likely than not”
threshold required under SFAS No. 109.

2006 2005
(in thousands)

Deferred tax assets:

Net operating loss carryforwards ...t srrs e sssacesenanes $ 45390 § 31,738

TAK CTEAILS oottt e eereecsessse s sessntr b e nem e ersr s gt sssabas s e s erenssnssasassreresmsassbatnsenence 6,921 4,860

DEfITEA TENL....ccuviiiiiiceeeevees it bt es bt iie b e e veseesasesssaresatssemmeenee s ressasasantasaressesaseessrreasarase 1,126 538

Deferred cOMPENSALION ......cccoi ettt e sttt s st e seerns s s e e nenenee 300 262

BT ..t e be s e s e st bbb b e e e e r AR e b e bbb bh s e emneseerevaraeentettabsshens 41 22
Total deferred taX ASSELS .......covcvrveee v e e eses e e st e be bt sas s st ernater 53,778 37,420
Valuation allowance for deferred taX ASSe1S ......ccc.ceevviiiiirecenrrcesinie vt sives et creeeaeanan (53,107) (36,696)
Net defermed taX ASSEIS ..ot cieserrre s reeeae i st esaeeseere e s eesree st tesaes stem e entesmssmaenternsase 671 724
Deferred tax liabilities:

Depreciation and AmMOTHZAtION . ...cove e rreeernimiessereseisssesssesssssinesasessssesessesssssesssssssrssesses (671) {7124)
Net deferred tAKES ottt e e as e s nra v sae b eve e b s s em et v g — § —

Reconciliation of the statutory federal income tax to the Company’s effective tax:

December 31,
2006 2008 2004

(in thousands)
Tax at federal StatULOrY TALE .........cccvverirerecmrreee e eeeans et revee e rassssassenes $ (14,179) $ (12,556) $ (9,113)
State, net of federal benefit............ccocivvmevnniniiiii e (2,049) (1,836) (1,327)
TAX CPEAILS vveuveceeee i reete e et e et s rsssasn s e e eeens see s essssasasa s senan (2,061) (2,355) (800)
Change in valuation allowance.........ccoeievecieiecreiin e rreeasevee et eeens 16,410 15,531 10,100
Permanent differences — Stock based compensation ...........ccccoueveeenienns 1,403 1,001 883
Permanent differences — OheT.......coovvviivicceee e eeeeeeie e eeerssse s sssssssene 496 589 242
ORET ..o rrre et st sisss s e sae res s are e s se st ease s e saEsssssebasatabesassransansearine (20) (374 15
Provision fOr INCOME LAXES ..........cceeeeieeeeeeecemerereseseseneressssasesesessesereresasens $ — § — 3 —

At December 31, 2006 and 2005, the Company had federal tax net operating loss carryforwards of approximately
$111.2 million and $77.8 million, respectively. At December 31, 2006 and 2005, the Company had California tax net
operating loss carryforwards of approximately $112.6 million and $78.5 million, respectively. The federal and California tax
loss carryforwards will begin expiring in 2020 and 2012, respectively, unless previously utilized. At December 31, 2006, the
Company also had federal and California research and development tax credit carryforwards totaling approximately $4.8
million and $3.1 million, respectively. The federal research and development tax credit carryforward will begin expiring in
2020 unless previously utilized. At December 31, 2006, the Company had a California manufacturer’s investment credit
carryforward of approximately $141,000.

Intemnal Revenue Code § 382 and § 383 limit the availability of income tax net operating losses and tax credit
carryforwards that arise prior to certain curnulative changes in a corporation’s ownership resulting in change of control of the
Company should such changes in ownership occur, Pursuant to Internal Revenue Code § 382 and § 383, use of the
Company’s net operating loss and credit carryforwards may be limited if a cumulative change in ownership of more than
50% occurs within a three-year period.

8. Related Party Transactions
In July 2004 and July 2003, the Company entered into consulting agreements with a family member of one of its
executive officers (the Consultant) to provide agreed upon services to the Company and receive compensation based upon an

houriy rate. The term of the consulting agreements were one year but the agreements automatically renewed in one year
increments unless otherwise terminated by the parties. The Consultant is no longer providing services under the July 2004
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agreement. The July 2005 agreement was terminated in March 2006. For the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and
2004, and the period from January 21, 2000 (inception) to December 31, 2006, the Company paid the Consultant
approximately $46,000, $75,000, 19,000 and $140,000, respectively, including reimbursement of ordinary business expenses.

In March 2003, the Company entered into a consulting agreement with one of its major investors (the Investor). The
Investor designated a consultant to provide certain administrative, business and technical support to the Company.
Compensation under the agreement included a fee of $8,500 per month to be paid to the Investor for performance of services
provided by the consultant. In addition, a warrant for the purchase of up to 19,277 shares of the Company’s Common Stock
was issued to the consultant (Note 5). The agreement terrninated in 2005. For the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004,
and the period from January 21, 2000 (inception) to December 31, 2006, the Company paid the Investor approximately
$70,000, $150,000 and $313,000 respectively, including reimbursement of ordinary business expenses.

In February 2001, April 2003 and April 2005, the Company entered into consulting agreements with one of its
directors (the Director). Under the terms of the consulting agreements the Director would provide agreed upon services 10
the Company and receive compensation based upon an hourly rate. The initial term of the consulting agreements are one year
but the agreements automatically renew in one year increments unless otherwise terminated by the parties. The Director
ceased providing services under the February 2001, April 2003 and April 2005 agreements. For the years ended
December 31, 2005 and 2004, and the period from January 21, 2000 (inception) to December 31, 2006, the Director received
compensation of approximately $6,000 and $7,000 and $61,000, respectively.

In September 2000, the Company entered into a lease agreement with a non-profit organization with which the
Company shares a common director. The related rent expense was $124,000, $476,000 and $1.6 million for the years ended
December 31, 2004, 2003 and for the period from January 21, 2000 (inception) to December 31, 2006, respectively. The
lease agreement expired on March 31, 2004,

9. Subsequent Events

On February 12, 2007, the Company entered into common stock purchase agreements with certain investors relating to a
registered direct offering of an aggregate 3,333,334 shares of the Company’s common stock at $3.00 per share to the
investors for gross proceeds of approximately $10 million.

The common stock was issued pursuant to a prospectus supplement filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
February 13, 2007, in connection with a shelf takedown from the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-3 (File
No. 333-135169) which became effective on July 11, 2006.

10. Q;larterly Financial Data (unaudited)

The following table summarizes certain of the Company’s operating results by quarter for 2006 and 2005 (in
thousands):

2006
. First Second Third Fourth Total
Net loss applicable to common stockholders (a).. ........... $ (10855) S (9.825) § (9,585 § (10,248} § (40,51D)
Net loss per share applicable to common stockholders (). . . . $ (049 $§ (034 $ (0339) § (035 $ (149
2005
. First Second Third Fourth Total
Net loss applicable to common stockholders (a).. . .......... $ (841) § (9373 $ (8524) $ (9573) § (35381)
Net loss per share applicable to common stockholders (a):. . . . $ (069 $ (047 $ (043) 3 (048) $ (199

(a) The sum of the four quarters will not agree to the year total due to rounding within a quarter.
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Index to Exhibits

15. (b) The following exhibits are filed as part of, or incorporated into, the 2006 Favrille, Inc. Annual Report on Form 10-K:

Exhibit

Number Description of Docoment
3.1 Registrant’s Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation.(1)
3.2 Registrant’s Amended and Restated Bylaws.(1)
4.1 Form of Common Stock Certificate of Registrant.(1)
4.2 Amended and Restated Investor Rights Agreement dated March 26, 2004 between the Registrant and certain of
its stockholders.(1)
43  Amendment No. 1 to Amended and Restated Investor Rights Agreement dated April 6, 2004 between the
Registrant and certain of its stockholders.(1)
4.4  Seccurities Purchase Agreement dated March 6, 2006, by and among Favrille and the individuals and entities
identified on Exhibit A thereto (the “Securities Purchase Agreement™).(7)
4.5 Registration Rights Agreement, dated December 19, 2006, by and between Favrille and Kingsbridge Capital
Limited.(9)
4.6 Securities Purchase Agreement dated February 12, 2007, by and among Favrille and certain investors.(10)
4.7 Warrant to purchase 250,000 shares of Common Stock dated December 19, 2006 issued to Kingsbridge Capital
Limited.(9)
4.8 Form of Warrant issued pursuant to the Securities Purchase Agreement.(7)
4.9 Warrant to purchase 48,834 shares of Common Stock dated December 30, 2005 issued to General Electric
Capital Corporation.(6)
4,10 Warrant to purchase 48,834 shares of Common Stock dated December 30, 2005 issued to Oxford Finance
Corporation.(6)
10.1 Form of Indemnity Agreement for Registrant’s directors and officers.(1X2)
10.2 Form of Indemnity Agreement for Registrant’s directors and officers.(8)(2)
10.3 Amended and Restated 2001 Equity Incentive Plan and Form of Stock Option Agreement thereunder.(1)(2)
10.4A 2005 Non-Employee Directors’ Stock Option Plan, as amended (the *“NEDSCP”).(2)
10.4B  Form of Stock Option Agreement under the NEDSOP.(1)(2)
10.5 2005 Employee Stock Purchase Plan and Form of Offering Document thereunder.(1)(2)
10.6 Employment Agreement dated January 6, 2005 between the Registrant and John P. Longenecker, Ph.D.(1X2)
10.7 Office Lease dated January 31, 2003 between the Registrant and Kilroy Realty, L.P.(1)
10.8 First Amendment to Lease dated July 7, 2004 between the Registrant and Kilroy Realty, L.P.(1}
109  Master Security Agreement dated July 26, 2004 between the Registrant and Oxford Finance Corporation. (l)
10.1¢  Loan and Security Agreement No. 24-0117 dated March 20, 2003 among the Registrant, Heller Financial
Leasing, Inc. and Lighthouse Capital Partners IV, L.P.(1)
10.11  Supply Agreement made on November 12, 2004 between the Registrant and Biosyn Arzneimittel GmbH.(1)(3)
10.12 Employment Agreement dated January 6, 2005 between the Registrant and Tamara A. Seymour.(1)(2)
10.13  Employment Agreement dated January 6, 2005 between the Registrant and Daniel P. Gold, Ph.D.(1)(2)
10.14 Employment Agreement dated January 6, 2005 between the Registrant and Alice Wei.(1)(2)
10.15 Employment Agreement dated January 6, 2005 between the Registrant and John F. Bender, Pharm.D.(1}(2)
10.16 Employment Agreement dated January 6, 2005 between the Registrant and Richard Murawski.(1)(2)
10.17 Employment Agreement dated December 1, 2005 between the Registrant and David L. Guy.(2){6)
10.18  Form of Employment Agreement between the Registrant and its executive officers.(1}(2)
10.19  Letter Agreement dated May 28, 2004 between the Registrant and Oxford Finance Corporation.(4)
10.20  Amendment dated June 16, 2005 to the Master Security Agreement dated July 26, 2004 between the Registrant
and Oxford Finance Corporation.(4)
10.21 Letter Agreement dated June 27, 2005 between the Registrant and Oxford Finance Corporation.(4)
10.22 Third Amendment to Lease dated July 7, 2005 between Registrant and Kilroy, L.P.(4)
10.23  Amended and Restated Office Lease dated October 31, 2005 between the Registrant and Kilroy Realty, L.P.(5)
10.24  Master Security Agreement dated December 30, 2005 between the Registrant and General Electric Capital
Corporation.(6)
10.25 Amendment dated December 30, 2005 to the Master Security Agreement dated December 30, 2005 between the
Registrant and General Electric Capital Corporation.(6)
10.26 Promissory Note dated December 30, 2005 between the Registrant and General Electric Capital Corporation.(6)
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10.27 Amendment dated December 30, 2005 to the Master Security Agreement dated July 26, 2004 between the
Registrant and Oxford Finance Corporation.(6)
10.28  Promissory Note dated December 30, 2005 between the Registrant and Oxford Finance Corporation.(6)
10.29 Common Stock Purchase Agreement dated December 19, 2006 between the Registrant and Kingsbridge.(9)
23.1 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.
24.1 Power of Attorney. Reference is made to the signature page of this report.
31.1 Cenrtification of principal executive officer required by Rule 13a-14(a) or Rule 15d-14(a).
31.2  Centification of principal accounting officer required by Rule 13a-14(a) or Rule 15d-14(a).
32 Certification by the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financia! Officer of Favrille, Inc., as required by
Rule 13a-14(b) or 15d-14(b) and Section 1350 of Chapter 63 of Title 18 of the United States Code (18
U.8.C.1350). :

(M

2)
3

@

()

(6)

&)

®

®

Previously filed as an Exhibit to Favrille, Inc.’s Registration Statement on Form $-1 (No. 333-114299), as amended (the
“Registration Statement”), and incorporated by reference herein.

Indicates management contract or compensatory plan.

Confidential treatment has been graﬁted with respect to certain portions of this exhibit. Omitted portions have been filed
separately with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

Filed on August 12, 2005 as an exhibit to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q and incorporated herein by
reference.

Filed on November 14, 2005 as an exhibit to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q and incorporated herein by
reference.

Filed on March 29, 2006 as an exhibit to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K and incorporated herein by
reference.

Filed as an exhibit to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated March 6, 2006 and incorporated herein by
reference.

Filed as an exhibit to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated December 7, 2006 and incorporated herein by
reference.

Filed as an exhibit to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated December 20, 2006 and incorporated herein by
reference.

(10) Filed as an exhibit to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated February 13, 2007 and incorporated herein by

reference.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly
caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

FAVRILLE, INC.
| By: /s/ JOHN P. LONGENECKER, FH.D.

John P. Longenecker
President and Chief Executive Officer

Dated: March 28, 2007
POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each person whose signature appears below constitutes and
appoints John P. Longenecker, Ph.D. and Tamara Seymour, and each of them, acting individually, as his or her attorney-in-
fact, each with full power of substitution and resubstitution, for him or her and in his or her name, place and stead, in any and
all capacities, to sign any and all amendments to this annual report on Form 10-K, and to file the same, with all exhibits
thereto, and other documents in connection therewith, with the Securities and Exchange Commission, granting unto said
attorneys-in-fact and agents, and each of them, full power and authority to do and perform each and every act and thing
requisite and necessary to be done in connection therewith and about the premises, as fully to all intents and purposes as he or
she might or could do in person, hereby ratifying and confirming all that said attorneys-in-fact and agents, or any of them, or
their or his substitute or substitutes, may lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the
following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date
/s/ JOHN P. LONGENECKER, PH.D. President, Chief Executive Officer and March 28, 2007
John P, Longenecker Director (Principal Exccutive Officer)
/s/ TAMARA A. SEYMOUR Chief Financial Officer March 28, 2007
Tamara A. Seymour (Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)
/s/ CAM L. GARNER Director March 28, 2007
Cam L. Garner
/s/ MICHAEL L. EAGLE Director March 28, 2007
Michael L. Eagle
/s/ ANTONIO J. GRILLO-LOPEZ, M.D. Director March 28, 2007
Antonio J. Grillo-Lopez
Director
Peter Barton Hutt
Director
David Molowa
/s/ FRED MIDDLETON Director March 28, 2007
Fred Middleton
Director

Arda Minocherhomjee, Ph.D.
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fs/ WAYNE I. ROE Director March 28, 2007

Wayne L. Roe

Director

Ivor Royston, M.D.
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